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To

All Hon'ble Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commlssion
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Flrms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Dear Sir (s}

Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2020

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited
Anancial Statements incduding Statement of Finandal Posltlon, Statement of Profit
ar Lass and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2020 along with notes thereon
for your kind information and record,

Yours sincerely

{ Sohel Abduliah)
Compary Secretary
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For our Customer
To become most efficient Company by providing the most courteous and

efficient service in every areas of Bangladesh.

For our Employees
Promoting well-belng of the members of the staff,

For our Shareholders
Ensuring fair retum on their investment through generating stable profit.

For our Community
Assuming our role as socially responsible corporate entity In a tangible
manner through close adherence to national policles and objectives.

To ensure energy securlty in the country by uninterrupted
supply of quality petroleum products at government's fixed
price. To strengthen the supply of environmental-friendly and
excellence agrochemical products in order to increase the

nation-wide agricultural productions.
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o To ensure adequate supply of fuels through the purchase,
storage & distribution of petroleum products throughout
the country with organized management system.

@ Development of petroleumn related infrastructure.

« Modemizing the marketing and operational activities of
the Company.

@ To make creative business policy and diversification of
products according to market demand.

w Undertaking necessary steps through impert,
manufacturing, storage, distribution with organized
management system in order to supply agrochemical
products throughout the country.

trategiciREionity

To have sustained growth, broaden and Improve range of products
and services in all areas of Bangladesh with the aim to add increased
value to shareholders' Investment and offer highest possible benefit
to our customers.



CORPORATE HEADQUARTER

DHAKA LIAIRON OFFICE

MAIN INSTALLATION

YEAR OF INCORPORATION
BUSINESE LINE

LISTING STATUS
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
PATD UP CAPITAL
HUMBER OF SHARES
NUMRER OF SHAREHOLDERS
NUMBER OF EMPLOYERS

PADMA BHABAN, STRAND ROAD,

BTMC BHABAN (10TH FLOOR), 7-9 KAWRAN BAZAR,
DHAEA-1215, BANGLADESH

GUPTAKHAL, PATENGA

CHATTOGRAM, BANGLADESH

27 APRIL 1965

PROCUREMENT, STORAGE AND
MARKETING OF PETROLEUM PRODUCTS,
LUBRICATING & GREASES, BITUMEN, LIG
AND MANUFACTURING & MAREETING
OF AGROCHEMICAL PRODUCTS

PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

DHAEA STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.
CHITTAGONG STOCK EXCHANGE 11D,
1000 MILLION TAKA

92,33 MILLION TAKA

$,82,32.750

10,027

1009



ANNUAL REPORT

Padma Cll Conpany Iimited ie not only the biggest but alen tha oldest with lts antecedents stratching
will back to the celomial peried of Britlak-Indla. Its ancesiral enterpries Rangoecn Ol Company’
established petrolemn basiness In this part of the werld by the middle of ninateanth cemtnry. Following

16 a Bynopals of Padma Ol Company Limited's historleal backsround:

A In 1874, RBangoon Ol Company was pegistersd as a Joint steck company In Scotland havineg ite main
bosinsss achvitéa in Boma (Engwn to the British until the later years of tha 1Bth cenhury am
BURMAH, which was a province of the them Britigh Indig)

A In 1BSS, Rangoem Oil Comparny was reconstituied and reformed as Burmah Oil Company. Bosinses
of this Compeny was then spread over other provinces of Britigh-ndis inchicing Repam spnd Bengal.
The Company's Head cffice was at 18] Weat George Streat, Glasgow, TLE.

4 Burmah Ol Compeny for (he st fime mdroduced driling equipments for exploration of oil in
Bmrma in the year 1888, Previcusty oll was Delng collected In Burma by hand dog well.

A Burmeh Cil Company sstablished thelr Moheehlhal Ol Ingtallation' af Chattogram in the year 1903.
& In 1BC8, Burmah Cil Sompany conduocted a gaolagical murwey in Chattogram.
& In 1814, Burmsh Ol Company drilled a well at Bitakunda, Chattogram.

& In the year 1980, M/s Bullock Brothers, 2 major disxibuntor of Brrmeh Cll Company eetablished their
trading efflce at Badarghet, Chettogram.

A In the yosr 1889, Burmeh Ofl Company took ower the office of Bullock Brofhers at Badsrghst,
hattogram Incuding 4.1 acres of land and aestablished thelr owm office in it.

& DPrigr o the partifion of the sub-contingnt in 1947, meinly twn ol merkpting companigs namely
Brrmeh Ofl Company (BOC) and Brrmah Shall Of Bterage and Distribotion Company (BSOC) were
oparating Petrolénm buminess in the sres whadt now compriss Banglsdssh. Bormah Bhell satabiished

Fylgton Depot at Tejguon Airport in the pear 1948.

& Ceneidering the Ol Madesting sitestion in arwiwidls Bast Pakimtan, Burmah Shall tamefarmd their
share to BOC muod in the year 1268 s new compeny celled Bormeh Eagiern Limited wee foomed with
48% ghare of BOC, The rest poxtlon of the share was lssned to public & private individoals of
Pakistam,

A In 1877, Burmah Eastern Limited béecame a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petrolatm Corporatien,

A In the yesr 1966, BOC transfgrred lte entive property in Bangldesh (nclnding shere of Bormah
Eastorn Iimite) n favour of Bangladesh Patralenm Corporation (BPD),

A As per terms of the tranaler of BOC s eative gharg tn BB, Burmeh Bestern Limited wean mouired to

chargre ita name and as such snbesecquently the Company's name was changed as PADMA OIL
COMPANY LIMITED' in the year 1B88.



ANNUAL REPORT

&> T e ey [efe

v fiwefd Aot e Wi T, et e i MRS uar ey i e et R Rt
oviivrrecy Treier RRERDw wie dwee R wivet - Ry TR ea -0 i e wif:
obr.09.30% Wity ufibtr gifechy show (Biw bttp:/fpadmacil51agm.dipitalegmbd.net)
e i 39 cori anad W, (38 P 1849 7o), Rl oo 33-co Ty ww oy |

EOEIE ¢

0d | b WigH dove Wiivs wafdw eowy 31 vy el SR v

oy | Yol HW wo T WNIE TEae PEPFs wiils Remfivng, ~Revwersily dficos o Rifresow oo
T T, WA,

% | oo PR <o W UM TR S e ool

a8 | *fEskRErey e

0@ | {oX> R So T I TR W AR S @ e iR fd:

ol | TG Yeuw afdvim e o1 =TTl S wer gopsie <o SOnd/erasii R « wipm Refe Rde |

3o HIE 3634 wRswT o Prfearor
o xS iz
Aits e, A, (catoaey
M‘l’l mm
By
o) | G (65 1

GFFE (W5 St WA 2033 | (FF% oub-u Fitfum ReiiilR et o, (v sveT T R Crmmerswe T
i ety G wov aa e were wfeni o o Rabe g |

o3, | 8 :

o 7Ry TR e e ey ST e oy, B iR i T e s S W ai (eI W T

e o Pt T S | s Wb wr AR e 9 w8 {pf &Ry v Femgilt S ot ot =
cwtontifiar cafieSte wiirer erpa wt e w0r |

o | CTRTIRTSTE R Rl «

(%) CTTRATE RGP R Ior b i T8 Al e P B 2% el ovee
TGS RS W $Ee AR | el AiRvine Wivem ariswEa o el sod NeF Yo ol
o) i oxrtitar i s wfer v o e A

() Wt TR R @ T et s corrii afiedid i, die o, T, siefior e
TR 3035 eI T e, et s

(%) AP SeTIETET IR 34 (R Jnty

() e g o cavy ey oo g e ax i Qeds wiRee e e s ot and
o, CH STrPTRE (www.pocl.gov.bd) oFF =T RT |

aB | il ClerdRm eo Y Yoso B wifiee vl s oot Fellffrs wiftfe Rt oon Rivieeeily afvvos
wlow enfremee an oot it AR ver W garw 9 VO f ve Wi e orer vl
hitp:/fpadmaoilslapm.digitalepmbd.mnet Fw- v w07 SRR S0 ST | VNG SR WU 4 oTouR Fres iR mor
cwiive R R i, CTR Gt e i tip//padmeoilS ] epm. digitalepmbd.net SRS TR WEHN ¥ 1|
ot | GO Ty AR dobe-tote ¥R WS WY (Soft form) TR craRTSRET s wiwted Safte ooy
wikfw ot 2 o | T aiiE efe oriRE waREE (www.pocLgov.bd) “Teut TRT | TR CrERvIeEY
Tl e v wioor cer=ia qistTs witer oot 91l Sfiee 20200 &7 BT = s Tars )



ANNUAL REPORT

NOTICE OF THE 51" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notics is hereby given that the 518t Armual General Meeting of Padma Qil Company Limited will be held on
Satnrday, 27 Rebruary 2021 (14 Falgun 1427) at 11.00 AM._ virmally by msing Digital Platfrom (Link :
htip:/padmaoilSlagmdigitatagmbd.net) in pwsuant to the Banpladesh Secoritics and Bxchaoge
Commizsion's Order No. SEC/SRMICA-231/25 dated 0BAYT/2020) to tnmsact the following businegs ;
AGENDA:
L TocunﬁmﬂmnﬁmtesufﬂmiﬂthﬁmalﬂmualMeeﬁnghaldmlﬂlmurym.
2. To receive and adopt the Directors” Report and Anditors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year erdded 30 June 20020,
3. To declars dividend for the year endad 30 Juns 2020,
4. To electire-elect Directors.
5. To appoint Joint Auditors and fx thesr remunergtion for the year ending 30 Jone 2021,
6. To appoint practicing Profesxional Accommtant/Sscretary for issuing certificate reganding Compliance of

03 Febyuary 2021
Strand Road, Sadarghat, Sohel Abdullah
Chettogram. Company Secretary
Notes:
L. Becord Dude:

The Record Date was 18 Jamary 2021, The Shansholders whoss names appearing in the CDBL. Depogitory Register and
Share Regigter of the Company on the Reconl Dtz will be aligible io siiend the Anneal Genessl Meeting end receive the
dividend,

0. Proxy:

A Member entitled to attend and vote ot the Anmpl Genersl Mesting may appoint & Proxy to attend and vobe on higfher
behelf. I order to be effective, the Proxy Fonm duly signed and stamped must be submitied at the Company’s Registered
Cifice wot later thim SEVENTY TWO HOURS before the Mesting.

03, Kieethon of (he Shorahaldor Diiracdor:

7} The Sharehnlders sxcept BPC foom remgining shansholders who are Bangladeshi national heving 2% gharsholding on the
peid op cepital of the Compeny ere digihle for participating in the Shereholder Direcior Election. Nemination Form for
Shareholder Director Election is available st the Registesed office of the Company from 03 Febenary 2001 10 10 Febrnery
2021 during Cffice hours;

by The Nominstlon Pomes doly completsd and signed with relevant suppocting papers should reach the Company's
Repinterad Offica, Strand Road, Sadsrghat, Chatingram by 1§ Fehwnary 2021;

&) The withdrawil date of the Nomdnadon Fonm is 17 Febenary 2021,

d) The fingl list of eligible candidatzs for Director sfter scnuiimy will be notified in the Notice Bourd at the Registered Office
of the Company mxd website (www.poel.gov.bd) on 22 Febmary 2021,

4. The Hon'ble Sharchokiemn will be sble to submit their quesfions/commmenis and vole 72 hours before  commencement of
the AGM end duing the AGM, For login in to dhe system, the Hon'ble thareholders need to put their 16-digh beneficial
gwner (BO) ID numberf5-digit Folin ID number gnd their ghare nomber by visiting the hnk
tipuipostmandl§ egm.digitalegminl. gl

f)5.The Anmil Raport' 20019-20 of the Company in soft form will be ment tn the e-mail addreas of the sharsholders as have
been found aveilable in their BO Account with the Depository. The said Amnusl Repeort is alsc evailable in the website of
the Compeny (worw.poclgov.bd). In addidon, the shareholdess may collect the Aonmal Repost’ 2009-20 from Bagistered
Cffics of tha Company by mubmitting written requast haforshamnd



Md. Anlsur Rahman
Senlor
Enargy and Mineral Resources Division
Minlgtry of Pawer, Enargy and Mineral Resoiroes
& Cheirman, POCL Board
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A
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Md. Ekhlasur Rahman

Mohammad Igbal Additional Secretary, Finance Division
Indepandent Director, POCL Board Ministry of Finance
& Director, POCL Board

K

Cr. Mohd. Sher All Mohammed Shahldul Alam
. dJﬂtﬂ:f:'ﬂﬂhW 5 Director (Finance), BPC
i znergy and Minersl Resources Divislon (Jolrt Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh)
inéwiry of Power, Energy and Mineml Resources & Direcior POCL Board

4 Director, POCL Board



KM Eneyetul Karim
Indapendent Director, POCL Board

Suzadur Rahman
Diractor, POCL Board

Sohel Abdullah
Company Secretary
& GM (Marketing)
Padma Oll Company Limited

10

Nasireddin Alditer Rashid
Shareholder Director, POCL Board.

Md. Masudur Rahman
Managing Director, POCL
& Dirgctar, POCL Board



ANNUAL REPORT

Brief Resume of Chairman

Md. Anisur Rahman

Semior Secretary

Energy s Mineral Resources Division

Minisiry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Chairman, POCL. Board

Mr. Md. Anisur Rehman was born on 315t December, 1962 in Shariatpar District. He has completed his
Secondary School Cestificate and Higher Secondary Cestificate Examination from Chandpur Hasan Ali
Government High School and Chandpur College respectively. He has obtained bhonors and Masters
Degree from the Department of Geography, University of Dhaka, As a member of BCS (Administration)
Cadre belonging in 1985 batch he joined o 15th February 1988, He served in various capecitics in the
field service as Asgistant Commissioner, Upazila Magistrate, Upsazila Nirbahi Officer. Apant from these
he scrved a8 Aspistant Scorctary/Scnior Assistmt Scoretary in the Csbinst Division, Local Government
Divisicn, Finance Divislon, Mindstry of Fisherdes and Livestock, Ministry of Home Affairs. He worked
as Depity Secretary in the Minisiry of Fisheries and Livestock and Local Governmeat Division. He also
served in the Local Government Division and the Miniatry of Fisheries snd Livestock as Joint Secretary.
Later he served as an Additional Secretary in the Ministry of Fisheries and Livestock and Public Security
Divigiom of the Mimgtry of Home Affgims, He hap attended in various treimngs m home and abroad. He
dlso attended "Leading snccessful Progarm: Using Evidence to Assesz Effectivensss™ under Harvand
Ecpedi School's Executive Educstion Program beld in USA. Mr, Md. Anisor Rahman served as
Secretery in the Mindetey of Religious Affairs from 14 September 2017 to (4 Janmary 2020. On 05
January 2020 be joined a5 Secretary in the Energy and Mineral Resources Division. He has been serving
a3 Senor Secretary of the same Division since 27 Jamuary 2020, As pert of the official duty Mr. Rehman
visited different countries around the globe including India, Nepal, Maldives, Srilanka, Thailand,
Mysonmar, Indonegin, Malaysia, Singapore, Vietngm, Hongkong, South Korea, Ching, Japan, Umnited
Kingdom, France, Germany, Italy, United Arab Emirates, Qetar, Knssia, Philppines, Switzerland,
Belgivm, Netherlands, Austris, Czech Republic, Turkey, Norway, Spain, Portugal, Camada, United States
of America, Malawi, South Africs, Aostralia, Newzealand, Brazil, Sendi Arabia. Mrs. Salme Soltana
Ruopali is his wife. They ane blessed with one daughier and one son.



ANNUAL REPORT
- Brief Resume of Dlrectors

Maohammad Igbal

Mr, Mohammad Tgbal joined Padms Oil Company Ltd as an lndependent Director in February 2018, He is
gleo the Chairman of Andit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committes (NRC) of the
Company. He obtgined o Masters and Bachelor (with homoies) degree in Law from Undversity of Dieka,
Banglwlesh with Gradoste Certificate in Information Technology from Charles Sturt University, Australia,
He iz a retired Civil Servant from 1984 batch of Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration) cadre. He
worked in varlous capacities of ateff, command and instruction in the Goverament and state-cremed
Industries Corporation (BCIC), Director General of Department of Marcotics Control, Director General of
Natonal Institute of Population Research and Tralming (NTPORT), Joint Secretary of Miniatty of Housing
end Public Works (MOPW) and Dimscior (Survey) of Department of Land Records and Surveys (DLRS).
He also worked as Chairman of the Board of Directors in (1) Ashuganj Fertilizer Co Ltd; (2) TSP Company
Lod; (3) Earnaphally Papers Co Lid; (4) Camania Glass Sheet Facoory; (5) Janmne Fertilizer Compeny; (6)
CUEL Ltd; (7y Novatie Bangladesh Ltd.; (8) Syngents Bangladesh Ltd; (9) Smnoli Bangladesh Lid; (10)
Bayer Crop Science Bangladesh Ltd; (11} Chittagong Chermical Complex Lid, He was a Directos, Board of
Directons of (1) KAPCO Bangladeah Lid ) (2) Titas Ges Tranamission Co. Lid.; (3) Shahjalal Fertilizer Co Ltd
He retired from Civil Servics in 2017, Cumeatly, he is working a8 a Senior Consultant (Admin & Law)
in Digital Secarity Agency.

-

-

"

Md. Ekhlasor Rahman
Additions] Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh
& Director, POCL Boand

Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman joined Padma Cil Company Lid as a Director in March 2018, Mr, Md. Ekhlasur
Rehman, Addl. Secretary, Treasury and Debt Management Wing, Finance Divigion, Ministry of Finance,
obtamed his Graduation and Masters from the Department of Intfemnational Relations from University of
Dhaka. He alzo obtained a Post Gradnate Diploma in International Relation and Development from Institute
of Social Stadies (ISS), The Hague, and the Netherlands. Then in 200072001 he obiained an MBA degree
from Masstdcht School of Management (MSM), the Netherlands, He joined in the Andit and Accounis
Cadre in 1988 and served in different capacities. In 2006, he joined in Finance Division as Dieputy Secretary.
Warked there as Joint Secretary and presently he is working in Finence Division es Additional Secretary,

Mr, Rghmgn is the Director of Bangladesh Development Bank Lid (BDBL) and also serving as the
Chairmamn of Audit Committes there. He is also serving as a board member of Bangladesh Infrastruciume
Finance Pund Limited Bengladesh Cable Shilpa Lod, and Financial Repmting Couneil (FRC). He is also the
Board member of SAART Development Fumd (SDF),




ANNUAL REPORT
Brief Resume of Directors |

Dr. Mohd. Sher All

Joint Secretary

Enerpy und Mincral Resources Division
Mimistry of Power, Eoergy and Mineral Resources
& Direcior, POCL Board

D, Mohd, Sher Al joined Padma Oil Company Tid ss & Director in August 2017, He i3 also & member of
the Audit Committes and Nomination & Remimeration Committee (NFC) of the Company. Dr, Mobhd. Sher
Al i& & Joint Secretary of Bangladesh Government and currently working to the Energy and Mineral
Resources Division, Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources, He joined BCS (Admin.) Cadre as
Asgistant Commissioner and Magistrate in 1993 and serving long years in different capacities in field level
as well as in different ministries, He esmed Bachelor of Ars with Honours and Mastes of Arts in
Economics. He also completed Master of Philosophy (M. Phil) in Management He completed Daoctor' of
Philosophy (Fh. D) under Department of Banking and Insurance from University of Dhalka,

In service life he iz experienced of participation in diffesent raining, stody tour, confersace, Govermment
delegation, semingr, workshop ete, in home and abroad,

Mohammed Shahidul Alam

Director {Finance), BPC

(Joint Secretary to Govi, of Bangladesh)

& Director, POCL Board

Mr. Mohammed Shahidul Alzm is nominated as Director of Padma Odl Company Limited on 20th Angust

2019, He i3 also 8 member of the Andit Committes and Nomination snd Remuneration Committze (NRC)

of the Company. He cbtained his B.S.S and M.S.8 degree in International Relations from University of
Dhaks.

M. Mohammed Shahidul Alam, a cadre official of 15th B.C.S (Administration) served the nation as
Magistrate 1st clags Ac(land), Divisional Bstate officer of Bangladecsh Railway, UNO, Cantonrment
Executive officer, ADC, Deputy Dircctor of Depariment of Enovironment, Chiel Executive Officer of
Bandarban Hill District Comncil and Additional Divisional Commissisner of Chattogram.

Mr, Mohgmmed Shabidul Alam is & joint Secretnry to the Government snd now working as Director
(Finance) of Bangladesh Petrolsum Corporarion. He is also a Diector of LPGL and SAQCL Board.

13



ANNUAL REPORT
Brief Resume of Directors

KM Eneyetul Karim (Helal)
Independent Director, POCL Board

Mr. KM Eneyetnl Earim joined Padma Ofl Company Linnited as an Independent Director in 2018,
Hg is also a member of the Audit Commmitiee and Nomingtion & Remungration Clommities (NRC)
of the Company. He obtained Bachelor of Science from University of Rajshahi and MBA from
Uttars Univergity, Dhaka. He also obtained Masters of Tax Menagement (MTM) from University
of Dhaka.

Cunently, Mr. Karim is working as CEO of Times Textile Mills & Times Fashions, Mr. Karim
worked in several companies including Fakir Apparelz Lid. as an adviser, Mithila Textile Mills
Lid. as an excculive Director, Bhuiyan Texiile Mill Lid. & Pacific Spinning Mills Lid, a5 Gencral
Meanager (Marketing) and Tawaha Fabrics Ltd & Shell Textile, Dhaka st General Manager
(Admin & Marketing).

Mir. Karim is actively involved in various social activities like Charter President of a Rotary Club,
Rotary Intermational District-3281, Bangladesh, Khulne Computer Samity, Dhaks Royal Club Lid
etc. He is 2 member of Narayanganj Chamber of Commerce & Industries. He visited many countries.

¢ Nasirnddin Akhter Rashid
Shareholder Director, POCL Board.

M. Nasiraddin Akhter Rashid began his professionsl career at United Group es an Hxecutive at United
Hospital Lid. im 2006. In 2008, he wae appoimied as Management Traines at United Entecprises & Co.
Lud. following which he was appoinied as Associate Tirecior in 2009.

As g yovmg entreprencur, Mr, Nagimpddin Akhler Rashid’s involvement in busingss was well-imbued
with the core values of the Groop. His keen sense of professionalism led to his appointment as the
Director of United Enterpaises & Co, Ltd. im 2013, Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid is comrently in charge
of the administration wmit, land division, overseas trading, port, terninal and logistics operation of the
Group. Additionslly, be iz the Mansgimg Director of United Tank Tenmimel Lid., overseeing daily
aperations repulatory comipliance and terminal constructicn activities.

Mr. Nasdruddin Akhter Rashid serves as Ditector on the board of United Power Generation & Distribution
Company Ltd., United Anwara Power Lid., United Shipping & Logistics Services Ltd., United Hospital
Lid., Neptune Land Development Lid. etc, He is avidly invalved in social welfare activities and as such he
is 8 Member on the Board of Trustees of United International University and United Trust.

14



ANNUAL REPORT
Brief Resume of Directors

Suzedur Rehman
Director, POCL Board

Mr. Suzadnr Rahman is both 2 renowned business person as well ar a repuated political figare in
Bangladesh. He iz cuerently the member of the Publicity and Publication sub-committes of
Bengladesh Awami Lesgune. Previously he was alzo 8 member of the Forest and Bnvironment
sub-committes of Bangladesh Awami League. He also holds two Master’s Degree in both
Accounting Information System (AIS) and Health Beonomics from the University of Dhaka, He is
the founding chairman of G7 Secaritas Lid. — a leading security service provider in Bangladesh.
He iz a succesginl emreprensur with proven leadership role in different businesses. He is the
chairman of King Consultants Ltd., proprietor of M/S 8.5. Enterprise and chairman of Mindlahz Lid,
He iz a distingmished member of BASIS and Bangladesh Bridge Federation. In 2019 he accompanied
the Honorable Prime Minister of Bangladesh-Sheikh Hasina during her visit to USA for the 74th UN
Aszembly. In 2011 he travelled to China to perceive the activities of Chinese Communist Party
{CCP) as special envoy of Honorable Prime Minister of Bangladesh —Sheikh Hasina, He has also
visited over 30 countries of the world and enjoys visiting new places and countries.

i Md. Masudur Rahman
4 Managing Director, POCL
f & Director, POCL Board

Mr, Md. Masndur Rahman is the Managing Director of Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL), &
subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). He joined POCL as Managing Director on
2nd April, 2017 and was appointed as the Director of POCL Board on 16th April, 2017. Prior to his
joining n POCL, be also served az Managing Dirsctor of Jamuna il Company Limitsd (JOCL)
from 23.02.2015 to 01.04.2017. He was appointed as the Director of GTCL Board on 8th
September 2019. Mr. Rahman joined as an Operstions Engineer at Meghna Petrolemm Limited,
another sobsidiary of BPC, on 4th March, 1990, He has over 30 years of professiona] experisnce in
the country's downztream petrolewm induziry.

Mr. Md, Masudur Rehman completed his BSc in Engincering (Mech.) from Banglacesh University of

Hngincermg & Technology (BUET) and EMBA in Fingnce from Umnivenity of Science and Technology,
Chattogram (UUSTC), He sttended various seminges and training courses at home and abwoad.

15



Md. Masudur Rahman
Managing Director

Y .::'j !
Md. Abu Saleh Igbal Md. Aminul Haque
General Manager (Ops. & Planning) Goeneral Manager

i

" — Sohel Abdullah Md. Mahbubul Alam
H“mﬂc; Ah'l‘“d Taffader Company Sacretary & Deputy Gensral Managsr
neral Manager General Manager (Marksting) (Aviation)

18



Md. Shahldul Alam Md. Abdus Sobhan
Deputy General Manager Deputy Genaral Manager
{(HR & Admin) (Operations)

. C.M Zlaul Hassan Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCNA
""ﬁ“““é"“‘l‘; Hossain Deguiy General Mansger Deputy Gensral Manager
puty General Manager (Engg. & planning) (Accounts) & CFO

A.K.M Hablbur Rahman A.K.M Fazle Elahes
Deputy General Managear Assletant General Manager
{Chamleals) {Audit)

17
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Corporate Information

Company Secretary
Sohel Abdullah

Lagnl Advisors
H & H Company
Lex Counsal
Tan]lb Alam & Assoclates
Barrigter HM Siddigue Shan]id
Advocate Mohsanuddin Chowdhury
Advocata §. C. Lala

Tax Consultant

Hoda Vasl Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accourtants
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| PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE FOR 2019-20 |

Fuel Oll Salss

Net Profit before Tax

Net Profit after Tax

Eamings per Share

O ® ¢

NAY per gshare

157.64

NOCF per share
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Chairman's Statement

Bismigahir Rehmanir Aakim
Honorabis Shareholdars,
Assalamu Alallaim,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Padma Ol
Company Umtted (PGCL) and mysslf, | welcome all of
you ko the 51st Annual General Mesting. Dezplte the
global Impact of GOVID-18, the Company has made
significant profit In the FY 2015-20 with the alncare
efforts of s manpower at all levels. At the same time,
the Company has been able to provide high stendard
of services, adhem to business sthics and regulations
compéance, practice to the nomm of good govemance
and comtinuously improve the shareholders’ value. |
exteryd my sincers thanka to you all for your continued
supgtat and unwensring Sonfidencs an ua, Through
this program, | would likey to presant 10 you the succoss
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and buslness results of the Company In the fiacal year
2018-20).

Business Emvironmant In FY 201520 :

The giobal economy Iz In & maljor crisls due to the
outbreak of GOVID-18. Al rich and poor counires
have been affectad by Corona. Most of tha countrea In
the world have predicted that thelr country’s Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) wlill shrnlc Bangladesh
econgmy has achleved unpracadentad suceess in nacant
years. But due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the sconomy
of Bangladesh hag affecisd llke other countries of the
workd sapecially in the last 4 months of the reported
financlal year. According to the provislanal estimates of
Bangladesh Bursau of Statistics {BBS), the growth rais of
Grosa Domestic Product {(GDP) of the country ls 5.24%
FY 2018-20, which I8 2.81% lesa than the 8.15% of the
previous flacal year. The avermge annual Inflation rate in
the raported flecal year was 5.85%, while ths gevammaent
target was 5.50%. The average annual ifiation In the
reporied flecal yoar was 0.15% higher than the
govemment tagst dus o the rise in prices of eeaantial
food Hems due to the Coronavirue. For the same reason,
sdle of petrolaum producty was remarkably declined in
the lagt quarter of the reported year. In eddition, the use
of cBesal in the power sector has decreasad significanty
a3 dissel-powered powsr plants run an liqusfled natural
gas (LNG) in the country, A8 a result, il eale of
petroleum products In the country decreased by 15.88%
In the reported vear g8 compeared ta the previous year, In
the raported year, the total salea of pelrolsum producta in
the country through the subskilary companies of
Bangladash Petroleun Corporation Is amournted to 55.08
lakh mefric tons, which wag 8550 lakh mefric tang In the
last year. The estimated demand for petroleum products
in the country was fed at 70.50 lakh metric tone for the
FY 2019-2020.

Business Performance in FY 2018-20:

The rewiew shows that the sales volume of the
Company’s petroleum products atood at 19.83 lakh
metric tone In FY 2019-20 which weas 22.81 lakh metric
tons In FY 2018-19. The naiormwide lockdown dus to
the outbreak of COVID-19 In March 2020, led to &
slgnificant drop In fuel ol consumptlon In the last
quarter of the year. For the game reagon, the salas of
aviation fuel decreased by 84,730 metric tons i.e
19.83% a8 compared to the previous fiscal yaar due to
limited operation of international and domestic
airerafts, which I3 one of the maln reasons for the
decline of the Compasty's total fuel sales, A & result,
the Company’s total fusl eales decreasad by 18.18% In
this fiacal year as comparsd to the the previous year.
Tha Company had a markat shars of 35.88% In fual ol
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marketing of the couniry and was ranked ascond
amang fusl oil mareting companies in FY 2018-20. On
the other hand, dus b the effects of the COVID-19
apidemic, heavy rains and prolonged fioods in many
distrcis, gales of the Company's agrochemicats
products decreased by 12.74% to 2,088 metric tons in
the year under review, from 2,384 metrc tons In the
previous fiscal year. The Company’s main business is
to market of petrclaum products which decreased In
the reported year compared to the previous year. As a
result, the profit badore tax of the Company in thig year
declined by 4.52% to Taka 36381 crore from Tala
381.03 crore of the previous year, Eaming per Shars
(EPS) stood at Teka 27.78 In the reporisd year, s
against Teka 20.07 of the last year, Varlious steps have
bean taken by the Company to Incresse the sales
volume of petraleum preducts and te mitigate opsrating
loss of agrochemicals buslness. Autc gas (LPG)
marketing activiios are baing undortaken at the Mling
staflons under the Company's markeling natwork
netionwide mlong side pstroleum products. The
Company haz slready slgned agreements with 3
(Thres) autogas oparators in thie regand. In onder to
mitigate the cpamting loss of agrochamicals business,
appropriate steps have taken to reduce the owverall
operating expancliure by reviewing the current market
sagment and closing the offices of the comparatively
less selling meglons by congolidating with adjacent
offices and by reorganizing the manpower. As a result,
the Company has been able o reduce operating
axpensas in the agrochemicals busineas by 32.14% in
the year under neview comparad o the the Lagt vear.

Prograsa of development worka In FY 2019-290:

A numbar of projects hewve besn undartaken for the
axpansion of tha Company's business which ame In
progresa. The consiruction of 23 storsd Heed office
multl-storied bullding having 2 basaments and 1
saml-basement st Agrabad Commesclal Area In
Chattogram on D.42-acre of the Company's owned
land ks In progresa. Meanwhils, the work of basamant
and seml bassments haes boen completed. Al presant,
the appoiniment of the consultant l& In the process for
medification of the design of the building. The activities
of the tander floating to appolnt & contrucior, far the
congtruction of a 12-storied modem residsntial cum
commercial bullding with twe addiional bassments on
the Company's 1.88-acre owned land at Paribag,
Dhaka are In the final stage. In addition, a project of
automation has been underaken to modemize
operational activities at Maln Instalation of three ol
marketing companies including Padma Oil Gompany
Limitad. Far this purpose, an Intemational consultant
has already been appointad. The feasibility study of the
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project by the consulting firm is also underway, The
opsrational acthvities In varous depots establlshed In
different placas of the country will akso ba modemized
in phases. In arder to expand the Company's business,
8 confractor hes already been appointad by floating
tender to bulld & parmanent rverine dapot at Bhalrab
Bazar replacing existing barge depot. Constructon
work will start scon. The Company also recshved
approval from the Minlstry o acgulre land for
caonstruction of a permanent rivering depat at Barshal
replacing existing barge depot and other scthvities
relatiryg to the said project are undarway. The Company
has get the final approval from the Ministry regarding
DPP of the projact for installation of Jet A-1 undenground
pipeline threugh Jehurul Hegue Base, Bangledesh
Alrforce, Chattogram and Shah Amenat Alport,
Chattogram to supply Jst A-1 fusl to the Company's Jot
A-1 depot adjoining Shah Amanat Alrport thraugh
pipaling from the Comparny’s Man Instaliation in Patenga
and an Intemational tender has been fipated for the
sppuintment of a contracior for the work. Besides, thers
are several development projects under progress
Including expanalon of depot and physlcal Infrasirueciural
expansion program to ensure uniterrupted supply of
petrolaum products throughout the country and providing
more services 1o the consumens.

We are werkdng hard to Increass the long-term
sharsholders' value by our diligencs and contlnuous
efforts for the commitment & our valued sharsholderns,
This yaar, the Board of Direclors hag recommandad to
pay cash dividend at the rate of 126 % to the
hangrable sharsholders.

Our Motio:

You kmow that fuel sactor ls the most Important gector of
the acanomy. Microaconomic indicators are baing greatly
influanced by the supply and change of prica of the
petrolsum products. Dilmarketing companiea give more
priarity towards the sarvices of the paapie of ths counfry.
Padma Ol Company Limited. Is ona of the leading fuel o
ue well as agrochemicals marketing Compenies In the
country. The Company ks playing important role In the
ovarall aconomy of the country through the unimesmupdsd
supply of petroleum products all over the country.
Moreover, the Comparry has besen contributing to the
agro bassd economy through e production and
merketing of agrochemicals products. The agricutiursl
gactor Is the most Impartant sector In Bangladesh
economy. it employed a lame portion of Banpledesh's
fetal labor fores and accotding to the eetimate of
Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics {BBS), it accountad for
about 13.36 percent of GDP in FY 2018-20. The main
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goal of the Company Is to ensure supply of fuel ofl to the
doorstepa of the people on time et govermment's fixed
prica through proper management of the Company and to
oparate marketing aciiviies In organized way. Beslkdes,
the Company is also frying to strengthen the supply of
amvironmental-friandly and quallty agrochamicals
producis to Increasa the preduction of agricultural
produciz and providing services to the consumers
through organized markating acthities.

Focus an FY 2020-21 :

Our focues on FY 2020-21 will be ko ensure energy
securly of the country through uninterrupted supily of
quallty petroleumn producte at govemment regulated
prica. In addition, the Company's alm Ig to strengthen
the supply of environmental-fiendly and proper
agrochemical products acnoss the country to Increasa
the countrny's agricultural production. We want fo take
forward the projects sdopted by the Company to
expand the business. Above all, our goal for the next
your is o maximize the sharsholdars’ vakue by saming
significant growth on profttablity of the Company.

Thanke & Gratitude :

Araly, | wauid (ks to conwey my sincera thanks and
profound gretihkde to Energy & Mineral Resources
Dhdslon and Bangladacsh Pefroleum Ceosporation for the
imely and proper dirsctions, | would alec like to thank
each member of the Board of Direclors for their collective
affarts and the maragement team, all the officlals and
slaff of the Company for thelr sincens siforts and supports.
Without thelr co-operations it was not possible for the
Company to achleve I daslred goal. | express my
gratitlude bo Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and
Firmz, Bangledesh Securities and Exchangs Commission,
Dhaka Stock Exchange Lid., Chittagong Siock Exchange
Lid, Central Doposilery Banpiadesh Lbd, cwr audiorm,
cusiomers and all wellwishar of the Company for thelr
support and directians.

Alieh Hafaz

0

{Mid Anksur Rahmen)

Cheiman
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Bosard of Directors' Report

Bismilishir Rahmanir Rahim,
Desar Shamholdars,
Assalamu Algilum,

The Board of Direclors of the Pedma Oll Company
Limited talea immense pleasure o present the it
Annual Repot of the Company t0 our valued
sharehakisre, it I8 an honer for the Boand of Directors
to presant the Oirectors’ Report together with the
audited Financlal Statements of the Company for the
year endad 30 June 2020 and the Audiors' Report
theraon o our vaiued shareholdars for consldemation
and approval,

The Directors' Repert containg an evervisw of the
Bangiadesh economy, Petrpleum and Agrochemicals
Indusiries, the financlal, operaling and corporate
responalbliity, periormancea of the Company In FY
2019-20 and highlights the total position and opportunity
of the Company,

Preparstion of Finencial Stetements :

The Financlal Statements of POCL ghve & comect and
fair view of the siate of affaira of the Company and the
results of ity operation, cash ficw and changes in equity.
The presonted financial statomsnts have been propared
in compliance with the International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and International Anancial Reporting
Starciards (IFAS) and In accomance with the relevant
requiramants of the scheduls to the Bangladesh
Securiies and Exchangs Rules, 1987, in conformity
with the Companiea Act, 1994 and to give a comact and
fair view of the total business activities of the Company
to our sharaholders. The financlel statements are
prepared by the managemant, audited by the exismal
auditors appointed In the Annual Genaral Mesting and
approved by the Board of Directors.

Economic Shustion :

The GOVID-19 has had & huge nagative Impact on the
gichal sconomy i1 the yaar under review. The growth
rate of GDP In almpst all countries of the world has
slowsd down. The first outbreak of the sald vinus In
Chine was In Movembar, 2019. The first coronavius
infection was detected in Bangladesh in March, 2020,
Bangladesh's ectnomy has achieved unprecedanted
success In recont vears. But dus to COVID-18
pandemic, the sconomy of Bangiadesh has affectsd
llks other pounires of the warld in the reported yesr.
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The gevemment has declared a general holiday from
28 March 2020 to curb the spread of coronavinus. After
the end of the gensral holiday on 30 May 2020,
scanomic activities gradually began to retum to
ncrmal. Alhouwgh the wodd's economies have
collapssd due ®© the Coronavirus, Bangladesh has
achieved the highest GDP In Asla as a result of tha
govemmeant's proper and imely acton,

According to the provislonal estimate of Bangladash
Bursau of Statistics (BBS), the GDP growth mte stood
at 5.24 parcant In FY 2018-20. As a result of COVID-15,
the govemment werad the Inlilal GDP growth tanget
from 8.20 percent to 5.20 percent in the reporied vear.
Revised targets ara est by lowerng the inttlal QDP
targets of al countries In the workl. The GDP growth
rate was B.15 percent in the last fiscal year,

The Industrial sector growth decreasad by 8.19 percent
to 8.48 parcant In FY 2018-20, from the previous year's
12.87 parcant. The shars of the Industry sector In GDP
was 35,.38% in FY 201920 which was 35.00% in the
last fiscal year. The agricultural secter growth
decreasad to 3.11 percent In FY 2018-20 from 3.82
parcent in FY 2018-19. The sgriculiural secior is the
mpst Imporiant sechor In Bangladesh economy. It
employad about 38.00 percent of Bangladesh's total
labor foree and accounted for about 13.35 percant of
GOP In this FY 2018-20. Accornding to the BBS's
provislonal estimate, the service sactor growth shood at
532 percent decreasad by 1.46% from 6.78 percent in
FY 2018-18. Degpita the ongoing COVID-18 pandamic,
the remittance Inflow In FY 2019-20 increased by 10.87
parcent o starnd at US$ 18,21 blion from the US$
16.42 blllon In the previous fiscal year. The
govemmant's Incantive and the warous supporting
policies provided by the Bangladesh Bank have
contributed to achlsve the new record of Inwand
remitance. The country’s forelgn sxchange reserves
reached at USS 36.04 billon on 30.08.2020, The par
capita national Incoms rose by USS 155 ko USE 2084 In
the year under review from US$ 1908 in the fiscal year
2018-18.

The govemment had tangeted 10 maintain avoregs
inflation within 5.50 perceant In FY 2018-20. The
avemges Inflation stood et 5.86 pacent in FY 2013-20
that was 5.48 psrcent In FY 2018-18. The average
annual Infiatlan for the reported year s elighily higher
than the revisad targst set by the govemment due to
the rise In prices of essentlal foed Ikems dus to the
prevalence of Coronavins.
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Industry Review :
{m}) Fuel Sector:

The organized management and uninterupted supply
of fusl oll play a malor role In the economic
development of the country. Fuel oll Iz the mest diving
force of the economy which 8 regarding as the moet
priciized sector. it has a great influence directty ar
Indirectly In all economic seciors.

Increasing of fual oll demand Iz the one of the maln
indexes of the development. In 1872, the owerall
demand of fusl ol In the country was 8.48 lakh mefric
tons, which Increaesed graduslly to 55.08 lakh metrc
tons in FY 2018-20, Dus to the impact of Garonavirus,
the use of petroleum producis declined eignificantly In
the lest 4 months of the year urder review. As a rezsult,
fotal sales of fusl oil of the country decreasad by
15.88% to 55.03 lakh mefric tone from 65.50 lakh
metric tons of the last year. In order to mest the
demand of fusl all In the couniry 40.41 lakh mefric tons
refined fuel oll and 11.52 lakh meirc tonz of crude ol
wera imported rom abroad in FY 2018-20. i is to be
noted here that cruds ofl I8 baing refined at Eastem
Refinery Limited, the only one In the country. Besldes,
total 4.76 lakh metrc tons fusel oil wes produced by
varipus local ges fleids under publle sector and
different fractionatlon plants under private ascior. Of
that, it was 2.14 lakh meiric tons from povemment gas
fisids and 262 lakh meirle tong from private
fractionation plants.

Product wiss sals of petrolsum products In ths coundry:
In the flecal year 2019-20, the salee of different grades
of patrolsum praduct In the country are as follows:

sty Parcerings of
Product ?:ln MT)  Totel Sales (%)
Jet A-1 3,45,126 6.27
Octane 2,82 825 478
Peirol 3,22 432 5.08
Kerosens 1,05,851 182
Diesal 40,293,408 73.11
Fumece Oil 3,864,241 6.62
LDO 260 0.00
JBO 12,738 0.23
Lubs OIl 21,128 0.38
5BPS 503 0.01
MTT 5,548 0.12
LPG 18,421 0.24
Bitumen 24,801 0.45
Total 55,08,091 100.00
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Sactor wise fusl consumption In the country:

Most of the pstrolaum products In Bangladesh are
used in four major sectors namely tanspodt,
agriculture, industry and power, The details of the

pairolesm products used In FY 2018-20 and 2018-18
are a8 follows :

W @R () ewhER R ( Gy In MT)
kol 580983 Jroo JoAEew Sugy  eelor ig20 O 20168 06
B dwew e owew e MmAe  m w0 omes e
U ] . ]

ﬁ!l‘ ﬂ:’:::: ;' :: :i:i:’::: ::': Power 71,021 8.74 11,2338 17.16
il ’ 5 1 : Transport 36536488 6427 3710211 GB6.84
RO 3058 8B @308 BV DomemifOmers 1,83741 334 252340  5.86
117 g¢0008) Joo00 HESRERY o000 Tote 66,05,001 100.00 0549507 100.00

( Sector wisa Patroleum Ol Sala - 2019-20 (%) \

700 64.27

60.00

50.08

4100

w0 £ 18.00

20.00 - 7.85 874 334

o r —

000 : :

\ Agrcutiure  Industry Power Transgport  Othars
GO W v Retonerrtll Reawe Division wiss fuel consumption In the country:
Jo3¥-38 6 Jodd-j0 R ol ity ceory 1N he FY 2019-20 and FY 2018-19, division wise salea
Retvredt Ry Rgat - of petroleum preducts In the couniry are as follows:
Rt o (o1 ¥-3b (Qty In MT)

Ehto@F)  (K) wreh@R K)o am@ (%) B8 (W)

il ’:::*f"“ "‘:: ‘::}"*'“" “:-: Chattogram 11,65,003 2117 1482650 2264
i ABNG: S & Syt 202984 369 2138056 328
b "":-::':: “:: *?“:f::g ":: Dhaka 2048522 723 2345784 3581
TR s 1 r.;:‘m oy Mymemsing 138804 254 172121 28
e ; - Rajshai BG0583 1200 658585 13
W Q,W,E':b' Lo S,ﬂo,hﬂ‘h LI Hﬂnmr mlﬁlla T.ﬂﬂ 4.“.9?9 5.73
YR 88330 .8 98B0 WM g4, 647267 1176 784140 1213
T Q6008 B4y REEO O pug  2EasM 458 241528 389
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The details of the sale ard markst share of three major

marketing companies are as follows In the flecal year
2018-20;

Company's  Totaleals  Mariet
[T (T Inlakh) Share(%) Posltion
MPL 18.88 58.27 1at
POCL 18.83 3588 2nd
JOCL 14.89 27.04 and

.

\.

Market Share (%) 2018-20

N

E MPL
m POCL

| JUGL/

Tty it wiviFr corerr «ifies oy

<o T CFrfReTea I oot R g T
w @t T, oft Wi Freb Snerw, b
F-abr it gt Uity ow Sl B S
Fraifire wiog | ews Frefhaer ar worf o«
ez o1t cErii Briver, 3 vbiont Hiw Brivwr, ot

Trangpart poal of Tusl ol marksting companies:

At presant, there are 91 costal tankers, 04 shallow
drafi tankers and 71 bay ¢roasing shelikay draft tarkars
ard 15 minl oll tankems In threa fuel cll marketing
companieas' transpart pool of palroleum prodiscts.
Amang them, POCL haa 37 costal tankers, 01 shallow
draft tankers, 25 bay crogsing shallow draft tanioarg
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and 04 minl ol tankers In the FOCL"s transport pool of
petrclaum products. It '8 mentionsble hare that about
B4% of the fusl ol Iz transportad through the river, 8%
fual oil i ransponted by railway and rest of 7% fusl cil
is fransported on the road.

Mariesting metwark of fusl oll marksting companios:
At present, there are 2260 filling stations, 2818
agents/detribuiors, packed peint dealars and 3,128
LPQG dealers and 116 marine daalers in the marksting
natwork of 3 (Thres) ol markeling companlea In the
country. Among them, POCL hes 657 filling siatons, 854
agantidistributors, 217 packed point dealers, 732 LPG
dsalers and 51 marine deelars in ite marketing network.

(&) Agrochemicals Soctor of the Couniry;

Thare I8 no altemalive but to Increase tha agricubiural
production In this coundry of agro based economy. it ls
essontial to use modam agricuthual inputs such as high
bresd sesds and fertilizer 28 wall a8 peeticides to
Increase production. In arder ko mest the faod demand of
the country's growing populetion, there has been created
a market of pesfickdas along with modemizaion of
egricuture. More then 250 domestic end mulii-netional
companiss insluding Padma Oil Company Limited have
bean marksting varous types of pesticide produss In this
couniry which ame contributing significantly to the
production and pressrvation of agricuturel crops. In FY
2018-20, tha seles of agrochemlcalz products In
agrochemical industry waa about 38,000 mefric tons
which was 34,500 mefric tane in the |est fiscal year,
Among them, Padma Oll Company Limited's sakes figune
was 2,088 metric tons.

At prasent, the Company has marksied 43 agrochemicals
products. Of these, 17 producis are reglatered In the
name of the Company and the remalning products are
from vardous mulinationel companlez such as BSF
Bangladash Limited, Hayehem Bangladesh Limited and
Riceca Bangladosh Limited.

Agrochemical pastlcldes are playing & vital role In
Bangladash agriculiure. Sevaral ressarch studias have
shown that the use of pesticide protducts corfributes
significantly to Incraass the productivity and production
of agricultural products.

POCL Activities :

The principal activities of the Company ane procuremant,
storage and maresting of petroleum products, kébrcating
& greaezes, bitumen and LPG. In addition, the Company
has been engaged with production and markesting of
agrochemicals producis. Thus, the Company’s business
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has two reportable segments (a) Petroleum and (b)
Agrochemicals.

Company's Business parformance: 2019-20:

(n) Petroleum Products

The Compary’s total sales of petraleum products were
19.63 lakh metric ®ons as aganst 22.81 lakh matric
tons in the last year, The Company's fusl oil sales
decieased by 13.18% In FY 2018-20 over the last
yaar, In the cormesponding year, among the petrelsum
products, sales of M3 Incressed by 3.86% and LDO
188.18% compared to the last year, On the other
hand, during the year under review sales of Karpssene
decreaged by 0.82%, Diesel 8.61%, Octane 3.89%,
FO 4G.18%, JBO 3.49%, MTT 33.35%, Aviation fusi
19.82%, SBP 85.09%, Lube & Grease 8.71% and
Bliumen, LPG & otheras 57.72% compared fo the
previious fiscal year. Due to the outbreak of COVID-18,
the use of fusl oll decreasad significantly In the last 4
months of the reportied year. For the same reason, duse
to limited operation of intemational and domeatic
aircrafts, the salas of aviation fuel decreased by
84,750 metric tons L8, 19.83% as compared to the
pravious fescal year, which ia ong of the main reasons
for the decline of fucl salea. In addtion, dus to the use
of gas in dssalbassd power plants, the demand for
diesel has docreased In power sactar. Further, due to
import of lumace ol by private power plants, the aales
of fumace oll aleo decreased over the last vear,

(b) Agrochemicals Products

During the wear under review, the Company's
agrechemkals sales steod at 2,088 meiric fone as
against 2,384 matric fons In the |ast year. Tha sales of
the Company’s agrochemicals products decreased by
305 meatric tons Le. 12.74% In the year under raview
comparsd to the previous fiscal year. The outhreak of
COVID-12 In the last quartar of the reparted year and
prolonged floods In several disfricke have led to a
decline in sales of agrochemicals producis compared
to the pravious fiscal year. The Company |ost 8 market
share of mome than 3000 metric tons agrochamicals
products as the sale of the Company's best-selling
product Furadan 5G was stopped due to & govemment
decigion. Tha process of mareting twe granular
products such as Optimus 58 (FMC ,USA) and Ugenl
3@ (UPL, India) has already started to cover the
shortfall of Furadan SG. In eddition, the Comgany Is In
the process of Imperiing two herbicikdes registered In
s cwn name for markeding from the cument ssason. It
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would be poesible to sell 2500-3000 metric tons
Optimus 5G yearly. If It b marketed by formulsting, it
will ba possible ko eall It at competive market prica, To
this end, the Company has planned to formulate and
markst the product at the sxsting plant of the maln
instaliation of the Company. It |a mentionable here that
the registration of the product has already been
trarvsferrad from FMC to Padma Of Company Ltd,

Various steps have been taken by the Company to
reduce the cperating ioss In the agrochemicals
business. In order to mitigets the cperating lees of the
agrochamicals business, the cumant mearkst ssgment
ia reviewad and the affices in the letser sslling areas
are closad and integreted with the nearty officas. In
addition, appropriaie steps have been taken to reducs
overall opanting costs in the sector by controlling
expenditure through reorganizing manpower. A
committea constituted by the Company la ragulary
reviewing the sslling prica of homogensous products
of the competing companies and re-determining the
price of the products from tima to ime accordingly. As
a result, the Company was able to reduce a 32.14%
operating boss In the agrochemicals busingss In the
reported year comparsd to the previous fiscal year,
Company's Disiribution Nebwork :

Padma Cf Company Limiled has a strong marketing
network across the country, There are 2,551
distributars in the Company af different levels in the
sourtnys important placs in the marketing netwark of
petrolaum products as on 30.08 2020 a= follows:
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On the other hard, the Company employs 373 licansed
agrochemicals distributors acrosa the country and
supplies products to farmera through sbout 10,000
licenzed vendore.
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Company's Depot Melwori :

Curently there are 20 depots of the Company across the
country Including Main Installatlon to operate the
Company's oparabional activities. Amonyg these, there ars &
Maln Installstion, B{nine) Riverine depots, B{sh) Rall-haad
depols, 3{thres) Aviation depote and ancther one depot for
recelving fuel oll dirsctly through plpsllne from
Brahmanbaria Gae Field, The Companty ie solaly supplying
Aviation fusl Jet A-1 to the domestic and overseas alrerafis
at the three imemational airports (Hezrat Shahjalal
international Almport, Dhaka, Hazrat Shah Amanat
Intemational Akport, Chattogram and Csmani Intsmational
Alrport, Syihet). In addition, the Company operates Hs
marketing activities of agmchemicals products through 13
depols across tha country.

Company's Storege Capacity :

Currently, the iotal storage capecity of petroleum
products In the couniry is 13.03 lakh mefric tone. Of
that, there are 5.02 lakh mefric fons storage capacity of
Eastarn Refinery Limited, 2.80 lakh metric tons storage
capacity of Padma oil Company Limited, 2.33 lakh
metric tang storage capachy of Meghna Petroloum
Umited and 2.15 lakh meiric tors storege capaciy of
Jamuna Ol Company Limited. The glorage capacty of
fual ol at Maln Installation and varkoes depots of the
Company as on 30 June 2020 ks ag folkews:

Depot Namas Siorage Gapactiy ( Gty in MT)
Main Installation, Chattogram 141,673
Ciovderail Dagoot, Narsmrangonj 30,534
Caulatpur Dapct, Khulna 24,2682
Mongia OI inatallstion 85,000
Baghahari Depot, Sirajgon] 22,048
Chandpur Depat, Chandpur 4280
Ashuganj Depot, Brahmanbaria 2741
Brahmanbaria Depot 2917
Ehaimb Bazar Dapot 641
Eyihat Dopot 2,829
Srimangal Dapot 1,181
Parcatipur Deppot 5275
Rangpur Depol 15
Netore Daopot 851
Rajshahl Depot Bupply dirctty from Raliwey Weagon
Barishal Bergo Dapot, Barishal )
Jhalaket Dapot 2861
Kurmiila Aviation Degal 8478
Cremanl inismeational Aliporl Depot 1,071
£heh Amanet imismafional Akport Dapal =i
Totsl 280,772
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Financisl Result: 2019-20 ;
The Directore tale immense pleasure in reporting the
following finaricial results of the Gompany for the year

ended 30 June 2020 ; Taks In crore
Particullses 201820 24618 % Change
Chaote SNt oo i podhiots 21581 28520 {2454
Nt esmings on petolmm preducs 21848  fBEST {24.50)
Ciparating expenaog {230.41) (2p5a0) [204)
Cpemting Proft on petrolsam f11.84) 5338 (122.9m
Dthar oparsling Incoms -almieum o4 e 208
Opesaiing Low on Agrochamioeli keding e 42l {2.08)
Toil opamiing proft 725 1S4 {45.84)
Mori-apareting income 3057 2r05 1622
Prmfit belcm WPPF 38298 4008 453
Carribotion ko WPPF {1815 (20.05 {4.48)
Mat Profit Befors |noon tax Ml o 28]
Prowviaion for Incomea Tex SOBY (8540 f4.68)
Mt Profit ahar tex 208 935KG 4.41)
Sumpdua from kresainme ransk o

Dupraclation Furd Ressn {8L.68) . -
Tow compoberchyhonefrbeyerr 2600 28586 020 GBA)
Ananclal Rewiew :

A financial review on the Company’s financlal resuits In
FY 2019-20 has described balow:

Gross Eamings on Petroleun Products :

In financial year 2018-20, Gross Eamings on petroleum
products siood at ke 216.81 crome with a decline of
24.33% comparsd with taka 286.20 crore of the
previous year,

Net Eaminga on Patroleum Products :

Tha Company's Nat Earmings on petrolaum products k2
Taka 218.48 crare In FY 2018-20 that was Taka
288.57 crore In the previous fiscal year, regletering a
decrease rate of 24.30%,

Total Operating Profit on Petroleum :
Total Operating proftt Including other oparating hcome
on petroleum products decreassd by 45.42% to taka
75.47 crore durlng the year undar review compared to
taka 138.28 crore of the previous year, Total operating
profit declined due to the breakout of GOVID-19 which
regultad In a significant decrease In sales of various
grades of fusl ol specially Aviation fusl {Jst A-1).

Operating loss on Agrochemicals Trading :

Az a result of various sieps taken by the Management
Authorities, the Company was able to reduce 32.08%
cperating loss In the agrochemlcals buginess In the
reported year companed to tha previous year. During the
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your undar review, the cperating loss in the agrochemicals
buginess wag 2.85 crore 85 against Taks 4.24 crome In
the last year. Al acthitles are continulng to maks the
agrochemicals business profitabla,

Total Operating Expsnases :

Az 8 result of the strict cost control pollcy of the
menagement, tolal opemiing expenses were Taka
230.41 crore In the reported year es against taka
23520 crome In the last ysar. In the reporied year, the
Managemsnt Authorty tled to limit the Company'a
administrative, sales and distibution expsnses within
the estimated costs through cost austerty and cost
control. As a result, the Company was able fo reducs
total operating expenses in the reported year by 4.79
crore La, 2.04% over the last year,

Total Opersting Profit

During the year undar review, total operating profit was
72.68 crome B3 againat 134.04 crore of the last year,
ghowing a decino of 45,84%.

Non-operating Incoms :

Man-oparating Income weas Taka 310,37 crore In FY
2018-20 which I8 18.22% higher than Taka 287.05
crore of the last year.

Nat Profit befors Income Tax :

Mat Profit before Income Tax decreased by 4.52% fo
Teka 383.81 crore during the year under review, from
taka 381.03 crone In tha previous flaeal yaar.

381.03

Nat Profli Before Income Tax (Taka In Crore)
448.02

363.81
I e 260920
- . E = Al = e By e

\ 201820 201818 201718 201617  2015-16

\

wae F e
Joss-30 TR I B R 1wl peae
ol BT T 8,83 % 30 2o Wi Lt I B

Net Profit efter Tax :

Net profit after tax decreased to Taka 272.88 crore In
FY 2019-20 from Taka 285.55 crore of the preceding
year registering & decrease of 4.41 parcent.
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Rfor : Retums :
(3) B HRr oy =t ([} Returng On Asvets
wioTs ot fb =W wiEh e aso%, ot 7w Retum on Assets stood at 2.80% durng the year
T e 5.2 % | ’ under raview, as againt 1,72% in the last year,
/ Ratum on Assats (%) \
201518 /185
201617 11.38
2017-18 | 1188
2018-18 11.72
2018-20 i?.Bﬂ
\ 0 0.5 1 15 2 25 :'i/
() Fwor oy Tl - (Ify Retums On Equity :
o s FiH ww ARl fm yo.ea%, A e ofeem Retum on Equity was 17.38% during the year that was
fior 30,0¢6% | 20.35% in the last year.

/ Return on Equity (%) \
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o bW . Eaming per Shara (EPS) :
®o W, doko WWew cereiFe i 4R W YWW EpS stood at Taka 27.78 a5 on 30 June 2020, which
29.q» B, W oo W aodh WBOW BT 25,09 BT was Taka 20.07 In the last yesr.
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Met Asasts value per shar :

Mot Assels value per share recorded at Tala 157.84
&8 an 30 June 2020 compared to Taka 142.85 of the
previcus year, showing an Increasa of 10,35 percant.

TR P Yo, 00 WOTCT I ciTaR |
( MNat Assat Value Per Share (Amount In Taka) \
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Dhvidand :

Shareholders' retum s always key prorty to tha Board
of Direchors of the Company, The Board plaased to
recammend i pay 125% percent cash dividend le.
per share Taka 1250 to the shareholders for the year
2019-20. The rscommeandsd dividend It approved oy
the sharsholdars at the Annual Genaral Maeting Taka
122,78 crore will be distributed among the
shamsholdars.
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Sharoholders' Equity :

The Compary's Board of Directors is constantly trying to
raige the Company’s growth and promote the infarests of
Sharsholkders, But dus ¥ raquirement of huge mansy for
Company’s future planning, & major pordon of the
Compamy's net profit is being trensfermed o the Retained
pamings. Shareholders’ Fund increasad by taka 145.28
crore or 10.35% to Teka 154854 crore from Taka
1,403.28 crore as per financlal stetements for the year
aended 30 June 2020. Peld up cephal of Pedma O
Company Limhed was Taka 98.23 crore during 2018-2020.
Ratalned eamings Incresssd by 10.85 parcant to Taka
1,448.64 crore In this year from Taka 1505.04 crore of the
previaus year. Tha strong position In Shareholders' fund

=i SRy gwit FEERT wee s | will enabla the Company o expand its buginess In future.
/ Sharehoelding Position (%) \
6008
50.00
£5.00 -
30.00 18,63
14.57
7000 7.70 ot 837
1.28
ool | om o= = W
Plblc ann qun Indviduals
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Significant varance In the quarterdy end annual
Financial Sistamemts:

Thers was no significant variance between quartery
perfformanca and overall annual performancs.

Ruelated Party Traneactione:

During the year, the Company carmied out & mumber of
fransactions with related perties In the normel coures of
business In accordance with the provisions of 1AS-24,
Datalls of related partiss trensactions heve basn declossd
under Note Ne.-35.00 of the Financlal Statements.

Protection of Minority Sharsholders :

The minority sharehokders of the Company have
always besn proteciad from the abusive actions by, or
in the Interest of, confralling sharsholtars action slther
directy or Indirectly through the efficlent handing of
manapemsnt. The Company I fully committed to the
falr and equal treatment to all kind of sharehelders. We
are always aciive to create & culiure so that the
minority sharsholkders shall have the rights to propose
hems In the agenda of the general meeting. The
minority shareholders have access to any and all
infrmation releting to mattera for which the
management ks accountabls for and should discloas to
the sharsholders. All thess activitiss are taken for
Inzuring the lawiul Interest of minority shareholders.
Shareholdera’ Yalua and Market Prica Information :
The Padma Qil Compary Limited remaing fully commitied
to dellvery of higher shareholkders’ value. The Company
encaurages to Invast In the shara of the Gompany by
offering profits at reasonable rabse to sharshokisrs.
Reportad Market price of share of POCL In Dhaka Siock
Exchange Limhed was Taka 166.20 on closa of the lest
fracing day on 30.08.2020, Market capitalzation sfood at
Taka 1,632.63 crore as on 30 June 2020,

Boerd Mesling & Remunemilon of the rectors :

The Board meets requiar basis to discharge ite
responsibiiies. Number of Board Meeting held in FY
2010-20 and the ettendance & remuneration of sach
directar shown in Annesune-1.

Sharaholding Pattem :

This shargholding pattem is annexed at Anneure-2,
Key Operating & Financial Data of preceding 5 years :
Key operating & financlal data of pracading 5 years |s
attached In Annexure-3.

Deciaration by the CED & tha CFO :
Declaration by the CEO and the GFO o the Board a2
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nequired under condtion Ne.3 (3) of Corporale Govemancs
Code lsaued by BSEC hea been attachsd In Annaxurs- A

Corporais Govermnanes :

The core principles of comporste govemancs are
fransparency, eccourtsbilily and responsibiities with fair
principles. To Padma il Company Limited, corporate
govemants means increasing the sharsholders' value by
being afficient, raneparent and professional; accountable o
the govemment and the society and responsive ko the
environmermal iesues. Madmizing value for aharsholders
through performance with good govemante i the
reaponsbillty of comporals manegemsnt Bangiadesh
Securiiee & Exchange Commiesion has lseusd the
condiions regarding Corponate Govemance (Nolification No.
BEEC/CMRRCD/2006-156/207/admin/S0 dated (3-D6-2018)
for the compenies listed with Stock Exchanges. The
Company has adsquately compled with all the conditions of
Corporate Governanca Cods of BSEC, Bsting requistions of
DSE and CSE and rules & regulations of other reguistory
bodise. The certificats provided by the profeesional
accountant and status of compliance with the condltions of
the Comporate Governance Code-2018 lssued by the
Bangiadesh Securiies and Exchange Commisslon Is
aitsrhad In Annexura 'B° and ' of this Direriors’ Raport.

Management Diecussion & Analyels :

A Managemant discusslon and analysls signed by
Managing Diractor regamding the Company's oparation
and owarall marketing and financial posltlion of the
Company has been attachsad In Annexure- ‘D’

Board of Directors :

At presant, tha Board conslets of nine directors. Cut of
nine directors, two directors are Indapendent dirsctors,
another one director Iz Sharsholder director slected
from the remaining shareholders excapt BPC and rest
of six directors are nominated by BPC. Board of
Directors comprised of the membere of highly educated
and professioral qualification in the field of busness
and adminigiradive. This has given strength for effactive
discharge of dulies and reaponaibility by the Board, The
Company's Managasment operates the Compary's
activities within the policies, manwal and limis approved
by the Board. Board Mesting s being hald ragulardy, As
por direstion of Bangladesh Securities & BExchange
Commisalon, Board s one Audit Commiites and one
Nomination & Remunenation Commitics.
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Audlt Commiites :

Audit Commnittee of Padma Oil Comparny Limited
camprisas of throe mambere of the Board nominated
b¥ the Board of Directors and pperates according to
the charter of tha committes approved by the Board
basad on Bangladesh Secwitiva & Exchangs Gommisaion's
Comporate Gevernancs Cods.

The objactive of the commitias Is to ensurs the Company's
operation through proper and sdequste imtemal controd,
The Committee reviews the financial stdements of the
Company and makes recommendations.

Nomination and Remuneration Commities (NRC) :
As per Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Corparate
GCovenance Code-2018, the Board has formed the
NAC. The NRC of Padma Ol Company Umlbad
comprises of four members of the Board nominatsd by
the Beard of Dirsctors.

NRAC operates Bccording to the charer of the
Committes approved by the Board on the basis of
Bangladesh Securities & BExchange commission's
Comparate Govemance Cods.

Chairman of the Beard, CED, C8 & HIAG :

The Chalrman of the Beard, Maneging Dimsctar cum
CEQ, Chisf Financlal Cfficar {CFQ), Company Secretary
(CS) end Heed of Intemal Audlt & Compllance (HIAC) of
the Campany are the differsnt personalities.

Coniribution To National Excheacuer :

Padma QI Company Limitad has coniributed significantly
to the National Exchecuer. As per law, the Company
deducts taxee and VAT at sources and ofher levies from
the various payments and ssrvicse, ard deposite the
same to govemment sxchaguor. Basldes, the Company
aleo pays tex on He samings. Total payment to
govemment exchequer during FY 2018-20 is as follows:

Taka In Grore
Pastioutars 201820 2018-18
Incorne Tex 170.03 18347
VAT 210685 2213.02
Crsmtoms Duty 44391 514.34
ID&C o074 o2
Port duss 860 10.15
Total 2. 73020 201,50

Ratiremant & Re-nomination of Directors :

Ap por Companioa At 1994 and Artickes of Asaocialion
of the Company, one-third of the Directors retire by
rotatlon from the office of Direciors and retking Directors
are aligitle for re-appointmant. Mr. Md. Elhasur
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Rahman, Direcior and Mr, Md, Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid,
Sharsholder Direclor will ba rofired from the Board In the
ensuing Annual General Mesting. Among them Mr. Md
Ekhlagur Rahman hag gready bsen re-nominated by
BPT subject to the approval of the sharaholders et AGM.
On the other hand, an elsction will be held in the
ansuing AGM for the post of Sharehokier Diractor.

Independant Director :

In compllance with the Corporate Governanca Coda of
BSEC, two Indepondent Directors have basn appointed
by tha Boand. Mr. Mehammid khal and Mr, K M Enayetul
Karim ars two Indepandant Directors of ihe Company.

Appoiniment of Audiiors :

In the 50th Annual General Mesting M/S. Khan Wahab
Shafique Rehman & Co., Chartered Accountants and
M=z, Rehman Moetefa Alem & Co, Charterad Accowurntants
ware appolnted s extemal Jolnt Auditors of the
Company for the FY 2018-20. According to the
Companiss Act, 1884, they will bae retired &t this
Annual Gensral Masting and they are eligible for
re-appointmant for tha year 2020-21. Both fims have
already expragsed thelr willlngness for re-appoinimant.

Professional Accountant for Compllance of Corporais
Govermanca :

Pursuant to the BSEC's directive, a proposal for
appointmant of a professional Accountant, 10 issue
cartificate on complianca of Corporate Govemancs
Coda for the year ending on 20 Juna 2021, will be
placed for the approval of honomable shareholders in
the ansuing AGM.

Fublicetion and Communication with the Shareholders :

The Company ghwes high pricrdty on timely publieation
and submission of the statutory reparts l.e. Quartery,
Half-yearly and Annual Financlal Statements In detalls
enabling the regulatory bodles and endsting & poteniial
sharsholders to maks a fair asssesment on Company's
overall performance. The Board discusses and gives
directives to the management to ensure the compllance
of Banpgiadesh Securities & Exchange Commission's
rules & reguletions regulary. All the prics esneltive
information having ary possible impact on share pricea
of the Company and all financial statementa are
communicated to the shareholders by publications in
the national dailies, online news portal and Company’s
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wabsite. The Annual Genoral Maeting also craates on
opporiunity for communication with sharsholders.

Company’s Key Achlevements During 201920 In
Varlous Aspocts :

{a) Fund Management

The Company made a significant profit this yeer also in
respact of non-operating Income due to the proper fund

management of the Compary’s Finance deparimant. The
Company able to maka a profit of Taka 284.07 crore inthe

fund management sector as againet Taka 288.65 crore In
the last yoar. In addition to petraleum and agrochemicals
trading, the Compamys sound financlal menagemant
policy ks bringing significant profit In non-oparating Income
which provides & sbong sconamic basis t© the Company,
The maln purposs and achlsvemant of the proper financial
management's palcy kB the maxdmum utlizalion of the
fund in proper way, The Company's Finanes departmant
has been dolng this job propaery.

(B) Sales & Marimting :

Despite the braakout of COVID-18 in the last 4 months
of the reported year, the Company able to sell 19.63
lakh medric tans of petroleum preducts due to expertiss
and sincers offorts of officars and employesa of the
Company's Sales & Marketing department,

{e) Operations :

During FY 2018-2020, POCL focused on making
operational ecthilies more economical, efficlent and
customar-orientsd, The Coempany sucosashuly managed
to fulfill all types of customers’ nesds. Wihh relantless
efforts, the officers and worldorce of Operations
depariment kept un-interrupted fusl supplies throughout
the year speclally In the last 4 monthe In spite of
COVID-18 pandomic to meet the customens’ nesde,

In the reporied year, the Company opamied the
product Inventory management afficlently and thereby
benefited the botiom line by proficient hemdling of
products at varocus dapoteflocations. Durng the year
under review, the Company achleved an operational
gain of Taka B.18 crore in petraleum products as
agalnst Taka 8.14 crore In the |ast year.

{d) Avistion :

Though domestic end intemational Rigihtsa wore
sugpended in the last 4 maniha of the reponed year dua
to the Covid-18 pandamic throughout the world, the
Company managed to deliver 5.43 lakh metric tons of
JET A-1 fusl which wers 18.83% lower than that of the
last ysars seles wolume. Despite of COVID-19
pandamic, the officers and workforce of Awvietion
depariment of the Company are dellvering Jat A-1 fusl to
domestic and Imtematicnal fllghts In day-night 24 hours.
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{e) Procurement & Services :

POCL has a comprehensive procurement palicy that
provides guidelines to snsure competitive bldding
through a very traneparent procadiune without compriging
on quallty of required goods and glven imeline.

In quast of profegsional ecallencs, procuramant
deparment Is sirhving for continual Improvement In
procurement procssa to cope with the present
challsrging snvironment whene stretegic procuremsnt
polley Iz ae Impartant as siratagic salling palicy.

{f) Lubricants Trade :

The sals of Lubs & Greess was 4,177 metric tons
during the year under review, which was 9.71% lower
than that of the previous year. During 2018-2020,
Padma Oil Company Limited supplied France origin
TOTAL brand marine lubricants, TOTAL AURELIA Ti
4055 {TEM valus 55) Turbine oll and Dlessl Engins oll
to differant power stations. It is mentionable hera that
cumently POCL s supplying imported Tolal AURELIA
Tl 4055 to power statlons through Flexd bag
{23000-liter capacity). Besides, Rural Elecirification
Board (REB) unite are procuring transfonmer il sokeiy
from thizs Company dus to compefiive price of
intemationally renowned, quallty produst of TOTAL
brand transformer cil. In auvtomotive sectar, our
bricants market share hag besn Incressad dus to
Introducing world-renowned latest werslon TOTAL
brand Iubricating oil for latest model passenger car,
fruck, bus and heavy vehicles, Al present, the
Company |a marketing a wide range of Padma and
Total brand lubricating oll for el modem vehicles and
sophisticated machinaries,

In order ¥ operate marieting activities propery, the
Company hes a technical service saction. This section Is
providing il tachnleal support o our field lsvel officers
and to cur prestigious customars to reply thelr varous
iechnical gueries reganding product’s epocificaiion,
guality and other technical features during product
marieting. In cese of launching new lubrcant, the
Company caries out countrywide different campaign
fima to time with daalers, customans and end ussars to
develop awareness reganding proper usa of lubrcants
intc vehicles of indusirial machineries. The Company's
alm kB b Incresss the marist share of lubricants In
automotive and Industrial sector with the Company's
exparienced aales and technical teams.

{g) Human Rescsurcea Manegemeant :
POCL Is fully aware of the fact that ite significant
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growth and suceess | an outcoms of the coniributions
and commiiment of the Compeny’s axperienced and
skilled human resources. The high caliber, dadiceted
and sfficlent people are 8 source of competltive
advantage for the business and the Company g fully
focused on the Important aspect. In erder o increass
the personal skills of the Company’s officers and
employeas and maet the professional needs, the
Company organtzes training for them to develop skilled
manpower. POCL I8 providing fis officers and
employesa opportunities for continuous development
and leaming through various in-house ard extemal
courses. At presant, 242 cfficars and 767 emplovees
of the Company are working across the country.

The Gompany has instiuionalized a program of
recruitment process under Recruitment Policy
approved by BPC, thmough competiive examination.
The objactive I8 to afiract the best talent for the
Company's future keadorship,

(h) Haalth, Safety & Environment :

The Company always conskders salety as Invesiment.
At POCL safely ls considerad a5 a prime concam and
ghwan due Importance reganding operaton of sengiive
fuel ofl. Wa belleve that all Incldents are preventabls
and cur fArst alm k= io maintain excallence Health and
Safaty standands In all POCL businessas.

RAeportable injuries and incikdents analysls reflect the
periormance of an organization with raepect to work
piace satety. During the FY 2018-20, there I3 no
reportad Injury inckient in POCL

Corporate Soclal Responalbiiity :

Corporate Soclal Responglblity (CSR) differs from
placs fo place and Industry o Industry.

Padma Oid Company Limited is one of the largest
patroleum marketing companies &2 well as one of the
egrochamicals companies in the country, As a public
Emited company, ite main goal is to serve the peopls.
Therofore, the Company le sanving 1o the poople by
camying out uninterrupted supply of pefrolsum products
at government reguiated price round the clock In 2l
aress of the couniry. Nevertheless, POCL Is also
playlng an Important role towards the agro-based
sconomy of tha country through Its production and
markating of agrochemicals products.

In eddiion to providing professional sarvices, POCL is
committed to the socisty for the socio-sconomic
devalapmeant of the country. The Company eetabiahed
a achool at main installstion, Guptakhal in Patenga
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area named, 'Padma Oil Chiki Coaching Schoal in the
yoar 10982, As such, the boye arx girle of that area are
gedting an opporiunity to siudy In the acheol at & low
cost The school was up to the clese V. In onder to
improve the quality educalion and upgradation, tha
schoo! was renamed ag ‘Padma oll Model School on
01 November 2014 and the school was upgradad to
Class VIl on 01 January 2015. At prasent, the number
of student of the school ls 300 plus.

Besides, acconding to the policy of tha Corporate
Soclal Responablliity (CSA), the Company doneted
total Taka 3425 lakh to varous achools, religlcus
inetitutione and wsifare organizationsfoundations
during FY 2018-20.

On Golng Program :

The Board of Direclors takes ft a pleasure %o Inform
valued shareholders that wvariops development
programs have been undertaken for business
expansion and smooth supply of fuel to tha public by
establlahing new depots, storage tanks and other
physleal Infrastruciunes. Thess are namaly;

1} The conatruction of 23 stohisd Head offics
multi-storied building having 2 bassments and 1
sami-basament in Agrebad Commearcial Area of
Cheftognam on 0.42-acre land of the Company I8 [h
progrees. Meaanwhlle, the work of two bassments and
gaml basement has aiready been completed, At
present, the appaintment of the consultant Is In the
proceas for modemizing the design of the bulkding.

2} The ecthivilies of the tender flosting to appolnt a
eligible contructor, for the construction of a 12-storled
maodemn residential cum commercial building with two
addiional basements on 1.88-acre company owned
land at Paribag, Dhalka, i in the final stage.

3) The Company has got the final approvel from the
Minlstry reganrding DFP of the prolect for Instalation of
Jet A-1 underground pipeline through Jahurul Hague
Bage, Bangladesh Alrforce, Chatlogram and Shah
Amanat Alrport, Chatiogram to supply Jot A-1 fuel to the
Company’s Jet A-1 dapot adjeining Shah Amanat Alrpart
through pipslina from the Company’s Maln Installstion In
Patanga and an ImMtemationsal kander has been floated for
the appointment of & contractor for the worlc

4) A project for automation has been undertaken 1o
mademize operational activitiee at Main Inatallation of
three ofl marketing companies Including Padma Ol
Company Limited. Fer thls purpees, the Intemetional
coneultant has already boen appointad, The feasibity
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stugy of the project by the consulting firm ls also
underway. The operational activitiea In varous depols
situatad In differsit places of the country will ales ba
modemized In phasas.

B) In ordar to expand the Compary's business, a
contractor has already been appointed by fioating
tender to bulld & permanent rverine depot at Bhalrab
Bazar replacing exleting bangs depet. Construction
worl will start soon.

8) The company received approval from the Ministry &
acguire land for construction of a permanent riverine
depot at Barishal meplacing exdsting bargs depot and
other activities relating to the project ame uncarway.

7Y In order to construct two slorage tanks of 8000
kilalitres and 6000 kikditres at the main instaliation in
{hattngram, econtractars have already been appointed.
Future action pians to Increses the Company's
Oparating Capability :

1} To construct twe storage tanks of fual ofl 10,000
melic tone storage capachy each at the Company's
Main Instalietion, Guptakhal;

2 Construction of full phased aviation dapot Including
land arrangement a8 well as infrastructure with
Intemational facllies at Sayedpur, Jashore and Cox'a
Bazar airporis after feasiility study for supplying of
Aviation Jet A-1 fuel;

3 Installation of NaphtheContdensate based Calalytic
Reforming Unit In Maln Inatallation, Guptakhal after
feasibility study;

4) Establlshment of a plant for the manufacture of LPG
cylinder regulators et Mahna, Bhabanipur and Gezipur
by the company eclely or In a joint venture with a
forelgn company after feaalblity study;

5) To Increass atorags capadily of fuel oll according o
the demand;

§) To bring sales and accounts related acthitles of the
Comparny's all officasinstalistionfdepots under sutomation;
73 To modemizs firefighting facliies In the Company's
Main Instaliation and depote; and

B} Acquistion and Implementation of financing profitable
projects in the Company's cwned unussd land at
different places In the country.

industrial Ratation :

The Industrial relatlon climate In the Company was
remained hammonious and peacsful during the year.
Tha Company has basn taking intifathves for explolting
the inherant strengths of ks psople and Improving the
wark culture and oparating & maintenance practices,
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Agknowledgemanis :

Finally, we would llke to thank to our honorable
shareholders for having confidence upon us. Your
support s the diving force behind the growth and
development of our business.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would slso like to
teke thiz opportunity o recall with appreciations the
support and cooperation we heve mcaived from
Energy and Mineral Resources Divigion, Minlstry of
Power, Energy amd Minaral Resources of the
Govemment of the People’s Republic of Banpladesh;
Bangladosh Potroieum Comporation; Reglairar of Jolnt
Stock & Companies and Firms; Bangladesh Sscuriiies
& Exchange Commisslon; Dhaka Stock Exchange
Limited; Chiftagong Stock Exchange Limited; Certral
Deaposltory Bd. Limitsd, our valued Customers and
evaryons, the Company Is connected to In conducting
= business. Thanks fo the commitment, dedication
and hard work of the Company's employess and
officers who ane core to our success. Hope that our
Company will go ahaad towards the success In future
also with all of your support and cooparation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ez”"ﬁ

(Md. Anlsur Rahman)
Cheirman
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ANNEXURE-1

Padma Oil Company Limited

I. Directors’ Declaration
The Directors alao report that
a)

affairs, result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b}

c)

Proper books of accounts as requined by lew have bean maintainad.

Tha financial stetements of the Company pressnt a irue and fair view of the Company's siste of

Appropriate accounting policles have besn consiatenily applled In praparation of tha financial

statements and that the accounting estimates are basad on reasonable and prudent Judgement,

{IAS) as applicable In Bangladesh.

Tha financial statements ware preparaed in accondancs with Intemational Ascounting Standards

The Intamnal Control System |s sound In design and effectively implamentsd and moniiorad,

f) There are no signiicant doubts upon the Company's abiity to continue as a going concam.

. The number of Board Meading and the Altendmmce & Remunerstien of Dineciors during the year 2018-2020.

4 A . ing h Atendad in naration
Name of Dirsctors | Dasignation | 1L=C0 L |\ oot Meting | Take)

Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman Ex Chainman 12 12 88,000
Mr. Mohammad Igbal Independant Disscior 12 11 88,000
Mr. Md. Ekhlssur Rahman Directar 12 12 98,000
Dr. Mohd. Sher All Director 12 12 28,000
Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury | Ex Director i} | 01 8,000
Mr. Mohammed Shahidul Alam | Director 11 09 72,000
Mr. ICM. Enayatul Karim Independant Diracior 12 11 88,000
Mr. Md. Arffuzzaman Miah Tutul | Director 12 12 98,000
Mr. Md. Nasinaddin Akhter Rashld | Sheeholder Direcky 08 07 58,000
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman Mangging Direcior 12 12 88,000

Total | 7.92,000
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ANNEXURE-2
(i} Pottern of Sharshelding os on 30 June 2020
NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDERS Nos. of Shere | Percentage
of Share
A | Bangladesh Pairslaum Corporatian 48455008 50.35
B. | Publle Inetitutlons
Agranl Bank Lid, 580173
Janata Bank 1807058
Sonali Bank Limitad 378000
Bangledesh Shilpa Bank 48414
Bangladesh Shllpa Rin Sangstha 2200780
Bangladesh Fund 1654861
Others 803845 TE49019 7.78
C |IcB
IcB Tr2ez218
ICB Unilt Fund 480285
ICB Borwd 2680644
Others 753081 8210138 837
D. | Private Insitulione
Janata Capltal & Imseat Ltd. 230500
Padrolio MK Lid. 5565840
United Enterprises & Co Lid, 2023817
DBL Securiies Lid, 278033
First Sacurity ialaml Bani Lid. 208200
Pubali Bank Sacurities Lirmitad 201788
AB Bank Lid. 347004
Litara Motors Limbed 334125
Uttara Autormoblle Manufac. Lid. 247252
Amarican Life Insurance Company 444011
Agrani Equity & Imvest, Lid. 511025
Rupall Imvestment Limked 200000
ABIL 240274
TBIL {Recovery Portiolio) 283018
Others 3188741 14311601 14.57
E. | Foreign Investors 1265512 1.28
F. | Indiviiumle 16330914 16.83
BE232750 100
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Particular Nog. of Share Iofmmm Remarks
Chalrmos, Drectors, Chilef Exeewtive Offieer, Company
Secretary, Chilef Financial Officer (CPO), Head of
Emtermnl Andit wmd thelr spouses and minor chldrem
Chalrmen *
Mr. Md. Anisnr Rahman - - Nominated
by BPC,
Directors:
Mr. Mohammad Igbal - - Independent
Drirector
Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rabman - - Nominated bry
BEC.
Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali - - Do
Mr. Mohammed Shehidnl Alam - - Do
Mr. KM Ensyetnl Earim - - Independent
Drirector
Mr. Wasiroddin Akhter Rashid 2023617 2.06 Shareholder
Drirector
Mr. Suzadur Raloman - - Nominated by
BPC,
Mr. Md. Masudur Rshman - - Do
Chief Exacaiive Officer and his spoases & minoy
ehlidren:
Mir, Md, Masudur Raloman : -
Compasy Secrefury and his spomsc & miner clilldres;
Mr. Sohel Abdullsh = -
CF( and his spouse & minor children:
Mr. Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA - -
Head of Tnternal Andit snd his Sponse & minor children:
Mr, A KM Fazle Elahee 110 -
Spowse 1126 o
Executives (Top Bve snluried persons other than
CEQ, CFQ, C8§, HIA)
1, Mr, Md, Abu Saleh Tgbal GM (Ope. & Fianning) - -
2. Mir. Md Aminnl Haque GM - -
3. Mi. Md. Numan Ahmed Taffader GM - -
4. Mr. Md Shabidu] Alam DGM (HR & Ad) 1,000 -
5. M. Md. Mahbubul Alam DGM (Avistion) 801 -
Sharchelding ten percent (10%) sr more voiing
interest in the company,
1. Bengiadesh Petrolenm Cosporation 49455666 5033
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Five years Performance at a plance o
Pariiculars 21920 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2%15-16
E [Tengible fired sssets 82w | BIo| BB | 9016|2387
¥ | Envestment - Depreciation Fund 13,798.85 - - - -
8 | Othems currents psacty 49847090 | 132492721 | 136416604 | 109831065 | 93287170
P [ Cash at bank balances W96 | 3337300 | 31166298 | 33900578 | 18313266
Totul uesets IWTRL | 1630718 | 16983000 | 149305 | L2
Hahilitiex & provisions TI401843 | 152175059 | LSTAT5063 | 135754545 [ 1,045113.10
Equity 15435370 | 140322.59 | 12454266 | 10L76834| 9127850
K |Toial Hiahilities 98,7723 | L6EL07808 | L08R | 14030 | 1DEIW
Net asscts per share (Takn) 157.64 142.85 126.78 103.60 X7
Opetating camings
on petrolenm prodncts 234645 | WA | wanss | 244823 1689146
on agro-chemicals (287.61) {423.82) (218.78) BY 130.32
Other income w77es | sieasr | sosens | mmed| nasa
Total eatnings Q% | cars| o | S27| amw
B [Ovethesds 08030 | w9520 204835 | 17ewa1| 1358001
g Fitancial experses 220040 | 260431 oW | 180426  10IR
A [ Contribution to WPPWE 1,914.80 2M542 | 235799 1,425.82 131731
Totzl expeases U4.955.59 B3493 25,000.04 1119 16,038.14
E Profit before income tax 3638111 | 3810303 | ME0IR7 | 2709052 2500885
Provision fot income f2s 0,084.74 os7ad| 11,2075 677801 629282
Profit after mcome tux /63T | BAGIS| 358002 2031251  1BTM
Retum on aharehokders fanda (%) 1763 2,35 2% 19.96 2053
Retum on Assets (%) 294 172 1.98 139 165
Earning per thare (Taks) 179 2507 .18 2063 1907
Fhumn resourees { Nos ) 1009 1025 1065 1110 1145
Fzccutives %2 253 3 247 293
E Suft 767 ™ ) 7
Total exrmings pet employes 6079 62.08 .54 4344 3587
E Operating cost per employee 2254 2236 A4 1741 1302
Net proit pet empilopes 366 .17 2.0 241 2186
Cost o income ratlo 3756 %9 D4 4087 3545
- Authotized capital 1000000 | 1000000 | 1000000 | 1000060 1600000
3 § [Puidkop capisl 987327 982327 |  8RBY 98827 981
ﬁ'g Retnined camingy 14466415 | 13050432 | 11471930 | S194487| 8145583
Adequacy cureent satio LX) 109 1.08 L&7 L9
Matket Price per share Tila 16620 230,60 19,60 25590 18780
j Divilznd - Cash { Per shate ) 125% 130% 130% T10% 100%
Capital exrning nutio 278 291 342 240 151
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Annaxure-A
[As per condifion No. 1(5)(xvi)]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Declaration by CEO and CFO
24 December 2020

To

The Board of Directors

Puctma Ofl Company Limited

Strand Road, Chattogram

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year emded on 30.06.2020

Deear Sir,

Pursuzmt to the condition No, 1{3Xxxvi)} imposed vide the Commission's Notification No.

BSECCMRRCDM06-1 58207/ Admin/80 Dated 03 June 2018 umder sectiom 20C of the Securities and

Exchunge Crdinemee, 1969, we do berebry declan: that:

1} The Financial Statementz of Padma Oil Compsmy Limited for the year ended on 30.06.2020 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), a8 applicable in the Bangladesh and any deparinte there fram has been
adequarely disclosed.,

2) The estimates end judgments related o the financial statemenis were made on a prodent and reasonable
basiz, in order for the finencial satements t reveal & troe and fair view:

3} The form and substance of transactions and the Compeny's state of affeim have been reasonably and
Fedtdy presented in fis Anancial sistements;

4) To ensure sbove, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing 2 system of internal
control and maintenance of acecunting records;

5} Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reazonable assurance that the
egtablished policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6} The manegement's nee of the going concemn basin of acconnting in preparing the financial saiements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company” s ability to continee as a going concern,
I thiz regard, we dlso cectify that:-

i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30.06.2020 and that to the best of oor
Imowledge and belief:

m) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit sny material fact or contain
statemients that might be misleading:

b) these statemenis collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affsire and are in compliance
with cxisting accounting stendmnds and applicable laws.

ii} There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no trangactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are frandnlent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board of
Directors of its members.

Sincerely yours,
. p.d
(Md. Masudur Rahman}) (Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA)
CED & Managing Director Chief Financial Officar (CFO)
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Annexure -8

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) {xxvii)
Report to the Sharcholders of Padma OQil Company Limited
On compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

‘We have sxsmined the complimncs atatms {0 the Corpomates Govemancs Code by Padma Oil Company Limited for the
year endkd on 30 June 2020, The Code relates to the Notification No. BSEC/ACMRRCD/2006- 1 584207/ Admin/80
date] 03 Jume 2018 of the Bangladesh Securitiss and Exchange Commmizsion.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responaibility of the Company, Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopied by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This iz a scrutiny and verification and an independent andit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well az the provizion of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by Institate of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are naot inconsistent with any Condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

‘We state that we have oblained all the information and explanations, which we have required, amd
after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

8} The Company has complied with the conditions of the Caorporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission,
subject to the remarks and observation as reported in the attached compliance statos,

b) The Company has complied with the provizions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial

Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institate of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) as reqnired by this code.

¢} Properbooksandrecordshave been kept by the company asrequired under the
Companics Act, 1994, the securitics laws and other relevant laws; amd

d) The Govemnance of the company is satisfactory.

Place Chattogram For Hoda Vesi Chowdhury & Co

Drted : 28 January 2021 Chartered Accountants
Showkat Hossain, FCA
Senior Partoer
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Annaxure- C
[As per condition No. 1({5ipocl)]
PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Status of compllanca with the conditions Imposed by the Commission's Notlficakion MNe.
BESEC/CHMRRCDI2000-158/207/Adminféd, dated 3 June 2018 |ssusd under section 20C of the
Sgcurites end Exchange Ordinance, 1668 { Report Under Condition No. 8):

Canentismes statme |

1 | 2 % [« [ 5 |
K | Board of Dirsciors | | i |
11 Slze of e Board of Direciors: The todal mumber of members of & /

company's Boand of Directoms (hamsinaftar refemed o e "Boand ) shall ot

ba leaa than 5 {(ftve) and maone than 20 (lwaenty).
1.2 Indepandart Dimctors: All companies ahal heve sffeciive mpesemeion

of Indepandent diractom on thelr Boands, a0 that the Boand, A6 a8 group,

Inchudes cors competencles considersd mievant In the comtext of sach

compamy, for this purpses, the companies shall comgply with the foliowing:
12Xm) Al last one-fifth (1/5) of the toinl number of direciors In the company’s Board 7

shal be Indspondent direciors; sy frecion shal bs comsldersd to the next

iminger or wiole number for caleulsting numbear of iIndependant direcksne);
|12(h) | Forthe purpose of this claise "independant director™ means a director - | | |
12(b¥) | who elthar doea not hald any shars In the compeny or holds less than ona 7 aﬂwlll

parcant [1%) sheres of the folal pald-up sheres of the company; ks companoss. |

1.p)) | who ls not @ apormor of the company ar ks not connaciad with the company’a
iny sponsar or direcior or nominated dreckor or shamholder of the company
or any of s essociziea, siafer concoms, subaldierea o paramia or holding
goliies who holds one poarcant {1%) o mere sharss of the ol peidup - o
sharsa of the company on the baslke of famly mistonshlp and hs or her
farnly members atoo shell not hold above mantionsd sheres In the companmy.
Provided that spouss, son, deaughier, isther, mother, brother. slsier,
son-in-ew and daughtarin-aw shall be conskierad as famly memberm;

1.2(b)} | who has nol been an exsouthe of the vompany In - immedately precading 2

(bl financinl yean; ’ Do
12{pv) | who dops not have any other relationghip, whether pecuniary or othenwise, S

with the company or ks subskfiery or esscclsisd companies: i
12(b}vy | who le not @ member or TREC {Tmdng Rigit Endilament Cartificata) holder, 7

dirscior or oifiver of any stock exshange; Bo
1 2{b’d) | who |s nol a shamholder, diecior exceping Indspandsnt dirsclor or officer of any 7

membar or TREC holder of etock mahange or an intermadiory of fho caphel marked o
1.2{h}u||}' who Is nol & pariner o &n seoutive Of was not & paringr or an s@outhe

during the precadng 3 (hres) yeam of the concemad compamy's siabriony 7 Bo

audt Aim o audit firm engaged i Indemal audl servicea or audit firm

conducting specisl audi or professional certifying compllance of this Code.
1.2{h}u|l]i who la net Indepandant director In more then 5 (fve) Estad companies "4 Do
12{b}x) | who haa not bean comvicted by & court of competant jurisdicion as &

defauliar in payret of any loan or eny sdvarics © a bk or & Non-Bank v Do
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_hﬂt-;jl
— |

|1.2[h}x} | who hes not been convicied for & oriminal offence Imvolving morl furphiuds

«

tem PertapoTeend STy
| te ez amn

12(c)

The independwnt dirscie(s) shall be eppoinied by the Beard and approvd by
the shersholdam in tha Annual Genemal Masting (AGR)

4

12 (d)

The post of indepandant dmecior(s) cannot remain vacanl for more than 80
{nirsaty) deya

12{s)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be i a perod of 3 (Hhree)
yoaarm, witlch may be edended for 1 (ona)] lanura only

|1.:

Oualification of indepsndant Director {ID}

13{a)

Incapandant dmcior shal be 2 knowledpeatis incivicyal with Integrity who lo able
B snaure complance with inancial lees, eguistory mquiremants and coporsis

Tha qualificafions

| 1.5(b)

Indapandant dinsctor shall hove Tollowing qualiflcaticns:

1.3(bK)

Burirmss Lsader who ls or wes a promoter or dirsctor of an unBaisd company heving
rinimurn pald-up capital of Tk. 100.00 millon or any Brled company o a mamber of

13000

Compormie  Loadar who in or wes a lop lovel exacutve not lower than Chisl
Exnouthm Offioer or Managing Direclor or Depuly Managing Cireolor or Chisf
Finencial Officer or Haad of Financs or Accounta or Company Secratary or Hasd
of Imermal Audt and Compllance or Head of Legal Sarvice or 8 candidata with

acuivaiont poalion of an unleted company having minkmum pald-up capital of Th.
100.00 mBlon o of B Bsbed company; or

Hat Appontde

120008

memmmuﬂwmmwmnrmmmmlnh
position not below Sth Grade of the national pay scals, who hes al lsawt
educational background of bechelor degree i SOnOMics OF Cormence Of
busingss or Law: or

Mt Aprlicalie

130)

Uniwareity Toacher who has educsfons basiagmund In Exgnomics or Commance
or Business Shudiss or Lows; or

it Apgivaiks

Profsssionsl wha i or wes an sdvooats prechcing st lsasd in the High Court
Divigion of Bangladesh Supremis Courl or & Chartersd Accountant o Coet and
Menagamant Accoumtani or Cheriered Flnancial Analyst or Charlerad Certified
Actountant or Cariiflsd Publlc Acoouniant or Charismed Management Acocuniant
ar Charkemd Sacratery or equivalent qualification

136

The Indapendent dracior shall heva of least 10 (fen) yoars of eapedances In any
fek! mentoned In clauss (b)

13d)

in speclal cases, the sbow qualicatiors or expariences may be redmed subject
1o prior epproval of the Commission.

Mot Appicatis

14

Dty of Chalrperson of the Bowrd of Direciors and Managing Direcior
or Chisf Exacutive Officar.-

14{a)

The posttions of the Chakparson of fhe Boand amd the Meneging Director (WMD) entlfor
Chiaf Evacutine Officar (CEO) of the company shall be Tlked by difiensn indiidisla;

140)

The Mansging Director (MD) andfor Chisf Exsoirtive Officer (CE0) of a laled
company shall not hold the sama postiion in mnothar Ested compams;

1.4{c}

The Chalrpsman of the Board ahall ba siected from smong the non-maecative
direciors of the comparny;

14{d)

_ Chairpamon and the Managing Direcinr andfar Ghisf Exacudive Officer;

The Bedrd shal cheady defing respeciive roles and rospormsibiliies of the

e a5 o BOEC Lo
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1.448) in the sbeance of tha Chalperson of tha Board, the mmaining membam mey
elact ona of themsehms from non emariive direclors es Chalpemsen for thel Nok Applicalsie
particder Boands mealing; the reason of absancs of the reguiar Chalpemon shall
b duly reconded In the minutes.

15 The Directors’ Report to Shareteolders:

The Board of the compeny shall Inciude the follgwing addiiionsl steferments or
ciacieurea In the Dinactors” Repadt prapared under section 184 of the Campaniea
Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIA of 1884)-

1.5 An Industry outiook and possibls fulure devalopmants In fhe Induring Tie Dimcios
¥ mn'prglndli

|15() | Thesegmantdes or produciwiee parformance | ¢ | | Do

1.5 R ami cancama including Intemal and exismal riek fscors, threst o 4 B
susiainabity and negathe Impact on ervironmant, f eny;

16(Gv) | A deussin on Cool of Goods sold, Cross Profit Margin and Nel Profit Margin, 4 Do
whigna appacable

1.5 A diacusalon on continully of any exreordinary activities end thalr implicationa v Mg such migtier
{gain orloss); .

15{vf) | A duinisd discussion on relaisd parly tranmsciions mlong with & sisternend L
showing amount, nature of misied perty, netums of amections and basls of

fransactions of all nelated party ransactions;
15l) | A simiement of uiltodion of procesds ralsed though public meuss, rights lssues _'ﬁmn::‘
andior any cther Insinuments e Y,
1.5040 | Ansxpinaton I the finsncisl reaults detsiomis mfisr the company goss for Initial Mot Apgiloshie

Publio Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offtving (RPO), Rights Stwre Offer, Dinsed
Listing, aéc.;

15(t) | An expianailon an any significant veriance that occure beiwesn Cliartony 4
Financial parfomenices snd Annpssl Flnsncisl Sieisments;

|1.5(:] | A stwiament of mmuneration pald o the direciom Inchuding Indepandant drecions; o’

150d) | A sisiament thet the financel shrements praparsd by the mansgament of the ¢
|emser cormpany presant falrly lis state of affslrs, the result of s operstions, cash
fours and changes In equity;

150d1 | A slatemont thal proper bocks of account of the iBsust company have boan 4
mainigingd;

150d0 | A simlement thet appropr=is sccounting polclss have been conststenty spplied 4
In preparation of the financial stetements and That the accounting estimates ane
kxt] on nessarablo and prodent [udgment

150 | Asislsmant thet Intemationsl Accaunting Stendarts (1AS) or Intemational Cd
Financial Reporting Standarda (IFRS), a8 appiicable in Bangiadesh, have
basn foliowed In prepammton of the financal salsmers snd Bny
depariure there from has been adequatsly distosad:

1500) | A simiement thet the mystem of Imiemal contol i sound In design and hes boan v
affacively Implomantad and montomsd

1500} | Astsbsmant thet minorkty shamsholders have besn proleciad from ebushe scione o
by, or In tha interest of, conirolling shersholdans mcting aithar directly or indineciy

- LPRETh.
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Coaitien e : | = ot o eap
1.50cefl) | A stmbement that thers Is no elgnificent doubt upon the lssusr company’s eblliy o L
coffinue 28 a galng cancam, I the keusr company la nod consbderad i be &
'.+.|.~.-.|| 0 W N DRG] WA PSSO TN OF SN D8 DReCH0sn0
150010 An explanation thet signficant deviations from the lest yoar's opersiing meuls of «
the bssier company shall be highliphted amd the mesom thereof chall be
sapiainad.
1.50dn) | A siaberment wivans ki operaiing and Snancid dats of al lesst precading 5 () o
yoam shall be summartaed,
1.5pm¢) | An explenation on the reascns I the issuor company hes nat deciaed dividend L 1255 omsh
{imh stk for thes yeer: vidan dectarad
1.50cd) | Boerd's stebement to the sffact that no bonus shere or stodk dhidend hes been o A Mmmlml
ghall be deciarad oe imadm dhvidend;
1.50c) | The tolal numbaer of Board maatings hald during the yeer and elisndance by sach e
direcior;
1500y | A report on the petiem of shameholding discicalng the sggregais numbar
of shames (along with neme-wise detalls winre steted balow) held by:-
1.500dl) | Parant or Subsiglary of Amoclated Companles and olher relebed partles L4
=) (rema-wis= dainla);
1.50ccl) | Dimciors, Chisf Exscuthve Oficer, Company Secmtary, Chisl Financial Officer, L
-] Head of nbemal Audk and Compliance and fwir spouses and minor children
(rema-wins deinia);
1.50exdl} | Executives; and 4
c)
1500l | Shersholders holding ten percand [(10%) or mors voling Intenst In the 4
d) company (nama-wise detalial
Explanation: For the purposa of ths clause, the sogrssion “axsiutive” maans
iop 5 (fwe} mxiaried amplovess of the company, other than the Dirociom, Chisf
BExsutive Officer, Comparry Seorstary, Chis? Flinancld Offissr and Head of
1.5xiv) | In came of the appoinimant or reappaintmant of a direetor, & diacioaurs
on the folowing Informstion o the sharsholders:
1.50odvy | 8 beiel resume of the d irector; s
{m
.55k’ | neriume of his o her expertins In specific functiona| ames; snd L
b)
1.Bfoiv) | nemea of companisa In which the peson alo haide the drecomhip and the v
(e} membership of commitiees of the Board;
1.5600) | A Menagmments Discussion and Anshysis signed by CEQ or MD presaning v
datalid enalsls of the compeny's position and oparadians along with & bried
dismmsion of changes in thae fnancisl sistements, amang othes, focusing on:
| 1.500vja) aczounting paikcies and estimation for preparation of financlal statemants; s |
1.E¢nw}h:' changes in accouning policios and esimaton, I any, clearly describing the sfiect o
an finencial perormancs or meuts and finencial poaiion an well sa cash fiows In
abaohuts Tgum for such shanges;
1.50ovic) comportive enalysis (including effects of irfiation} of financlsl parformance or L
meaults and fingnclal pesition as wall as cash Mows Tor curment firanclal year with
immedinis precading five voors sqiaining reasons hemof,




e TH ‘ ﬁ [l—lﬂ'-'l
1E¢m}dﬂ gompars such fingneial perfprmance o remlls and franciel position sa well s |
| emsh fows with the peer Industry scenario;

\1_.5;»«}.1 briety sqpiein the Anencial and aconomic soanerio of tha country end tha globe; | < | |

1.560v¥) | fizion and conceme lesuna rakatod to the financlal stalements, eplaining auch ek | ¥
| and conconere mitigation plan of e oompany; and

1.E(mr}g" futre plan or projection or forecast for campany's opandion, pafimanca and v
financial position, with |ueiiivation thamof, Le., suiual poslion shall be egpleined

1.6000d) | Declaration or ositificetion by te CEO amd the CF0 o the Board s requiresd v
unciar condition Ne. 3(3) shall be disclossd as per Amaxurs-A; and

1.6000vl | The napert @3 wall aa cartificata regarding compllanca of conditionn ef this Code v
&5 required under conditicn Mo, @ shall be disclossd =9 per Annomurs-8 and
Annpmune-C.

(16 | Msetings of the Bord of Directors | | |

The company shal conduct Bs Board meetings and record the minutes of the L
mesings as wil aa keep equinsd booke and recomds in Bne with the provislons of
tha ralevant Bangladesh Secratarial Stendards (ESS) ss sdopted by the Instiute
of Createrad Secrwioring of Banghaiesh (ICSE) in 20 B 2 thoes shandands ars
nat Inconsisiant wih eny condtion of his Coda,

147 | Codeof Contust for the Chakpersen, e Bosrd sembars and Chisf Exsoutive Ofosr | | |

1.7(a) Thea Board shall lay doum a code of condiid, bosed on the recommendation of the
Hominzlion and Remumnsmetion Commitiss (NRC) at condiion Mo, 6, for the Chalrpsmeon s
| of fha Board, other boand membams and Chist Exscutive Ofiicer of fhe compamy;

1.7(0) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shell ba posted on the websie of ths
company (nchading, smong otham, prudent conduct end behevior; confidentialiby; confict o
of Interest; compiancn with lows, rdoo and reguistions; pminkifion of ineidaer tmding
ralatinnship wih emdronment, employeen, customens and suppiiers; end Indepandency.

|2 | Governance of Bowrd of Distors of Subsidiary Company.- | |
2{a) Provislona ralaling to the composdion of the Bosrd of the hoiding compsny shall ba WA
meda appicahls io e compoalticn of tha Boord of tha subskdlary comgsany;
2m) Al le=st 1 {one) Independent direcior on the Board of te holdng company shall be & WA mﬂﬂ;
direcior cn ha Board of tha subsidlarny compaimy; e .
) Tha minutes of tha Bosrd meating of the aubsidiary company shell ba placed for roview M D=
ot ha follawing Boerd meating of tha holding sompany;
2{d) The minises of tha reepective Board meating of #a holding company shall siato that HA ]

they have nevewed the el of te subsidlary company sleo;

2{a) Theg A, et Commmitiens of the haliing compersy shall alan revigs the fimnial statements, Nix Do
In particiar e kvestments made by the submsidary company.

3 Eanaglag Chrector (MD) or Chisl Exscutive Officsr (CED), Chisl Finansisl Officer
(CFO], Head of iriernel Andit snd Complancs (HIAC) snd Company Sserwiary (C8)L-

EX | Appointment |

3.1() | The Boand shall appoint & Managing Direcior (WD) or Gisf Exsculve Officer (CEDL 8 |
Company Secrolary (CS), & Chiof Financlal Oficsr [CFO) end & Hosd of Internal Auck
and Compllanca {HIACK
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3.1}

Becretary (CB), Chiel Finenclal Officer (CRO} and Head of Intemnd Audi and
Complancs (HIAC) shall ba Bled by differsnt individuaks;

The posiions of the kanaging Dirsctor (D) or Chisf Execuiive Officer (CEO), Company

e}

The ME o CEQ, C5. CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hoid ey seescutive
poakion In amy olher company et the same Ime;

3.1(d)

The Board shall clearly dafine mepectiva mies, reaporailyites and dutiss of e CFO,
tha HIAC and the CE;

3.1{@)

The WD or GED, C8, GFO and HIAC shall not bo removed from theér posttion without
mpprovel of the Board &8 wel a5 immadicls desamingfion 1o the Commiselon and siock

mchange(s)

| Requirement in mitens Beard of Dirsctorns” Mostings

Tha MD or GED, C8, CFO snd HIAC of tha company shall etisnd the mestings of
the Boant

Complied

Provided that the C3, CFO andfer the HIAD shall not attend auch pest of &
meeting of the Baard which Involves constderation of an agenda Hem nelating fo

33

Buties of Marmging Director (MD) or Chis? Executive Officer (CEC) and
Chief Finanolal Officm: (CFCH

3.3g)

The MD or CEQ end GFO shall carify to the Board that they heve reviewsd
firmncla| steisments for the yeer end that o the beat of thelr inowisdga end ballaf:

3.a))

metmrial fect or contaln shrisments that might be misisading; end

thess stslmmenis oo nol conteln ey maisdally uninus sistsmant or omi sy

3.3(a)l)

thass mixisments ingather presant 8 trus and falr view of ihe company’s sfialim
and & In compllancs with exieling sccourting standands and applcable ke,

3.30)

The MD or CEO mnd CFO shell also cartify ihat thers ars, to the best of
knowledye end belaf, no trereaciions entered into by the company during the
year which e frudulert, Tlagal or In viclation of the code of conduct for the
eompany's Boand or il members;

| 3.3(6)

| Thes gartfication of the MO or CED end CRO shal be deciopad in the Annugl Repaort.

Board of Dirsctor’ Commilties.-
For enmring good govemance In the company, the Board shall have of et
folowing sub-comim itess:

| 440

| Audk Commitiss; end

A

Momination snd Remunensiion Commities,

| AUDIT COMMITTEE:

5.1

| Responsibity o the Board of Dimctors:

5.1(a)

The company shell hsve on Ak Commiies s & subcommities of the
Board;

5.1{R)

Tha Axdit Commities shall asalel the Board in ansuring thet e financlal
sizternants reflect truo and fair view of the sigte of affaim of the company and

In snsuring & gocd montioning sysiam within the buslness;

4 hﬁm.mh
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Damplisnos ctaies |
ey o 'pids Co—y _"ﬁ.l I—-I-IH—HI
5.1c) Tha Audit Committes shall be responsibie to the Boand; the duliss of the o« d:"lu T
Audit Committes ahall ba clearty aet forth In wrifing. xrlinn I e
| ‘s ALt
|52 | Constthaion of the Audit Commitise: | | |
5.2{a} The Audit Commitine shall bs composad of nt lessi 3 {thres) members; L4 Thed At

52{c} | Tha Boand shal appoint membora of tha Audit Committes who ahall be i
man-axeculive drsctors of the company encepling Chalkperson of the Board
and shal Includa ot loast 1 fona) Independani dmcior

|6.2(6) | Al members of the audit commitee should ba Tnanclally lerste” and atleast |
1 (ong)} membaer shall have eccounting or rolated finencal mansgament
bagieground and 18 (ien) years of such sperienos;

Explenstion: Tha tarm Mnancisly Hermie® means the ehilty to resd and
undersiand the finencial siatemenis [ke statement of fnanclal positon,
slatenent of comprahensive Incoms, siadement of changes In equity and
cesh fices sistement and & perecn will bs considersd o heve sccounting or
refated financlal manegament axperties I ha or ahe posssasca profosalonal
quaification or Accounting or Finances gradumte with =t least 10 (fen) yeams of
corporaia managemant or profesalonal expaiences.

52{d} | Wren the tem of senicoe of any Commities member axpines or them & any / Tha o has
dreumsiance causing any Commikties member to be unable in kold office before
sspimtion of e tamn of sandcs, thus meking the number of the Commities bt
membars ¥ bs lower than the prescdbad number of 3 (thres) parsons, the Boand YBCESY ocumed,

ahall appaint tha now Cammities mamber to Tl up fha vacancy immadietely ar not
lmtar then 1 (one) month from the dabs of vecancy In the Commitiss o enaurs
cantinuily of tha performenca of work of the Audi Commities;

%5.2{-} | The company secretary shall ect as the secretary of the Commitiss; | ’ | | |
5:2{f) Tha quorum of the Audit Cormmitice meating shall not conaifis without of laast 1 v

{one) indepandent dreotor.
(83 | Chainman of the Aud Commities: | | |

5.3a} The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audi Commities to be Chalparson ..r
of the Audt Committas, who ahall be an Indapsndent dmcion

5.3 In fhe absance of the Chalrpemon of the Audit Committes, the mmalkning B4
mgmbers may alect one of themeshes o Chalperson for that particuler meeting,
In thet coms thers ahall ba no probiam of comstiuting & quorum 25 required undar
cancifion No. 54K and the neasen of absence of he neguiar Chalrparsan shall
b duly recorded in the minwiss.

6.3z} Chglrporaon of e Al Commities shal reraln prasent in the Annusl Goneral o
Maeding (AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairpsrson of the Audt Commilles, any other
mambsr from tha Audit Commitiss ahall ba selaciad lo ba present in the amusl
goaneal maating (AGCH) and rsasan for abesncs of the Chainperson of Tha Audt
Comimities shall ba racordad In e minutsa of tha AGM

(B4 | Mesting of the AudE Commities | | |
54(a) | The Audit Commithse shall conduct at Isast s four mesfings in & financiel ysar:

Provided thet any smesrency mosding in addiion to regular mesiing may be 7
corwensd st the recuest of any one of the mambemn of tha Commiios;

E.ll.'h} The quarum of the masting of tha Audit Committes shall be constiuied in pressnce
of el a0 members of fwo-thind of the mambers of the Apdl Commiies,
whichewar in higher, whem presence of Bn Indepand sl dirmcior s o muak

51
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55 FRode of Audit Commities;
The Audit Commithes shall:
|5.5{a} |Dumﬂulmﬂmpu'lngptm-; |
i5.5{h} |nmhdldmdmnﬂrgpduumm i
5.5(c) montior intemal Audi end Compllence procoss io answs that B b siequatoly
rescuresd, Induding npproval of the Imiemal Audi snd Compliancs Plan snd rovies
of the Insernal Audit and Compiancs Repart;
| B6{d) | overses hiring and performanca of axdamsal scrdkom;
5.5{e) hold macting with the etemal or slshriory audtion for eview of tha annusl fnancial
wisbsmerta bafors submisalon o te Board for approvel or edopliorg
B.5(f) review glong with the management, the annual Snancal stements befioe
| sbmipsion to fhe Bopd for approwel;
5.5(g) reviny mlong with the monepgement, the quererdy and hall yearly Nnanciel
sistementz bafom submission o the Board for approesl:
| 55(h) | revisw the adequacy of Inlsmal audk function;
BE5{) | review tha Menagements Discusslon and Analysis before discloging In the Annyal
Raporl; the adaguacy of inlsmal awd function;
|B5{) | raview stslarnent of nll related party mrsecions mubmitied by the menagement;
5.5l review Marsgament Lettsrs ar Latier of Imemal Control weainess lssusd by
sishuiory audtiors;
&.5{0) ovamss the determinaiion of audt fess besad on scops and magniiuds, lsvel of
mpertiss doploped and Gme mduired for effesihve audit and evalusis the
E5{m) | cvemen whether the proceeds ralsad Throngh Inflel Publlc Offerng {(IPO) or Repeet
Pubdc Offering (RPQ) or Righla Ehama Offer have baan uilized os per fhe pirposaes
siabsdd In redevant offer document o prospeche epproved by the Commission:
Provided that fw marapement shall diecioss (v the Audit Commities aboul the
ussa or epplications of the procsede by mejor cedegory (capitel wxpenditurs, ssles Nl Aol
and marimiing sxpenase, working caplisl, mic), on & quarisrly basls, se & part of
thelr quariery declhmtion of Inanclsl resulis: Provided further thet on Bn annusl
bagi, the compsry shall prepare a stalement of the pretasds utlited for the
purposes afher than thosa eisted In the offer decument or proapactum Tor prbl cation
In thee Annusl Report slong with the comments of the Audt Comm ties.
(B8 | Reporting of the Audit Commiites: |
|8.8(s) | Reposting to the Board of Directors: |
| 5.8(a)) | The Audit Commitine shall report on iy activiles i te Board. |
B8l | The Awdit Commitios ahal immedately raport o Bw Board of Directors on the
Tollowing ndings, If amy-
58(s)l) | repor on confivis of Imsvest; Thers wes no
a) u-ulnrm
for e e ervdied
30 Juna, T30
5.8(a)1} | mmpectsd or presumad fruxd or imeguiarly or metsrdal defuct idertifed In tha e
b) Imteereal aud and compliancs prossss or in the financil stxiements; fha year,
S.6(a)()| sumpecisd infringament of lewa, rogulatory compiances Including securitiss roiwted kv, e
c} rules =nd ragulsiions; snd
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iy sl

Cantaliles |
5.5(a)(1)| any other matier which the Audt Commites Gaems necsssery shall ba declosed lahe | (N mch mter
d) | Boand Immadistaly; i

B&b) | Reporting to the Authorities:
¥ tha Awdt Commiitss hes reperied b tha Board sbout amyihing which has matersl
Impect an tha firmnclal coreiion and resulles of cperation and has decussed with e
Board and the managerment that any reclifcstion is necessary and il the Audi Hot Appiotin
Committee finds et euch nectification haa been unreasonshly ignoned, the Audi
Commitise shall report much finding o fha Commisabon, upon reporting of such matism
o the Boerd for thres Bmes o complation of a perdod of § (sb monihs from the dais of
sl mporling to the Bosn, whishewer ls sarior.

5.7 Reporting to the Sharshoiders and General Investors: PR
Reporl on achviles camed out by e Audt Commiites, inchixding amy mgort mada In disviceed In
o the Boerd undsr condiion No. SE)e)|l) sbove during the year, shall beigned | ¥ T
by fhe Chairperson of e Audit Commithes and distiossd in the annual report of offha
fha lesuer company. ot S
|l | Nominetion and Ramunemdion Committes {HRC).- | | | |
81 | Responsiblty to tha Board of Directors | | | |

8.1®) | The company shall have a Nomination and Remwnedation Cormmithes (NRC) a5 a o

€.1(b) | The NRC shall sssist fhe Board in formulstion of the nrominetion aiteria or policy

for determining qualifications, posithve aftributes, wmerkencen and Indepantence -
of direciem end top level emculive s= wol ma a policy for formal pocees of

considaring remunemtion of directors, fop (evel sxecutive;

8.1(5) The Termna of Reference (ToR) of e NRC shall be dearty sst farth in wiling ]
covering tha areas siated ot tha candition Ma. B{5Xh)

| 82 | Conetiution of the NRC | |

82(m) The Committee shal comprise of of lpast threa mambam ncheling an
Indapandsni dirsctor;

|ﬁ.2[b} | All mambem of the Commitiea shall be non-axeculive direchom; | v | | |

| 82(6) | Members of the Commiine shal be nominated and eppoirted by the Board; |

b

8.2(d) The Beard shall have suthorty (2 remove and eppoint any member of the o
Commities;

6.2(8) In case of dewth, res|gnetion, dequaification, or emoval of any membar of e M
Committes or n any ather cesss of vamncles, the board shall [l the wecancy

within 180 {oha hundred edghty) daye of cocuEming such vecancy In the
Commbiios;

G.2(0 The Chalrporscn of the Commities meay eppoint or co-opt any mdomal epot A
andfor memberis) of sl to the Committes sz mdvisor who shall be non-voting
mearmiar, I the Chalmerson feols that advce or suggeaton from such extemal
axpart amifor membeang) of siaf ahall be requirad or valcabla for the Commiites;

| 82{g) | Thecompany sscrstary shal ct as the sacrtery of the Commites; BEaE

82(h} | Thequarum of tha NRT meeting shall not constiute without stiendanca of et least -
an Indapendent director,
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| Cummpiienns ebans

| Ommgtied | ogifis
8.2 Mo mamber of the NRC ahall recebs, alther dirmctly or indimetly, any
memuneration far eny advieory of conautancy nle or olhervss, ofwer than s
Director's foea or honorarium from the company.

o _ﬂ-.-ﬂl

| 83 | Chalmpamen of the NRG |

8.3{n) The Board shall sslect 1 {ome) member of the NRG o bs Chalpaneon of the Comemiites, o
whio shall be an independent direclon

6.3{b) In the sbesnca of the Chalpanon of the NAC, fw remaining mamban may elect one of <
thomeehes ms Chaipemeon for thel partcular mesiing, the meason of sbsance of the
reguier Chalkpemon shall be duly econdad in e mimalse;

B.3{m) The Chaiparsnn of the NREG shmll stisml the anme pensral meating (AGIM] io anwer
e queries of the sharsholders Provided that [n abssnos of Chalrperson of the NRC, o
any other memiber' fmm the NRC shall be selacing i be present In the armsl pensdl
i (AGD) for armemeding the ehansholde's quaies s neson e aboanca of the
Chairpaann of the NRC ahall ba recedad in the mirarss of the AGK.

| 84 | Msaling of the NRC | | | |
| BA(m) | The NRC simil conduct at lezst ane mesing In a finanoiel year |« | | |
6.4(b) Tha Chalrperson of the NRC mey comainn any omanmency moating upon roquoat by amy 7

mamber of tha NRC

B.4{c) Tha quanm of the masiting of fa NRC shall be conslhdad in prdedncs of wir o
rrianbiee o b fhird of the mambess of the Commiing, whichever i highs?, whahs
piasencs of an ndopendont dircior s must on necuined undar cordiian No. BE2)h)

8.4{d) The procesdings of sech masling of the NRC shall duly be recorndad In the minut=s and £
| sich minues shall be confimed In the nesd mesting of fhe NRC.

| 88 | Rolaofthe NRC |

B.5(m) HRC shall be Indepencent and respomsibls o asocuniable to the Brand and o the 7
shmsholdens;

B.5{) NRC shall oversss, among others, fhe following matters and make report with 7
recommendation o the Boand

B.A{0Y]) | formulsting the corera for dstermining gqualficstions, positve athibules and
Indeperdence of & director and moommend & polioy o e Board, relsting i e
remurmrtion of ha direion, top el woouihe, considerdng the dlowing:

B850} | e lovel and eomposition of rmunemion bn ressonable end sufclanm o alfrect, natedn

(@) and mothvatn sufiable diecion 1o run e compsany suceossiuly;

B.5{0)Xi) tha misionehip of remunerution B porfarmants i dear and meels eppripriats | 7

[1}] parformanca benchmarkes; and |

BAEXY) | remunarstion & direchrs, op vl eeodtive imolves & Rl bebveen fiwed and @

= Inmeriivs pay refianting short end long-tem perormanos oiyjeoiives approprats o the
working of the oompery and Is gosks

A.5bXMN devising a policy on Boand'’s divemdly taking Inio considentiion ege, pender, experince, &

8.5{b}m) Kenlifving parsona who mre qualified o become discion and who mey bs sppointsd in
iop ievnl eemculive posiion in sccordence with T crifors [aid down, end recommend L

S.a(b)}y formuisting the oiieda for evalustion of parformance of Indepandent direciors and ths o
Board;

B.5(0)v) |lenlivng the compeny's meeds for smploynes ot difiersnt lvels and detsmming thelr v
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Clowmpliames chains
| Compmen | B, | Temsem)

B.Eb}vl] deweioping, mcommendng and reviswing snmualy the company'a human resources and -
freining policles;

8.5} The compy shall dscioss The nomineion and remunsmtion policy end the svaluiion .
criteria and petiviies of NRC during the yeer et e glancs In s snnual mport.

T EXTERNALIBTATUTORY AUDITCRE:
The Eausr comparsy shall not snpape ks mdemal o sinhutony sudiions fo perform the
foliowing ssrvices of the company, namesh-

7A{) eppmisnl or voliation sstvicss or falmeass opinbra > w
daciared thalr
aomplanoes., |

| 7.100 | fimncil Informetion systeme design and Impismentation; E] B

| 7400y | book-kaeping or other services rekied io the nccounting reconds or inancial sisloments; | 7 | | B

| 7A0v) | brokerdesier servicas; P | |

| 746w} | wolurial senvioes; | 7 | | Do |
|?.1{v|] | Intemal audlt ssrvioes or special audit services; | 4 | | Do |

| 7108 | vy servios thet the Audit Commitine delemines: [ @ ] | b

T.10vH) | eudR or corification services on compliance of compamie povemancs &s rdquind under L Ba

condition Mo. 81} and

| 7.4(x) | any ofar sarvice thet craaies conflict of Intarcat. - | me

72 No partner or employees of the exiemal audt fima shall posscce ory ahare of tha 4 (]

cenviparny Ty vl ot (et during tha tesune of thedr sudi asaimant of fhat company;
by o' e el by i kg bl ol el gy s Iy Thin st oy
Provided thet spouse, son, daughter, fether, muother, brother, sletar, sor-indaw and
dhughiee-{-am shall ba conakdensd s family mambsrs.

7.3 Raprosentotve of sciomal or statuiony cuditons shaoll nomaln preeant in he Sharsholdom' L4

Mosiing (Annual General Maaling o Bxirsondinery Censal Mooling) to erswer tha
tparin of the sharsholders.

s | Msintsining & website by the Compary | | | |

8.1 The company shal havs an oificll webske Enked with the webstie of the shook L
ochangs.

| 82 | The company aholl keap the wabstls functional from the data of Bating. SR | |

83 Tha company shell mak avalahla the detallsd dlscionren on s waballs a8 requind
undiar tha Esfing rgulations of ths condiid abock sxchangaly).

9 Raparting snd Complianca of Camporate Govamancs.

.1 Tha comgany akall obialn & carlificals ffom & pecticing Frofoesionsl Accountart or
Secrelory {Charlerad Accounton] or Cost end Manegemant Accountont or Chartoned
Sacratery) oifer then He atehirtory auditars or awdk firm on yesly hocl regerding
cosgliones of condtions of Compevals Govamancs Coda of the Commissins and shell .
such coxfifierie ohall be disclossd i the Amust Repot. Explamation: "Chirosd
Aooourtant” memns Charlered Amentert e defined In the Bangladesh Charteeed
Agoouriants Order, 1973 (President’s Order No, 2 of 1973 “Cost end Manegemert
Accourmian”™ means Cost and Managemenmt Accountant es defined (n fhe Cost and
Menepament Accouriants Ordinance, 1977 (Ondimnce No. LIl of 1677} "Charkened
Baceinry” means Charlared Secatsry s delined In fha Charlamd Secretaries Act, 2010,

a2 The professional who will provide the certifcsls on complianos of this Comporats '
Govemancs Coce shall be sppoiriad by the shamshoiders in tive amiusl genemsl meeting.

8.2 Tha dinctnrs of $ha company shall elobe, In ecroedancs with tha Annesare-C etteched, In s
th dinecors” rapovt whathes tha comgany hes complied with thaes conditions. of nat.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIg *nnoxurs-D

ON COMPANY'S POSITION AND OPERATION

Despite the impact of COVID-18, the financial and operating performance of Padma Qil Company
Limited during the year 2018-20 has baen satisfactory. We mads ewvery sffort to accomplish our job
effectively and sfficiently during 2018-20 fiscal year. We are focusing on the sustainebility and
efficioncy.

It appears from the business outcome that the szles volume of the Company's petrolaum products
stood at 18.83 lakh metric tons in FY 2018-20 which were 22.81 lakh metric tons in FY 2018-18. Due
to the outbreak of COVID-19, the use of fusl ¢il decreased significantly in the last 4 months of the
reported year. For the same raason, due to limited operation of intemational and domestic aircrafts,
the sales of aviation fual decreasad by 84,730 matre tona Le. 19.83% as comparad to tha previous
fizcal yaar, which k= ona of the main reasons for the decline of fuel sales. In addiion, the usa of disssl
In the power sector has decreased significantly as dlesal-powsred power plants run on Imporisd
ligusfied natural gas (LNG) in the couniry. Moreover, due io import of fumace oil by private power
plarts, the sales of fumeacs oil also decreased over the last year. As a rasult, the Company's fuel oil
sales decreasad by 13.18% In FY 2018-20 over the last year. Howewver, the Company continued iis
operational perfarmance by achleving an operaticnal gain of Taka 5.18 crore In petroleum producis
which was Taka 8.14 crora In tha last year.

In additlon, the Company mads a elgnificant profit In this ysar also In respect of non-operating Incomes
due to the proper fund management of the Company's Finance depariment. The Company was able
to make a profit of Taka 284.65 crore in the furd management sector as against Taka 268.85 crore
In the lagt year.

On the other hand, due to Intense compstiion In the agrochemicals business and the closure of
marketing of the Company’s main agrochamical product Furadan 5G, the total sales of agrochemicals
products of the Company have decreased by 305 metric tons i.6. 12.74% in the yaar under review
companed to the previous flacal year. The outbreak of COVID-19 In the last quarter of the reported
year and prolonged flioods In several districts have also lad to a decreass In sales of agrochemicala
preducts compared to the previous flscal year.

The overall Company's position has been reflected In the Financlal Statements which have been
prepared and presented in accordance with all ganerally acceptad accounting principles, The overall
Company's position and future planning, methods of preparation of financlal statements have been
aummarized below:

Preparstion of Financial Statements

These financial staternents have baen prepared on going concem bagis following accrual basis of
accounting excapt for Cash Flow Statement In compllancs with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
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Accouniing Pollcies and Estimet=s:

Tha datalls of accounting policlas and sstimates applled for the preparation of Financlal Statermnants
ara described In note no.: 2.00 of audhied financial statements. There are no changes In accounting
policies and estimates for the fiscal year 2019-2020.

Comparative analysis of financial Parformance

Key financlal data of inmediats preceding five years Ia shown detalled In Annexure-3 of the Directors’
Repornt. For comparson, financlal results and financlal posttion of the Company for the financlal year
2018-20 with immadiate preceding five ysars are given balow:

Amount in Grore Taka

Fingnclsl & Operationsl meulis HB-20a) | 20102018 | 2017-2018 | MHG-BM7 | 252010 | 2014-2015
Salea (MT In Lalkh) 19.63 2281 23.86 20.08 17.63 17.88
et Eamings on petrolsum products 218.46 28857 0182 244 59 186.91 180.97
Opating sxparmes 230.41 2520 220,42 167.08 147.21 133.08
[Total operating proft T258| 13404 14887 108.71 11367 11381
Profit after bax 272,96 286,65 335,80 203.13 187.38 152,80
EPS (Taka) 27.70 2007 84.16 2088 19.07 18.68
Nett Asast Valus par shars [Taka) 157.84 14285 124.78 103.60 a2e2 8385
Mt operating cash flow per sha {Take) 80.81 {52 25} {38.37) 11842 80.22 {87.80}
Number of smpioyses 1009 1025 1042 1110 1146 1172

Financial Parformancs of Peer Industry

Thera are thres major oil marketing companies in the petroleum indueiry namely Padma Oil Company
Umited {POCL), Maghna Petroleum Limited (MPL) and Jamuna Oll Company Limited (JOCL} under
Bangladesh Patrolaum Corparation. A comparison of three marketing companias’ financlal and operational

data during 2012-20 are summarized below:
Amount In Crore Taka

Particulars POGL MPL | JOCL
Sales (MT In Lakh} 19.63 18.96 | 14.88
Net Eamings on petrolsum products 21848 | 21053 | 104.69
Administrative, selling & distribution sxpenses | 208.30 | 10233 | 9710
Operating expenses 23041 | 126.93 | 114.37
Tolal cperating profit 7259 |111.04 | 2118
Profit after tax 272.98 | 30792 | 200.18 |
EPS (Taka) 2779 | 2845 | 1813
Net Asast Value per share (1aka) 1567.64 | 148.21 | 181.40
Net operating cash flow per share (Taka) ane1 | (27.78) | 20.38
Numbser of emplovees 1008 410 504

Global and Local Economic Scenario:

Tha most of the countries in the werld are struggling with the crisis caused by the COVID-18. As a
result of the pandemic, the growth of global economy is projected at 4.4 percent in 2020 as per IMF's
World Economic Qutiook report. Global growth Is projected at 5.2 percent In 2021. Although the
worid's economies have collapsed due to the Coronavirus, Bangladesh has achlaved the highest
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GDP In Asla as a result of the government's proper and timaly action. According to the provisional
astimete of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), the GDP growth rate stood at 5.24 percant In FY
2018-20. Bangladesh economy has achlaved unprecadanted success in racent years. As a rasult of
COVID-19, the govemmant Iowered the Initial GDP growth target from 820 percent 1o 5.20 percent
in the reported year. Govemnment of Bangladasah has vislonary tanget to bulld a durable and sustain-
able enargy, power and fransportation infrastructurs in order to bacome a prosperous nation,

Risk and Miigation:
Risk tactors of patroleum Sector :

The economy of Bangladesh ks growing faster and Kt creates an opportunity for the emtire oll industry
and powsr sector. There are soma challenges In business of patroleum preducts such as markat
competition with private sactor, opan markst economy, fluctustions of price of Importad patrolewm
products etc.

Rizk Factors of Agrochemical Secior

More than 250 companies including soma giant multinationsls are heading to grab the markst of
agrochemicals. Thers is a siiff compstition in the agrochemical market. Besides, Bangladesh is
among the most vulnerable courtrss to climats changs, which peses a long-term threat to the

courttry's agriculiural sector, particularly In areas affected by flooding, sallne Intrusion, and drought.
Price factore of our quality products are vary much concem for us.

Mitigation pollcy:

The Govt. of Bangiadeah |2 emphasizing of enacting favorable rulea and poliey to atiract the
Investors. We are manktoring to kdentify and asssss the potantlal challenges and to find the way out
to mitigate those challanges. Various steps have been taken by the Company to increass the sales
volume of petroleum products and to mitigats operating loss of agrochemicals business. Aulo gas
{LNG) marketing activities are belng undertaken at the filling statlons under the Company's marksting
network along with petroleumn products natlonwida. The Company has siready signed egreaments
with 3 autogas operators In thia regard. To Incrense the sales volume of agrochemicals product,
markating of two granular products such as Optimus 5G (FMC ,USA) and Ugent 3G (UPL, India) has
already started to meet the shortage of Furadan 5G. In addition, the Company is in the process of
imperting two herbicides. registerad in its own name for marketing from the cument season. If it is
markated by formulating, it will be possikle to sall It at compstithve market price. To this and, tha
Company has planned to formulate and markat the preduct at the exating plant of the maln
Installation of the Company. It la mentionable hera that the reglstration of the product has alrsady
besn transfemad from FMC to Padma Oil Company Limitsd.

In ordar to mitigate the operating losa of the agrochemicala business, the curment market segment
la reviewed and the offices In the leeser selling areas are closed and Integrated with the nearby
offices. In addition, approprate steps have been taleen to reducs overall operating coats In the
aactor by contralling expandliure through reorganizing the manpower. A commities constituted by
the Company |s regularly reviawing the aslling price of homogeneous producta of the compating
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companies and re-determining the price of the products from time to time accordingly. As a result, the
Company was able to reduce a 32.14% operating loss in the agrochemicals business in the reported
year compared fo the previous fiscal year. The management of the Company is regularly monitoring
the inherent business risk and taking corrective measures.

Future Planning:

A development program has been undertaken for business expansion and smaooth supply of fuel to
the public by establishing new depots, storage tanks and other physical infrastructures. The future
plans have beentaken by the Company are narrated in detail under the head of 'Future action plans
to increase the Company's Operating Capability' in the Directors' Repont.

The Company is also adhering to improve its performance through speclalization, differentiation,
segmentation and overall diversification.

We are hopeful that we shall achieve our projected target and march forward in the years to come.

—ll——

(Md. Masudur Rahman)
Managing Director
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50'™ Annual General Meeting

The 50th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Padma Oil Company Limited was
held at "Navy Convention Centre," Ambagan Road, Tigerpass, Chattogram on
I8 Januvary 2020 at 11-00 am. Board Chairman Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman
presided over the meeting. Directors of Board Mr. Mohammad Igbal, Dr. Mohd.
Sher Ali, Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman, Mr. KM Eneyetul Karim, Mr.
Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul, Mr. Nasiruudin Akther Rashid, Managing Director
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman, Company Secretary Mr. Sohel Abdullah as well as
and BPC and Company's senior officials attended at the Meeting.

Afier recitation of verse from the Holy Quran the Chairman welcomed the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The meering started with the
Chairman's inviting comments on proceedings of the last Annual General Meeting
followed by comments on Directors' Report and audited financial statements for
the year ended 30 June, 2019. The sharcholders unanimously approved the andited
financial statements and proposed 130% cash dividends for the vear ended 30 June
2019. Proposal for appointment of extemal auditors M/s, Khan Wahab Shafique
Rahman & Co. and M/s. Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants for
the year 2019-2020 was approved by the shareholders. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury &
Co. Chantered Accountent was appointed by the shareholders for issuing cerfificate
regarding compliance of Corporate Governance Code.

A huge number of honourable shareholders actively participated in the
discussion and they talked about the overall performance of the Company in the
AGM. Chairman of the Board Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahaman and Managing
Director Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman replied to the queries and explained on
varous comments made by distinguished sharcholders.

Shareholders appreciated the Company's over all performance during the meeting.
The meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the chair.



ANNUAL REFORT
2019-2020

Photographs of 50th AGM

T e
st woE it EaEe
f PRI ST o = 57 L) 0 Wi )

@O =¥ Ry wsl
RN W . T




ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

" Photographs of 50th AGM

L

TSNS o = ; EVR




ANNUAL REFORT
2019-2020

Photographs of 50th AGM




ANNUAL REFPORT

2015-2020

=
<
<
—
=
un
E
=
£
g
=
P.

ME-2

R

74




ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

Photographs of 50th AGM




ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

Photographs of 50th AGM







ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

 Photographs of 50th AGM




ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

Gl AT e 8 W Teded wfae |



. 7
wmﬁmﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁg

(TR o e e SR T

GTST o e e



ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

m@wﬁmmwﬂwwmwﬁm|



ANNUAL REPORT
2015-2020

et srg ey AaTe A Al T e



ANNUAL REPORT
2019-2020

g werE e
wE e e,
DTS % 0
T Bl
T FT |




|elauan-Ale3ainag &
i dvalz

nasg -

0202 42QUIAIAD ] € JIAUN FUALNI SUIDWAL 23DIYI3D S1Y ],

03210y Bunnpaddp sabypoud puv syybBu 2y g 03 paymua st puv
saiuedwo) pajsiy Ajaijgnd Jo uoneossy ysapejsueg fo aquay; Cvurpi up si

QILINTT ANVAWOD TIO VWAV
1y (fiasar 03 sp s,
)LIYI1IY) PIMAUIY

sl
ol
SR
:wﬁ.h..whaEn&.:w:memEuq Ul_n_d\m mz..._ﬁ%.:u_.aa.mmu
_l._-

(&l SIINYAINOD @3LSI A1DI18Nd 40 NOLLYIJOSSY HSIAYIONYE

84



ANNUAL REPORT

Contribution & Value Additions

For The Year Ended 30 June 2020

[Particulars Taka In '000 |
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 %
Earnings on
Petroleum Products 2,184 645 2,885,711
Agro-chemicals trading (28,762) (42,382)
2,155,884 2,843,329
Other Income 3.877.786 3,518,467
Total value added 8,133,670 #,362.795
Distribution of added value
To Govermnment as revenue & taxes B840, 486 13.70 1,089,155 17.12
To Employees & others cost 853,518 14.51 673,219 10.58
To Financial expenses 221,040 3.60 260,431 4.10
Tao shareholders 1.277.025 20.82 1.277.025 20.07
To depreciation & retained earnings 2,941,600 47.36 3.062.965 48.14
6,133,670 100.00 6,362,795 100.00
2020 W 2019

56.00

459.00

42.00

B
g 8

Pl

-

Percentage (%)
8 8 8 8

Government

revenue & Taxes

Employees &
others Cost

Financial
EXPENSES

Shareholders Depreciation &

retained Profit
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| Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company Limited was formed by the Board of Directors of the

Company in accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's Notlfication
No-SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018.

The composition of present Audit Committee is as under :

Mr. Mchammad Igbal :  Chairman
Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali : Member
Mr. Mohammed Shahidul Alam : Member
Mr. Sohel Abdullah : Secretary

Terms of Reference

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to ensure and to improve the adequacy of internal control
system and provides the update information to the Board of Directors. The Committee is empowered
to examine the matter relating to the financial and other affairs of the Company. The terms of
reference of the Audit Commiftee cover all matters specified under Clause-5(5) of the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission's Notification date 3 June 2018.

Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit Commitiee shall :-

oversee the financial reporting process;

monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it |s adequately resourced, including
approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Report;

oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;

review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval;

review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

review the adequacy of internal audit function;

review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; the
adequacy of internal audit function;

review statement of all related party transactions submitied by the management;
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1 review Management Letters or Letter of Intemal Conirol weakness issued by the statutory auditors:

1 oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed
and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors; and

1 aversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering
{RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document
or prospectus approved by the Commission:

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses or applications
of the proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working
capital, atc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results:
Provided further that on an annual basis, the Company shall prepare a statemen! of the proceeds
utilized for the purposes other than those slated in the offer document or prospeclus for publication
in the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit Committee.

Number of Meeting
The Committee formally met four times during the penod form July 2019 to June 2020.

Activities carried out by the Audit Committee :
During 2019-2020 the Audit committee carried out the following fasks:

1 Reviewed the financial statements of FY 2019-20 submitied by the external auditors and put
Committee's recommendations to the board;

1 Discussed with the external auditors regarding financial statements of 2019-20,

1 Reviewed the quarterly and hali-yearly financial statements of 2018-20 and put Committea’s
recommendations fo the board;

1 Reviewed revised budget of the Company during 2019-20 including budget of 2020-21 and put
Commitiee's recommendations to the board;

1 Reviewed Management Letter issued by the Statutory auditors and put Commitiee’s
recommendations to the board.

The committee reviewed and discussed the financial reports preparation and the extemal audil report
during FY 2019-20. The committee found adequate arrangement 1o present a free and fair view of the
aclivities and the financial status of the Company and did not find any material deviation, discrepancies
or any adverse finding/observation in the areas of reporting.

aRRRP

(Mchammad Igbal)
Chairman
Audit Committee, POCL



Report of The Nomination and
Remuneration Commitee (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Padma OQil Company Limited was formed on 10
November 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission's Notification No-BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June
2018. The policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors and top level executives of the Company
has been formulaled by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee (NRC) In compliance with the
BSEC's above notification on Corporate Governance under directives of Energy and Mineral Resources
Division under Ministry of Power Energy and Mineral Resources and Bangladesh Petroleum Comoration.

1. Composition :

1.1  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("“NRC") shall be appointed by the Board of
Directors (“Board”) from among their members and shall consist nol less than 3 (Three) members,

1.2 In the event of any vacancy in the NRC, the Board shall within 3 (three) months appoint such
number of new members.

1.3 The appoiniment of a NRC member shall automatically be terminated if the member ceases to be
a Director, or as determined by the Board.

The composition of present Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) Committee is as under :

Mr. Mohammad Igbal, Independent Director : Chairman
Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali, Director : Member
Mr, Mohammed Shahidul Alam, Director : Member
Mr. KM Eneyetul Karim, Independent Director . Member
Mr. Sohel Abdullah, Company Secretary : Secretary

2, Duration of appointments

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the duration of appointments of the Committee shall
commensurate with the term and condition of appointment of the respective member to the Board of
directors of the Company.
3. Chairman
3.1 The Chairman of the NRC shall be appointed by the board from among the members who

is an Independent Director.

3.2 In the absence of the Chalrman of the NRC, the remaining members present shall elect one of
their members as chaiman of the meeting.

3.3 The Chairman of the NRC shall report to the Board on any matter that should be brought to the
Board's attention and provide recommendations of the NRC that require the Board's approval at

the Board Meeting.
4. Secretary of the NRC
41 The Board Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all meetings.

42 The Secretary shall draw up an agenda for each meeting, in consultation with the Chairman of the
NRC. The agenda shall be sent to all members of the NRC.

4.3 The Secretary shall prepare the Minutes of the NRC meeting and distribute it to each member.
The Minutes of the NRC shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting.



44 The Minutes of the NRC meeting shall be maintained by the Secretary and be presented for

approval of the Board.

5. Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee (NRC) have been
determinad by the Board as per BSEC’s notification. The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation
of the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences
and independence of directors and lop level executive as well as formal process of considering
remuneration of directors and ltop level executives under directives of Bangladesh petroleum
Corporation.

6.

Responsibilities
To oversee, among others, the following matiers and make report with recommendation to the Board:

(i) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director under directives of concerned Ministry and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and
recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration Is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully under directives of concerned Ministry
and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC).

(b) The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performarice
benchmarks; and

{c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves as balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting shori and long-term performance objectives appropriate 1o the working
of the company and its goals.

(i) Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender, expenence,
ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

(iit) Identifying persons who are qualifled to become Directars and who may be appointed in top
level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down by the concerned Ministry and
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and recommend their appointment and removal to the
Board;

(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board;

{v) Identifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection,
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;

(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company's human resources and
training policies.

(vii) To review and recommend the ocutcome of the evaluations and assessments to the Board
concerning the areas of continuous improvement.

(vii) To review and recommend the outcome of the evaluations and assessments to the Board
caoncerning the areas for continuous improvement.

(viil) To carry out such other duties or functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time or required by the regulatory authority.

Reporting
Minute of each Committee meeting will be disclosed at the next meeting of the Board. Periodically
the Chair of the Committee shall report to the Board on matiers within its duties and responsibilities.



7.3

7.4

inclusion in the Annual Report, including a description of significant issues dealt with by the Committee.

The Committee shall in its decision making, give due regard to any relevant legal or regulatory
requiremants, and associaled best praciice guidance, as well as lo the risk and reputation implications
of its decisions (liaising where relevant with other committees).

The Committee shall have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties and have
the power to engage independent counsel and other professional advisers and to invite them to
attend meetings.

8. 2019-2020 Meeting of NRC

The Commitiee formally met for the first time on 17.06.2019. During 2019-20, a meeting was held on
12.12.2019. The Commitiee made recommendations on the following activities:

8.1
8.2

8.3

To determine the Terms of Reference (TOR) of the commitiee;

To determine Training Need Assessment (TNA) for modernizing the training schedule of the
Company's officers and employees;

To make recommendation for training workshop at Dhaka and Chattogram for the
Company's officers and employees.

9. Appointment of Director and top level executive :

The committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification and experience of the person for appointment
as Director and top level executive and recommend hisher appoinment as per company's palicy.

10.

1.

12

13.

14.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluations of performance of Director and top level executives
yearly or at such interval.

Retirement :
The Director and top level executives shall retire as per policy of the Company.

Policy for Remuneration to Directors/ Top level Executives:

a) The Remuneration is to be paid to top level executives as per Company's policy.

b) The Directors may receive meeting fees and such other remuneration as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Gommittee and approved by the Board of Directors.
Self-Assessment :

The Committee shall conduct an annual self-assessment of its activities under the Terms of
Reference and report any conclusions and recommendations to the Board and, as pan of this
assessment, shall consider whether or naol it receives adequate and appropriate support in
fulfiiment of its role and whether or not its annual plan of work is manageable.

Acknowledgement :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expresses its sincere thanks to the Members of
the Board and the Management of the Company for their excellent support in carrying out the
duties and responsibilities of the committee during the period under review

QRPN

(Mohammad Igbal)
Chaiman, NRC
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Padma Qil Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Padma Oil Company Limited ("the Company')
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statermnent of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and smtement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements glve true and falr view of the financial position of the
company as at 30 June 2020, and of its financlal performance and its cash flow for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (I5As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described In the Auditors' Responsibiliies for the Awdit of the Financial
Statements section of our report We are independent of the company In accordance with the Intemational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
ev|dence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlan.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgement, were of most significance In our audit
of the financlal statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the firancial statements as a whole, and In forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide & separate

opinion on these matters.

Revenue nition - sale of goods

Refer to note 23 and 3.10

[The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Fevenue recognition has significant and
wide influence on financial slatemenis

Revenue is recognised when the amounts
and the related cosis ame reliably measured,
and the performance obligation is complst-
ed through passing of conirol o the custom-
ers. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognized when the company has deliv-
ered products 1o the customers al lhe
shipping point and control has passed, The
sales of the Company are derived from
faclores and various depois located across
the country with relatively transactions of
small amounts: As a resull, to obtain
sufficient audit evidence, magnitude of audit
work and resource are reguired.

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Company
and lherefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition of
revenue by management to meel specific
targeis or expeciations.

Our audit procedures in this area included. among others:

- We understood. evalualed and validated lhe key controls
related o the Gmup's and Company's sales process from
end to end, from contracis approval and sign-off, recording
of sales, all the way through cash receipts and customers'
outsianding balances.

- We tesled the completenass of journal entries compared
io financial statements and whether if there is any excep-
fion existed thal the debit accounis of sales recognition
were naot related fo cash and bank, trade recelvahle or
advances from customers.

- We conducted substaniive tesiing of revenue recorded
over the year using sampling techniques. by examining the
relevant supporting documents including sales invoices and
challans. In addition, we confirmed ceriain customers'
receivable balances at the reporling date, selected an a
sample basis by considaring the amounts outstanding with
those customers

21
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Wa tocused an the proper cut-off of ssles to the
Company's customers due to the fact that the
documants of confirming fhe acceplance of [he
products: were provided by numerous cuslomars
basad in different localions. Them ‘B a rgk ol
differences between the timing of acceptance of he
products by the Company's costomers and when
revenus was recorded. Accordingly, there could be
potential mizstatements that these revanue transac-
fiors are not recognised in the proper reporting
parinds.

- Furfhermore, we lested the sales transactions recognized: shorthy
before and after the reporting date; including the salas retums
recorded aftar that date, to examine whethar sales fransactions wara
recorded in the correct reparting panods.

Valuation of Praparty. plant and equipment

Refer 1o note 4 and 3.01

[The key audit matter

How tha matter was addressed In our audit

The comparny has large amount and nurm-
bers of property, planl and equlpment ems.
Due to technologlcal and time obsolescence
the impaimenl may exists,

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect all assels. This
conclusion  reguired sigrificant  management
judgment. Hence we considered this to be a key
audit matter.

Crur audil pocedums in his area included, among others:

- Assessing the consistency of methodologies used for depraciating
tho sssats!

- Checking, on a sample basis , the accuracy and mlevance of the
accounting of PPE by management; and

- For selected samples, parfarming physical observation 1o assoss
managements datarmination on whather the eguipment is obsolate,
and tasting the assumptions usad i estimating recoverable amount,
such as estmated usetul Ite and replecement cost,

- Examined managemant's: penodic review of proparty, planl and
equipmeant for determination of impairmant and ochsolescance.

Fleuag

nition and measurement of deferred taxes

Refer to note 14.00 and 3.09

The key audil matter

How the matter was addressed In our audit

The company recognizes deferred laxes
relating lo propery, plant and equipment
(including revalued assels), Investments In
subsidiaries and associate, employees benefils,
converlible bond, unabsorbed depreciation
ete: which are very complex in nature.

As such accounting for deferred taxes
invalves management judgment In developing
estimates of lax exposures and conlingencjes
inorder lo assess the adequacy of lax provision.
Hence, we consldered this o be a key audit
matier.

Our audit procedures in thisarea included, among others:

- Assessed the design, implementalion and operating
effectivenass of key controls in respect of the Group's and the
Company's process of rmeognition of deferred laxes.

- Using our own tax specialists o evaluate the tax bases and
Group's tax strategy

- Assessed the accuracy and completeness of deferred tax; and

- Evaluating the adequacy of the [linancial statemenls
disclosures, including disclosures of assumptions, judgements
and sensitivities

Other Information

Management |s responsible for the other Information. The other information comprises the infermation Included in
the annual report, bul does nol Include the financial statemeants and our auditor's report thereon.

In connectlon with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibllity 1s to read the other nformatlon and, In
doing so, consider whethar the other Information s materally inconsistent with the financial statements or aur
krowledge obtained in the audl or otherwise appears lo be malenially misslated.

If, based on the work we have perlarmed, we conclude thal there |s a materdal misstatement of this other information,
we are required Lo reporl thal facl We have nolhing to reporl in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such Internal control as management determines |s necessary to enable the
preparafion of finanoial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frawd or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abiltty to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ob|ectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve| of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or inthe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticlsm throughout the audit We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finandial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obialn audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Intemal control.

- Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedurss that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's Intemal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by managemeant

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's abllity o continue as a going concern. If wa conclude that a material
uncerainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financlal statements or, it such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinjen. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to confinue as a going concem.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves falr presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, superyision and performance of the audit We remain solely responsible for ocur audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other mattars, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficlencles in Internal control that we
Identity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattars in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public inlerest benefits of such
communication.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 were audited by Rahman
Rahman Hug Chartered Accountants and Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co, Chartered Accountants and
issued unqualified opinion on 04 November 2019,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also
report the following:

a) we have oblained all the information and explanations which io the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appeared from our examination of those books;

¢) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business.

Rt

Place : Chattogram, Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Khan Wahéb Shafique Rahman & Co.
Date : 24 December, 2020 Ghanered Accourtants Charterad Accountants
Signed By - Signaed By :-
Arafat Kamal FCA (1184) Mohammad Shaheed FCA (1016)
Fartner Sanior Parnear
DVC : 2012271184 AST25742 DVC : 2012271016AS553041
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Padma Oil Company Limited 15
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2020

Taka in' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

ASSETS Note(s)

Non-current assets

Froperty, plant and equipment E! 1,784,043 1,764,038
Capital work-in-progress 5 536,933 613,669
Investment - Depreciation Fund (FDR) 6 1,378,885 -
3,700,861 2,377,707
Current assets
Inventories T 18,998,231 18,765,630
Accounts receivable 8 18,311,082 18,049 875
Due from affiliated companies 9 12,380,820 95,318,951
Advances, deposits and pre-payments 10 146,957 358,265
Cash and cash equivalents 11 38,429 162 31.337.390
89,276,352 163,820,111
TOTAL ASSETS 92.977.213 166,207,818
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital 12 982,327 982,327
Depreciation Fund Reserve (Accumulated Surplus) 13 36.628 -
Retained eamings 14.466.415 13.050,432
Total equity 15,485,370 14,032,759
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities 14 212928 197,393
Long Term Loan 15 183.463 183.463
396,391 380,856
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 16 10,919,816 21,137,557
Supplies and expenses payable 17 3,965 847 10,784,730
Due to affiliated companies 18 57,468,474 116,982,402
Other liabilities 19 4,279 866 2,488 475
Dividend payable 20 167,836 149,879
Income tax payable 21 293.613 241,160
77,095,452 151,794,203
Total Liabilities 77,491,843 152,175,059
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 92,977,213 166,207,818
Net Asset Value ( NAV ) per share 38 Tk. 157.64 Tk. 142.85

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

i e

Sohel Abdullah Md.Masudur Rahman KM Eneyetul Karim  Md.\Ekhlasur Rahman
Company Secretary CE & Managing Direcior Director Director

As peruur annexed report of same date.

hm; Mosta aAlam &{:G Kl'ﬂnWahd%Shaﬂque Rahman & Co.

Charered Accountants Charlered Accounlants
ODVE : 201227 11B4ASTEET42 EVE : 201227101 8AS553041

Chattogram, 24 December 2020
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' Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Taka in' 000
vy DABRED GOSN

Gross earnings on Petroleum Products 23 2,158,057 2,852,038
Direct cost on Petroleum Products:
Facking Charges 2301 (18.819) (20.415)
Handling Charges 23.01 (6,380) (7,346)

2,132 858 2824277
Met Operational {Loss)/Gain 2901 51,787 61,434
Net earnings on petroleum products 2,184 645 2,885711
Operating expenses:
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 24 {2,083,039) (2,001,520)
Financial expenses 25 (221,040) (260,431)
Operating Profit on Petroleum (119,434) 533,760
Other operating Income -petroleum trade 26 874,128 B48,006
Operating (loss)/profit on Agro-chemical trading 27 (28,761) (42,382)
Teotal Operating Profit 725933 1,340,384
Mon-operating Income 28 3,103 658 2670461
Profit before WPPF 3,829,591 4,010,845
Contribution to Workers' Profis Participation and Welfars Fund (191,480) (200.542)
Met Profit before income tax 3,638,111 3,810,303
Provision for Incorme tax:
Current tax 21 (892,839) (949, 646)
Deferred tax 14 (15,535) (5,138)
Net Profit after tax 2,729 637 2,855,519
Surplus from Investment transfer b Depreciation Fund Reserve [ 36,628)
Other comprehensive income .
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,693,009 2855519
Earnings per share (EPS - basic) 30 Tk. 27.79 Tk. 29.07

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

R —

Md.Ekhlasur Rahman
Director

sahel Abdullah Md. Masudur Rahman

! KM Eneyetul Karim
Gompany Secretary CEQ & Managing Direclor

Director

As per our annexed report of same date.

Khan Wahééﬁhaﬂque Rahman & Co,

Rahman Mostata Alam & Co.
Charlered Accounlanls

Charlered Accounlants
DYC : 2012271 18445725742 DVC 2012271 016A5553041

Chattogram, 24 December 2020
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Taka' 000

Share Retained Depreciation Total

Capital eamings Fund Reserve equity
Balance as on 01 July 2018 982 327 11,471,939 - 12,454 266
Cash dividend declared for the year 2017-2018 - (1,277,026 - ( 1.2??.{)25;
Transferred from depreciation fund - - - -
Tatal comprehensive Income for the year s 2855519 - 2,555.51'.:3
Balance as at 30 June 2019 982,327 13.050.432 - 14,032,758
Balance as on 01 July 2019 982,327 13.050.432 - 14,032,758
Cash dividend declared for the year 2018-2(19 - (1,277 026} - (1277 028)
Transferred from Depreclation Fund - - 36,628 36,628
Taolal comprehensive income for the year - 2,693,009 - 2693 009
Balance as at 30 June 2020 982,327 14,466,415 36,628 15,485,370

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

pireg o T

Sohel Abdullah Md. Masudur Rahman KM Eneyetul Karim Md.¥khlasur Rahman

Company Secratary CEO & Managing Direcior Director Director
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from customers and others

Paid to supplers against patroleum and agro products and others
Incame tax pald
Net cash {used)/generated from Operating Activities

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Capital Expenditures

Investment in Depreciation Fund-FDRs
Interest received from FOR/SND

Praceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash generated from Investing Activities

C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Dividend paid
Netcash used in Financing Activities

Total (A+B+C)

Opening cash and cash equivalants
Closing cash and cash eguivalents

Takain' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
236,303,881 176,960,945
(227,515,501) (181,008,391)
(840 485) (1,089,155)
7,947 895 (5,136,601)
(188 236) (338,079)
(1,379 885) 4,225 810
2,824 BOT 2,679 596
146,171 280
1,402,946 6,567,707
(1.259,069) (1260,014)
(1,259,069) (1,260,014)
8001772 171,092
31,337,390 31,166 298
39,429,162 31,337,390
B.091772 171,092
R e T
Tk. 80.91 Tk. (52.29)

Operating Cash Inflow/{Qutflow) per share (note - 40)

The annexed notes from 1 lo 48 form an integral part of these financlal statements.

TR e

sohel Abdullah Md. Masudur Rahman

Company Secretary CEDQ & Managing Direchor

KM Eneyetul Karim

Dirsctor

Md. Ekhlasur Rahman
Cirector
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ANNUAL REPORT
Padma Oil Company Limited  #U15-2040
Notes to the Financial Statements

As at and for the year ended 30 June 2020

Legal Form of the entity

Padma Oil Company Limited (The 'company') was incarporated as a Public Limited Campany on 27 Aprll
1965 under the name and style of Burmah Eastern Limited having its registerad office al Chattogram. In
1977, Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsldiary of Bangladesh Petroleurn Corporation (BPC). The
name of the company was changed to Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL) with effect from 3rd Septem-
ber 1988 and its shares are listed with both the Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Limited and Dhaka
Stock Exchange {DSE) Limited.

Nature of the business

The princlpal agtivities of the Company are procurement, storage and marketing of Petroleum products,
Lubricants, Greases, Bllumen and LPG.

In addition. the Company manufactures Agro Chemlcals products (Furadan) in its Granular Pesticides
Formulation plant and markets Furadan together with cerain other Imported Agro-Chemicals products.

Basis of preparation, presentation & disclosures of financial statements

Statement of compliance
These Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual basis of
accounting except for Cash Flow Staternent in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
(tASs) and International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities
and Exchange Fules 1987.

Basis of reporting

These tinanclal statements are prepared and presented for external users in accordance with identified
financial reporting framework. Presantation has been made in compliance with the requirements of 1AS
1: "Presentation of Financial Statements”.

Other regulatory compliances

The Company is also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations along with the
Companies Act 1994:

|} The Income Tax Crdinance, 1884

[l) The Income Tax Rules, 1984

i The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012 (Effective from 01 July 2019)
Iv) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016

v) The Customs Agt, 1969

vl) Bangladesh Labour Law, 2006

vii} The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

viil) The Securities and Exchange Bules, 1987

Ix) Securities and Exchange Commisslon Act. 1993, elc.

Basls of measuremant
The elements of Financial Statements have been measured on "Historical Cost " convention Ina going
concern concept and on accrual basls.

Going concern

The company has adequate resources and Intentlon to continue Its operation as going conecem for the
foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to adopt golng concern basls [n preparing the
Financial Statements

The current revenue genermtions and resources of the company provide sufficient fund o meetthe presant
requirements of its existing business and operation.

Comparative Information

Comparative Informatlon has been disclosed In respect of the preceding year in accordance with 1AS-1:
Presentation of Financlal Statements, for all numeric infermation In the financlal statements and also the
narrative and scriptive information where |t is relevant for understanding of the current year's Financial
Staternents. Prior year's flgures are rearranged wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability
with the current year.



ANNUAL REPORT

207

208

208

210

Functional and presantation currency
Tha financial statemants are presentad in Bangladeshi Taka which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial Informetion presamted in BDT has besn rounded off to the nearest thousand Taka.

Conslstoncy

Unless ctherwise stated, the accounting policies and methods of computation used in prepamiion of the
financial statemants as at and for the year anded 20 Jus 2020 are cangistant with those poies and
matheds adogted in praparing the financial stakmants for the year ended 30 June 2018,

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents esseis and lipblitiss In the statement of financlal posttion bagad on
cumant/non-cument classification.

An assst le cumant whan it 1s:

& Expectod to be reallzed or Intended to sold or congumead In the nammal operating cycle

b. Held primarity for tha purposs of trading

c. Expected to be reallzed wiihin twafve months after the reporting period and

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to seitls a llabllity for at least
twahva months after the reporting periad

The company classifles all other eassis a8 non-cument.

A llablllty k= current when:

a It Is expeciad to ba settied In the normal operating cycle

b. it Ia held primarlly for the purpose of trading

c. it ks due to be sstted within twelve months after the reporting perod and

d. There is no uncorditional right to defer tha ssttlement of the liability for at lsast twelve months after the
reporiing pariod,

The company classifies all cther Babiliies as nor-currert. Defemed tex asssats and liabilities are classified
as noncurmrant aseets and liabilitics,

Upa of satimeates and Judgmenis

Tha prapataiion of the financlal statemants In conformity with 1AS and IFRS requires manegament to make
|udgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the appllcation of ascouriing policles and the reporied
amounts of assels, llabliites, income and expenses. Achual resulte mey differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basls. Revialons to sccounting esimates
ara recognizad In the perlod In which the astimates ane revised and In any future perods affectad.

Judgamants, Assumplions and estimation uncartainties

Information about Judgaments mads in apphing accounting policiss and assumptions and sstimation
uncertalnties that have the moest significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financlal statements
ks Included In the following notes:

Note 4: Property, plant and equipment
Mota 7! Imvantorias

Note 8: Accounts necalvable

Note 13: OCther Eahlitdes

Note 21: Inome tex payable/(racatvabla)
Nots 14: Deferred tax Eablites

Note 37: Contingent llabiitles
Mesgurgmant of falr veluss

When maasuring the fair value of an agsat or liahlity, the entity uses market observable dala as far as
possble. Fair values are categorized Intp different levels In a fair value hisrarchy bassd on the inputs
uaad In the valuation techniques as follows.

Lewval 1: Quoted pricesa {unad|usted) in active markets for idantical assats and llablitdes.

Lawal 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 that are chearvable for the asset or llablify,
slther directly {L.e. as prices) or iIndireclly {l.e. dervaed from pricas).

Leval 3: Inputs for the azssta or lisbliities that are not basad on chsarvable market data.

If the Inpute wsad to maasure the falr value of an assst or llablity might be categorzed In differant levels
of the falr valus hlerarchy s the lowsest level input that | significant to the antire measurement.
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3.01.01

3.01.02

3.01.03

3.01.04

Reporting period
These financial statements of the company cover one year from 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 and is
followed consistently.

Authorization for issue
These financial statements have been authorized for Issue by the Board of Directors on Board Mesting
Date 24 December 2020.

Significant accounting pelicies

The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company's management for significant
fransactions and events that have material effect within the framework of IAS-1 *Presentation of Financial
Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout the year and were also consistent with those used In earier years, except otherwise stated.

For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set outbelow in one
place as prescribed by the 1AS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”. The recommendations of IAS-1
relating to the format of financial statements were also taken into full consideration for fair presentation.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
All Property, Plant & Equipments except Freehold Land are inltlally accounted for at cost and depreciat-
ed avar their expected useful lives In accordance with 1AS-16.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acguisition of the assets. The cost of self
constructed /installed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for its Intended use and the cost of dismantling
and remaving the items and restoring the site on which they are located.

On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreclation are eliminat-
ed, and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the income statement which is determined with
reference to the net book value of the assets and the net sale procesds.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing par of an item of property, plant and equipment 15 récognized In the camying
amount of the itern if it is probable that the future economic benefit embodied within the part will flow to
the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day o day servicing of property,
plantand equipment are recognized in Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income as
incurred.

Depreciation

Mo depreciation is charged on freehold land and on capital work in pragress, Depreciation |s recognized
I the statermeant of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income on stralght line method over the
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation |s charged from the month of addi-
ion when the asset |s ready for use and no depreciation is charged from the following month of deletion.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Assets Rates of depreciation (%)
Leasehold Land 3.5

Building 2.5-10

Flant and Machinery 7.5-10

Vehicle 20

Furniture and Fixtura 5

Others acilities 7.5-25

Capital Work-in-Progress
Property, Plant and Equipment under construction/acquisition is accounted forand measured at cost as
capital wark-in-progress until construction/acquisition 1s completed and it is ready for use.

0



ANNUAL REPORT

4.01.06 Dapreclation fund

3.02

I) Padma C Company Limited Depraciation Fund was foemed on 05 October as declslon of The Ministry
of Power, Energy and Mineral Rsscurces vide memo no. 28.00.0000.028.01.008.18.356 datad 24
Dacamber 2018 and subsaquantly approved by the Board of Directors in thelr the meeting no. 248 held
an (3 Saptembar 2019

) The objective of the fund Is to accumulate the depreciation charged to the asseis of the company In
each Mnancial year and use the fund for replacemant of depreciation Asset(s) / Procurement / acquisition
of hew Ascetis} / now plant / new business.

i) Five (5) percant of Exeome of the fund are dstributed among the empolyses & warkers who ane in
active service of the company.

i} Income are not distibutable o the sharsholders Padma Ol Company Limbted.

Consolldation of the Financlal Statements of Padma Oll Company Limied Depreciaiion Fund has been
mads with the Padme Oll Company Umlted, Chathogram as per resolution the Board of Directors in thelr
the maeting no. 333 held on 08 August 2019

Finanolal Instrumsnis
A Financial Instrument Iz any contrack that gives rise to a financlal asket of ons entity and a financlal llahil-
ity or equity instrument of anciher entity.

(T} Non-derivaiive financial sssets

The company initially recognizes accounte and other receivables on the date that they are originated.
Finanoial assets include accounts and other receivables, advances, deposits and prepayments, invest-
meant in FDR and cash and cash equivalents,

Accounis and other recaiveblas

Accounts and othar recelvablea are financlal asasts with fixed or dstarminable payments that are not
quoted In an active market, Such assets are recognized inttlally at falr value plus any directly atiributable
fransaction cogts. Subsequent to Intial recognition, accounts ar other recelvables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective Interest mathod, less any impaliment losses.

Adgvances, Deposits end Prapayments
Advances are Inftlally measured at cosl. After Inftlal recognition, advancss are carriad at cost lsss deduc-
ions, adjustments or charges to other account heads such as Praparty, Plant and Equipment, Inventory

or Expensss,

Deposlts are measurad at paymant value.

Prapaymants are Intally maasured at cost. After Inltial recagnition, prapaymenis are camed at cost legs
changes to profit or oss.

Gash and cash squivaisnts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with shorl-tarm,
highhy lguid Bwvestments that are rsadlly comertible to a known amaunt of cash, and that are sublect o
an insignificant risk of changss in value.

(1) Non-dervative financlal Iablities

Lizhilities (including lisbilites designated at fair valua through profit or loss) are recognized initally on the
trade date at which the company becomes a parly to the comractual provislons of the Instrument The
company deracognizes a financial llabilty when ks contrachual obligations are discharged or cancelied or
exqplra. Financlal llabliites includee llabliiles and accounts and other payeblas.

Apcounts snd other payables

The company recognizes & financial llability when [t contractual obligations ersing from past events an
cortain and the satliermeant of which ie expecied  meull in an outfiow from the anlity of resources
embodying sconamic benefits.

Other Isbiltes
Other lablitles rapressnts the ameunts dus b varous parties for recelving senvicea, Theee are infially
recognizad et cost which is the fair value. Afler nitial recognition thess am carried at amorized cost.
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3.03

3.04

3.05

4.05.01

3.05.02

3.06

Inventories

Major and minor petroleum products of BPC excluding Lubes and Greases are valued al nel realizable
value. Lubes, Greases and Agro-chemical products are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Stocks of stores and spares are valued at weighted average cost. Statutory charges ( like Custom-duty
or VAT ) and frelght attributable to Stock-In-trade are carrled forward and added to the value of the
stocks. However, cost comprises procurement cost and attributable overheads Lo bring the goods to thelr
respective state at which they were an the reporting date.

Impairment

Financial Assets

Financial assets are impalred I objective avidence indicates that a loss event has ocourred after |nitial
recagnition of the assets and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
of that assets thal can be estimated reliably.

Financlal assets not classified as falr value through profit or loss, loans, receivables and investmeant In an
equity accounted Investee are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there |s objective
evidence that it Is impalred. A financial asset is Impaired If objective evidence indicates that a loss event
has occurred after the Initlal recognition of the assel. and that the loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated fullre cash flows of that asset thal can be estimated reliably.

Non Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each reporting date o determine whether thera is any indication of impalrment if any
such Indioation exlsts then the recoverable amount of the asset s estimated. Animpalnment loss is recog-
nized if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds Its estimated
recoverable amount.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the entity in exchange for service rendered by
an employee.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service s provided.

Pest employment benefits

Past-employmenl benefils are employee benefils which are payable after the completion of employment. The
company maintains both defined contribulion plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible parmanant employees,

Defined contribution plan

The company has two contributory provident funds for lts junior and senior executives which were
recognized on 30 June 1967 under the applicable Income Tax laws and regulations. Contribution to the
fund |s made equally by employee and employer & 10% of basic pay for eliglble permanent employees.
The said funds are managed by duly constituted four member Board of Trustees. Assets of provident
fund are held In 2 separate Trustes Funds as per the relevant rules and is funded by payments from
employees and by the company. The company's contributions to the provident funds are charged as
revenue expenditure in the period o which the contributions relate.

Defined benefit plan

The company maintains a funded gratuity'penslon scheme. Contributlon to gratuity’penslon fund for
pension and/or gratuity benefits is made at the rate as determined on the basis of valuation certified by
an actuary atter every three years.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
The company also account for provision of Workers' Profit Particlpation and Welfare funds (WPF & WF)
@ 5% of Its profit before charging such expenses as per Labour Act 2006.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The company calculates 15 earnings per share in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard
IAS-33 "Eamings per Share” which has been reported on the face of Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income.
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a7

3.08

208

3.10

a1

Easls of Eamings

This mprogsents profit for the vear atinbutable to ordinpry shareholdars. As thers 18 no prefaranca
dividend, minority Intereat or exira ardinary Hems, tha net prodit after tax for the year has besn conaidered
fully atiributable to the ordinary sharesholders.

Bzalc Esmings Per Ghana
This has baen caleulstad by dividing the baslc eamings by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Eaming Par Shar
No diluted Eemings per share was required to be calculatad for the year under review as thems |e no
scope for dilution of Eamings Per Share faor the year.

Siatemont of Gash Flows
Statemest of Cash Flows ia prepared in acoordance with 1AS 7 (Cash Flow Statement) and the cash fiow
from operating astivities have been pressnted urder dinsct method.

Pravisiona, Contingant Liablitles and Contingent Aasada

A provislon Ia recognlzed In the Steternent of Financlal Poeition when the group has a legal or contractual
obligetion as a reault of & past event, it I probable that an outflow of economic banafits will be required
to setile the obligation and a rellable estimate can be mads of the amount of the cbligation. Contingenclea
arlsing from clalms, Itigations, asssasments, fine, penalties etc. are recordad when it Is probable that a
Rabliity has been Incumed and tie amount can be mesonably sstimatad. Gontingent assets are not recog-
nized in the financial statements.

Taxation

Carrent e

Income tex expense is recognized in statement of profit or less and other comprehensive incomea. Current
tax is the expecied tex payable on the total incoms for the year using tex rates enactad or substantially
anasted an of reporting date and any adjusiment to tax payable in reapsct of pravious vears, The comgpa-
ny qualifies as n publicly iraded company; hance the applicabls bx rate is 25% for the year.

Deafarred tax:

Defemad tax llabilities ane the amount of Income taxes payable In the future periods In reapect of taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax asssts ame the amount of Income taxes recoverabis In future parloda
in respect of deduciible tempomary differences. Deferred tax asset=s and lisbliies are recognlzed for the
future tex consequencas of iming differencas arlsing between the camying values of assets, Bablitles,
income and expanditure and thelr respective tax bases. Defemed tax assets and liebiliies are measured
using teo: rades anxd tex lavws that have besn enacted or substantislly enacted at the Statement of Finan-
cial Position date. The impeet of changes on the account in the defered tax aseats and liabilities has aiso
bean recognizad in the statement of profit or loss and ofiver comprehongive income as par 1AS-12
“Incana Taxas™,

Revenue

In compllancs with the requirements of IFAS 15 : Commisslon samings from sales of petrolaum products
are measured at falr velue of the consldemtion recelved or recelvable, Commiasion on pstolewum prod-
ucts are determinad by Govemment through official Gazetts Motification issued from time to ime, Reve-
nue from the sale of egro-chemical products is measured &t the fair value of the consideration recsived
or recsivable, net of retums, trade dscount and volurme rabates,

Revanue ks racognized wien the significant risie and rewanis of owrssishlp hava baen transfeimed to the
bnver, recovary of the conslderation s probabls, the associated cosls and possbie retum of goods can
be estimatsd rallgbly, thera I8 no continuing managemeant Invohamant with the goods, and the amount of
revenia Gan be measunsd nsBably.

Cher Intomae

Other Income - oparating

Other income-operating includes land rent, service charges, filling and powar station rent, POL products
handing, and interest incoms on delayed payment. Other operating income ane recognizsd 68 revenus
some as and when acsrued / realized,
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Other income - non-operating
Other Income-non-operating includes interest income from SND and FDR, profit on disposal of assets
and sale of scrap. Interest from FDH and SMND ate recognized when accrued while profit an disposal of
assets and sale of scrap are recognized as Income when realized.

3.2  Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting perod that provide additional information about the company's position al the
date of statement of financial position or those that ndicate the going concern assumption is not appropri-
ate are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed In the notes when material.

3.13 Leases
At inception of an arrangemeant, the company determines whether the arrangement is or contalns a lease.
Al inceptlon or an reassessment af an arrangement that contalns a lease, the entity separates payments
and other conslderation required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other
elemaents an the basis of thelr relative fair values.

3.13.01 Finance Lease

Leases in terms of which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its falr value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to Initlal
recognition, the asset |s accounted for In accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset
Minimum lease payments made under finance lease are apportioned between the finance expense and
the reduction of outstanding llablity. The finance expense [s allocated to each peried durng the lease
term so as to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

3.13.02 Operating lease
Leases that are not finance lease are considered as operating leases and the leased assets are not
recognized in the company's Statement of Financial Position. Payments made under operating leases
are recognized in profit or loss on a stralght line basis over the term of the |ease.
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Taka in' 000 _
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
5.00 Capital work In Progress
Opening Balance 613,669 653,943
Add: Addition during the year {Mote-5.01) 188,236 338,079
801,905 992,022
Transferred o propery. plant and eguipment during the year (264.872) (378,353)
Note -4.00 ) o
losing Balance 536,933 613,669
Details of Capital Work In Progress | Taka in "000)
Balance as at Expatititure) Transferred to | Balance as at
Facuiag 01 July 2019 | (Recovered)incurred | b0y pccets | 30 June 2020
during the year
Building 539,360 (60,875) (19.186) 450,299
Plant & Machinery 59,802 231,030 (229,029) 71,810
Vehides - 1435 (111} 1,324
Furniture & Fixiures - 815 {815} -
Other Facilities 4,500 15,831 (15.831) 4 500
2020 613,669 188,236 264,972) 536,933
2019 653,943 338,079 378,353) 613,669 |
Investment - Depreciation Fund (FDR)
Janata Bank Limited 352290 -
BASIC Bank Limited 275911 -
Bangladesh Krish| Bank Limited 60,000 -
First Security Islaml Bank Limited 209,741 -
Mational Bank Limited 104,640 -
Unlon Bank Limited 156,052 -
MNRE Global Bank 221,251 -
1,379,885 -

7.00

“Investment- Depreclation Fund (FDOR) has been calegorized the non-current assels as per management
decision because the fund won't be encashed In near fulure,

Tenure is 3 - 6 months

Interest Rate is 6.75% - 11.00%

Inventories

A Stock-In-Trade (Petroleum products)

Major products
Minar products
Freight

B. Agro-chemical products

Finished products (Mote - 27.01)

Raw material
In transit

C. Stores
In stock
In transit

D. Packing materials

Total (A+ B +C +D)
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17 .565.780 17,128,392
713,268 711,705
155,865 138,563

18,435,013 17,878,660
310,354 504 467

2,023 2.023

260 426G
312,637 506.916
79444 80.861
2,995 11,397
82,439 92 .258
168,143 187,756
168,143 187,796
18,998,231 18,765,630
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B8.00 Accounis Recelvable

Accounts recelvable - Petroleumn products®

Accounts recelvable - Agro-chemical products”

Other receivables

Less. Provision for Bad debls against trade account recelvable

(Mote - B.01)

Taka In' 000

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
17. 734 877 17,513,778
81,794 84 6577
17 .816.671 17,588,355
629308 586,417
18,445,979 18,184,772
(134,897) (134,897)

18,311,082

18,049,875
———

8.01 Tk. 98,224,000 receivable from Khulna Newspaper Mills against dues and Tk. 35,973 000 receivable from
Bangladesh Alr Force, Bangladesh Army and Bangladesh Mavy relating to the vears 1998-1998 and 1989-
2000 were accounted for as doubtful debts in 2008 and 2009 respectively.

* Receivable against Agro-chemical rade is secured by Bank Guarantees/ Sanchaya Palras.

9.00 Due from Affiliated Entities / Companies (Note: 35.00)

Bangladesh Petroleurn Corporation (EPC)
Eastern Refinery Limited

Eastemn Lubricant Blenders Limited
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Lid
Liguified Petroleun Gas Limited

Meghna Petroleumn Limited

Jamuna Cil Comapany Limited

10.00 Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments

10.01

10.02

Advances:
Advance to employees (Note - 10.01)
Advance against expenses (Note - 10.02)

Deposits:
Long term deposits (Mote - 10.03)
Short term deposits (Nole - 10.04)

Prepayments
Insurance premium
Rent, rates and taxes

Advances to employees
Employees’ caradvances
Employees' personal accounts
Fesfival advances

House bullding advances

10,869,522 93,313,842
10,405 9,491
53487 5,000
82,059 150,787

6,180 6,144
683,907 700,465
885351 1,133,222

12,390,320 95,318,951
90,540 86,416
28,682 32,710
119,222 119,126
9,526 9,448
(825) 211,755

8,701 221,203
4,101 4,590
14,933 13 346
19,034 17,936

T 146,957 358,265

2054 1,320

722 1,072
43,070 37,581
44,604 46,443
50,540 86,416

Advance lo employees represents amount of advances recoverable In cash from employees by the company.

Advances agalnst expenses
Employees’ ravelling expenses
Contractors for supplies
Advance o carriers

1,087 1,232
10,282 2,109
17,353 22,369
28,682 32,710

Advances againsl expenses represents amounl of advances to employees, various partles which will be

adjusted in the subsequent years.
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Taka in' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

10.03 Long term deposits

109

¥ L

Security deposits against telephone 106 106
Security deposits against electricity supply 1,113 1,113
Sundry security deposits 8284 8206
Security deposits against chemicals 23 23
9.526 9.448
10.04 Short term deposits
Court fee Stamps - -
Deposits against franking machine 14 19
Deposits against duty (839) 211,736
(825) 211,755
11.00 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash in hand {Mote - 11.01) 1,088 1.058
Remittance in transit (Through Pay Order) 78,764 816 434
Cash atbanks (Note - 11.02) 23418290 20,169,354
Fixed deposit receipts (Naote - 11.03) 15,331,020 10,350 544
39,429,162 31,337,390
11.01 Cash in hand
Head office 568 7
Cepol 520 287
1,088 1,058
11.02 Cash at banks
Shert notice deposit (SND) (Mote - 11.02.01) 23,320 448 20,045,043
Currefit account (Note - 11.02.02) B0 4686 113,422
Collection account (Note - 11.02.03) 1857 5,658
Dividend account (Note - 11.02.04) 6,519 5230
23,418.290 20,169,254
11.02.01 Short netice deposit (SND)
AB Bank Ltd 1,365.498 2.283.528
Agrani Bank Litd. 127933 113537
Bark Asia Lid 32106 43,598
Brac Bark Ltd. 289,323 461,020
Citibank NA 21,396 232737
Eastern Bank Lid. 2085288 2624 644
Janata Bank Ltd. 674,624 815680
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 4,183,044 2140168
One Bank Ltd. 5,453,440 3,374,081
Prime Bank Ltd 225807 246,643
Pubali Bank Ltd. 02808 1645935
Sonall Bank Ltd. 53994 138,629
Standard Charterad Bank 62334 514 687
MNCC Bank Lid. 4,960,542 1,303.804
NRB Bank Ltd. 155931 431,588
The Hongkong and Shanghigh Banking Corporation Lid. 725407 918,739
Trust Bank Lid. 1,454 259 527
United Commercial Bank Lid. 1,145512 2,746,498

¥ ¥
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2019-20 Taka in' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

11.02.02 Current account:

Janata Bank Ltd. 41,133 51,390
Sonali Bank Ltd. 5 5
Mercaniile Bank Lid. - 20.747
Standard Chartered Bank 30,328 41,280

80,466 113,422

11.02.03 Collection account:

Janata Bank Lid. . 1,852
Fubali Bank Ltd. 1,857 3,707
1.857 5,650
11.02.04 Dividend account: e
Standard Chariered Bank 6,519 5,230
6,519 5,230
11.03 Fixed deposit receipts ( FDR ) —
AB Bank Lid. 1,265.727 100,000
Al Arafa Islami Bank Lid. - 100.000
Agrani Bank Lid. 654,015 1,245,603
Bangladesh Krishi Bank 600,000 100,000
Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd. 107.612 150,000
BASIC Bank Lid. 105,126 50.000
EXIM Bank Lid. - 604,500
First Security Islami Bank Lid. 857,117 204,500
IFIC Bank Lid. 721,067 306,838
ICB 646,854 1,127 321
Janata Bank Lid. 2568371 2,138,144
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. - 200,000
Meghna Bank Lid. - 100,000
MRE Global Bank Lid. 1.037.061 356,863
Mational Bank Lid. 518,890 100,000
One Bank Ltd. - 561.250
Premier Bank Lid. 313,402 511,250
Rupali Bank Ltd. 3,063,007 511.581
Southeast Bank Lid. - 506,750
Social Islami Bank Lid. 954,993 255,794
Standard Bank Lid. 713,938 611,125
Union Bank Lid. 1,203,841 -
United Commercial Bank Ltd. 508,025

15,331,020 10,350,544

Tenure |5 3 - 6 months
Interest Rate is 6.75% - 11.00%
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Taka in* 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

12.00 Share Capital
Mo. of Shares

Authorized capital:
100,000,000 Ordinary Stares of Tk, 10 each 1,000, 000 1,000,000

lssued, Subscribad and Paid-up capital:
1,275,000 Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 each fully paid up in

1275000 LG 12,750 12,750
’ 1,225 00 Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 each fully issued as
1225000 fully paid-up bonus shares for consideration  other than liguenld 12,250
Ordirary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up
1,000,000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in the rafio of 2 share for 10,000 10.000
every 5 shares held.
Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 each issued as fully paid-up
1400000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for 14,000 14000

every 5 shares held,
Crdinary shares of Tk, 10 each issued as fully paid-up
4 900,000 ponus (stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for 49000 48,000

every 1 share haldon 31 January 2009,
Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 sach issued as fully paid-up

18,600,000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in Lhe ralio of 2 share for 196,000 196,000
avery 1.share held on 08 February 2000,
Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up

14.700.000  ponus (stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for 147,000 147,000
every 2 share held on 12 May 2012
Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up

22,050,000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for 220,600 220,500

every 2 share held on 28 June 2012
23 152 spg  Ordinary shares of Tk 10 esach issued as fully paid-up

bonus (35% slock dividend ) held on 16 February 2013.
Ordirary shares of Tk.10 each issued as fuly paid-up
bonus (10% stock dividend) held on 15 February 2014

08 232,750 BB2,327 BB2,327

12.01 Classification of shames by heolding

231,525 231,525

8,230,250 89,302 89,302

Class by number of shares No. of MNo. of Shares Holding %

Less than 500 7441 1,085,684 191
From 500 to 5,000 2,719 4 26,407 4 28
From 5,007 to 10.000 197 1.403.291 143
From 10,001 to 20,000 112 1,613,346 1.64
From 20,007 to 30,000 34 851,522 0BT
From 30,001 fo 40,000 20 721,583 073
From 40,001 to 50,000 13 588 246 0.B61
From 50,001 to 100,000 12 1,436,237 146
From 100,001 to 1000,000 45 10,781,576 10.98
From 1,000,001 and akove ] 75,534,148 T6.89

Tatal TI}tﬁﬂfﬂ- QEIEEL’:TEI} 100.00

12.02 Composition of Shareholders

As at 30 June 2020 As at 30 June 2019

Mame of shareholders

Mo. of Shares || Holding % |No.of Shares|| Holding %

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 40 455 666 50.35 49455 666 50.35
Public and Private Institutions 21 961,520 22.36 25,160,498 25.61
investment Corporation of Bangladesh 9.210,138 9.38 9,282 805 9.45
Foreign investors 1,265,512 1.29 2219259 226
individuals (Bangladeshi) 16,339,914 1863 12114522 12.33

Total 98,232,750 100.00 98,232,750 100.00
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.24 Taka in' 000

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

13.00 Depreciation Fund Reserve
Opening Balance -
Add: Netsurplus for the year transfer from 36,628 -

36,628 -

13.01 Surplus From Investment

Excess of Income Over Expenditure 51,408 -
Less: Beneficiaries Profit Pardicipation Fund 2,570 -
48,638 -
Less: Provision for Taiation @25% 12,210 -
36,628 -

14.00 Deferred tax liabilities

Deferrad tax liability has been calculated below at the applicable tax rate on the difference between the camying
value of fixed assets and their respective tax bases.

Opening balance 197,303 192,255
Add: Provided | {adjustad) for the year 15,535 5,138
Closing balance 212,928 197,393

Reconciliation of Defemred tax liabilities/(assets)

Taka in 000
Carrying amount on the {DZ::JT:EE |
date of statement of Tax base
financial position o
difference
Taka Taka Taka
(a) As at 30 June 2020
Property, planl and equipment 1,784,041 932 331 851,710
Deferred tax liability [ Tax Rate - 25% ) 212,928
(b) As at 30 June 2019
Proparty, plant and equipmeant 1,764,038 974,488 788,570
Deferrad tax liabillty | Tax Rate - 25% ) 187,393
15.00 Long Term Loan
Loan Account - Storage Tank al GDL 110,078 110,078
Equity Account- Storage Tank at GOL 73,385 73,385
183,463 183,463

Long term liabiliies represents fund from Govl. of Bangladesh (GOB) for the construction of 7000 MT Jet -A-1 &
7000 + 8000 MT HSD Storage lanks al Godnall Depol. GOB Is providing the §0% of the fund as Loan @ of 5%
interest and Balance 40% as Equity. The Loan has been repayable in 20 years with a grace period of 5 years.

16.00 Accounts payable

Cther supplies 10,667,274 20,840,780
COther charges 252 542 296777
10,919,816 21,137,557
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17.00

18.00

18.00

19.01

ANNUAL REPORT

Taka in' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Supplies and expenses payable
Revenue charges 3,818,082 10,666 638
Duty, rates and laxes 75,720 56,178
Royalty 71,123 71,123
Employees’ remuneration g2 781
3,965,847 10,794,730
Due to affiliated entities /| companies
Bangladesh Petmleum Corporation (BPC) 57,315,086 116,808 622
Jamuna Ol Company Limitad 118,189 113,692
Eastern Lubricant Blenders Limited - 24,350
Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited 35,189 35,838
57,468,474 116,982,402
Other Liabilities
Advance againstsales from Customers and Agent 1,428,369 1,587 140
Employees’ pension fund (Nate - 19.01) 488,034 165,526
Employees’ fund-others 59,479 52,862
Security deposits 163,927 162,240
Tax deducted at source 37 =
Employees’ personal accounts * 50,021 40,575
Liabilities for Capital Expenditure 67212 43,602
Workers' Profit Participation ard Welfare Funds 191,480 200,542
Others® 1,833,307 245 B88
4,279,866 2,488 475
o T Rl L S D |
* Amounts due to Managers and Officers of the company.
* Others included, amount recelved from Eastern Refinery Limited for lease of land Th. 1,580,193,014.
Employees’ Pension Fund
Opening balance 155,526 172,368
Provision made during the year according to actuaral valuation 738,465 514,017
694,591 686,405
Payment o pension fund made during the year (406,857 (530,879)
Closing balance 488,034 155,526

Actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was conducted as on 30 June 2016 and the report was issued on 24
January 2018, Pasl Service Deficits In the funds were estimated al Tk, 837,423,000 for Senior Staff and Th.
1,112,853,000 for Junior Staff as on 30 June 2016, To meat the past service deficit, the valuer recommended to
pay Th450 milion each year over the next five vears and contibution of 14% of total basic salary for Junior staff
and 23.7% of total basic salary for senior staff each year in respect of current service cost. The valuation was
conducted by Z Halm & Assoclates, a reputed Actuarial & Pension Consultants in Bangladesh, Earlier, valuation
was dane as an 31 December 2013 by the same actuary and nex! valuation is expected to be done ason 30 June
2020,

Actuarial assumption:
Salary growth 5%
Return on Investment 6%
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20.00 Dividend payable

20.01

20.02

20.03

Unclaimed Dividend (Note - 20.02)
Fractional Dividend (Note - 20.03)

Dividend paid during the year

Opening balance
Add: Cash Dividend for the year 2018-2019 & 2017-2018

Less: Closing balance (Note - 20.02)
Dividend paid during the year

Liability for unclaimed dividend
Remained unclaimed on account of Individuals (Bangladeshi)

Dividend outstanding for the years:

2019
2018

2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007 or before

Liability for unclaimed fractional dividend

Remained unclaimed on account of Individuals (Bangladeshi)
Dividend outstanding for the years:

2013

2012

2011

2010

1896

114

Taka in' 000

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

166,338 148,381
1,498 1,498
167,836 149,879
148,381 131,369
1,277 026 1,277,026
1,425,407 1,408,395
(166,338) (148,381)
1,259,069 1,260,014
18,663 -
17,819 18,074
15,037 15,142
17,826 17,889
15,063 15,145
32,518 32,633
15,208 15,358
8,660 8,675
11,377 11,384
6,067 6,073
1,745 1,745
853 853
5.412 5,410
166,338 148,381

202 202
136 136
105 105

14 14

1,041 1,041

1,498 1,408
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Taka in' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
21.00 Income tax payable | {receivable}
Opening Balance 241,160 380,669
Add: Provision made during the year;
For current year BBZ939 949,645
Written back of previous year's TDS (/S 52) - 183
Settlement of previous year's tax liability (138, 184) [278 958)
994,915 1,051,542
Payment made during the year:
Tax deducted at source on supplying patroleum (LIS 52) (232 218) (339.571)
Tax deductad at source on interest on FORs and other accounts (U/S 53F) [282.488) (266,024 )
Tax deductad at souree on import (U/S 53) (G,588) (18,434)
Advance tax (UIS B84) (180,000} (164,353}
(701,302} {810,382}
Closing Balance 293,613 241,160
21.01 Reconciliation of effective tax rate 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Rate Taka Rate Taka
Profit for the year 3,638,111 3,810,303
Total income tax expenses 24.54% 892,939 24.92%
Factors effecting the tax charge for current period;
Ineome tax using the company’s domestic tax rate 25.00% 909,628 25.00% 852 576
Excess of tax depreciation over accounting depreciation -{1.28% (10,041) 0.13% (4.958)
Effect of Taxable Perquisites - u/s 30(e) of ITO 1984 0.07% 2,571 0.05% 2014
Effect of Fiscal profit on disposal of Fixed Assets -0.25% 9,118) 0.00% 15
24587, _éﬁ?é' T 2492% 9405646
22.00 Position of Pending Tax Assessments
(Recoverable) Payable
Accounting | Assessment| as per order of Tax =
Year Year Department
Taka, 000
200102 200203 117,584 |Rectification U/S 173 - panding In the High Court.
2002-03 200304 111,045 Hﬂmiﬁi;aﬁnn LS 173 pending - AJCT reopened LS 120
after fribunal order
2003-04. 2004-05 97 610 FIEETIﬁFEtIDn L¥S 173 pending - AJCT reopened LIS 120
after tribunal order
2004-05 S005-06 37,901 U:‘IEES[E}IBED' 156/ 159¢ B3(2) 156 - Rectification of
mistake /S 173
2005-08 200607 8,640 |High Court agamst 82¢ - result in favour of POCL
200607 2007-08 (13,572)| Return submitted LI/S 82B8
2007-08 2008-09 41,766 |High Court - result in favour of POCL
2008-09 2009-10 (295)] Return submitted /S 8288
200810 2010-11 - |Return submitted LIS 82B8
2011 201112 (125,116)| Return submittad /S 82B8
201112 2012-13
To Tg - |Return submitted LS B2BE
201819 2019-20
201820 2020-21 - |Retum yet to be submitted
275,573
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23.00 Gross eamings on Petroleum Product

23.01

Turmover (Note 23.02)

Less: Costof goods sold (Mote 23.02)
Gross Earnings (Note 23.01)

Gross Earnings

L Major Products

HOBC
Jet A-1
JF5
MS
SKO
HSO
LD
FO
JBO
MTT
SBP
Sub Total

Ii Minor Products

Lubs & Greases
LPGICylinders)
Bitumen

Other Products
Sub Total
Grand Total

Taka in' 000
01 July2019t0 01 July 2018 to

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

152,089,965 174,181,750

149,931,008 171,329.712

2,158,057 2,852,038

Emamiggs Packaging Handling Wﬁainf:mq Neteamings  Metearnings
0,618 (290) (12,206) 78,122 98 681
746,342 (1,113) 6,956 752,185 1,001,462
(4,830) . . (4,830) 4,930
116,735 . (386) (28,962) 87,388 132,807
22,852 (100} (6,842) 15810 61,360
695,741 (4,026) 79,629 771,343 922,413
160 . (1) . 159 55
81,847 (388) 16,486 97,946 170,522
1,541 (14} (626) 901 1,228
5,612 . (17) (2,313) 3,283 4,844
613 (2)] 336 275 7BE
1,757,131 - 16,337) 51,787 1,802,562 2,390,088
384,380 (18,619) (1) 365,507 462,261
5,367 . (11) 5,357 6,017
1,920 (18} : 1,902 3,080
9,259 - : - 9,259 15,265
400,926 [18,819) (43 = 382,064 486,623

TZ158,057 18, 480) 51,787 184, BES,

23.02 Tumover and Cost of Goods Sold

L. Major Products
HOBC

Jet A-1
JP5
s
SKO
HSD
LD
FO
MTT
SBP
JBD
Sub Total

il Minor Products

Lubs & Greasas
LPG

Bitumen

Other Products

Sub Total
Grand Total

01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Cost of goods Cost of goods
Quantity Tumover sold Quantity Tumover sold

MT, 000 Tk, 000 Tk, OO0 MT, 00D Tk, (00 Tk, 000
Eg 10,325 452 10,234 834 83 10,743 344 10,633 416
33 25 185,069 24 AZE T28 427 337892093 32,793 530
a (11,088) (6,158) < 11,088 6,158
119 13,849,039 13,732,304 114 13,381,281 13,222 438
a 2472484 2,449 642 a 2492 975 2427 710
1,238 81,843,525 01,147,785 1,356 100,498 220 89 634 351
- #2603 22444 - 7820 7,765
119 5416064 5,334,216 200 9,066,454 8,830,671
4 460244 458,702 B 600 869 GE3 6B
5 479,093 AT3 480 1 196,014 184,387
1 68,548 7,935 5 477 208 475,506
1,850 150,111,043 148,353,912 2,235 171,354,566 169,000,629
4 1428534 1,044 154 5 1,650,864 1,068,184
3 181,146 175,779 5 266 BEE 260,834
(5] 348,449 36529 17 4B 088 876,975
- 20,783 11,534 1] 28,364 14,080
13 1,978,922 1,577,996 27 2,827,184 2,320,083
¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ zrﬁ'I 1 ?4r1 m I : I rE Egr: IE
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24.00 Administrative, Selling and Distribution Expenses

Salaries, wages and banefils (Note - 24.01)
Depreclation (Note - 4.00)

Fuel and power

Stores and spares

Repairs and maintenance (Mot - 24.02)
Rent

Traveling and conveyance

Aviation Service fees paid to Shell (Note - 34.00)
Printing and stationery

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Rates and laxes

Advertisement

Communication expenses

Entertainment

Directors’ fzes and expenses (Note - 31)
BPC service charges

Audit fees

Other charges (Mote - 24.03)

Recoveries of Service charges from ELBL

24.01 Salaries, wages and benefits
Salaries, wages and banus
Welfare and benefils
Contribution to pension fund
Centribulion to provident fund

24.02 Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery
Building
Cthers

24.03 Other Charges
Commaon depot expenses (1/3 share )
Security expenses (Police | Ansar)
Casual Labour wages
AGM sxpenses
Miscellaneous expenses

25.00 Financial Expenses

Bank Charges
Interest expenses against product (BPC)®
Interest on WPPF & WF

* Interest expenses against product are chargead by the BPC.

26.00 Other Operating Income
Sundry income (nate - 268.01)
Profit from Product handling
Miscellarzous receipts

26.01 Sundry income - net

Land rent/Plant hire/service charges from Eastem
Renl receipls from Filling Slation and Power Station
Service Charges receipts from Privale Power Slation

17
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Taka in’ 000
01July 2019 te 01 July 2018 to
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
1,466 250 1472780
203 654 192 455
55,780 56871
34,344 58,279
A2 435 42 90
41,828 32930
17 569 20,494
12002 18.500
9014 11 697
7905 T.378
1,824 2586
G789 6,178
5 629 7564
3,868 4,188
4118 36563
1.700 14979
To00 700
180 180
160,841 150,609
2,083 539 2082020
(500} (500}
2,083,039 2,091,520
430 952 433618
515267 531,738
479 603 476,158
31,437 31270
1,466,259 1,472,780
25 481 25 74
12,730 12870
4 244 4290
42 435 42901
4. 798 4233
15472 16,520
116 930 106 860
4 952 4 BBE6
18,788 18,110
160,941 150,609
7133 6,085
127,339 145,004
BE 568 109,362
221,040 260431
30,168 49 546
BOA 744 710497
35218 38,863
B74.128 B48,006
354 354
12,589 21177
17223 781168
30,168 a8 647
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27.00

27

27.02

27.03

28,00

Operating Profit/ {Loss) on Agro-Chemicals Trading

Sales

Cost of Sales:

Product Cast (Mote - 27.01)
Other Cost - direct

Gross Profit

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses
Salarles, wages and benefils (Mole - 27.02)
Depreciation (Nola - 4.00)

Stores and spares

Adverlisemen

Fuel and power

Traveling and conveyancs

Ret

Insurance

Repairs and mainlenance (Note - 27.03)
Rates and laxes

Frinting and stalionary

Communication expenses

Entertainment

Other Charges

Operating profit / (loss)

Taka in' 000
01 July 2019t 01 July 2018 to
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
607,368 B65 BET
(2B0.248) (296,211)
(63,185) (96, 467)
163,925 173,188
146 717 156,701
B, 308 14,981
1,882 2770
396 659
4,146 5,021
2452 2,700
5064 8,327
687 721
420 1,048
839 845
442 Ha8
576 760
715 678
18,073 216583
102,686 215571
(28,761) {42,382)

Product cost
01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 01 July 2018 to 30 June 20193
Amount(Tk. Amount (Tk.
Quantity (MT) in 'ﬂﬂEJ ) Quantity (MT) in ,ﬂﬂgr )
Opening Slock 2224 504,465 1,677 321,584
Purchased! Manufaciured (Nole -29.02) 1.017 B, 137 2,941 474,004
3241 590,602 4,418 BODB7E
Closing stock {Nole - 29,02) 1,152 310,254 2,224 504,467
2,089 280,248 2,394 296,211
Salaries, wages and benefits
Salarles, wages and bonus 64,048 67,522
Other benefis 78,563 54,210
Cantribution 1o pension and PF 4,106 34,960
146,717 156,701
Repairs and Maintenance
Plant and machinery 209 536
Building 1493 493
Others 18 21
420 1.049
Non-Operating Income
Frofil on disposal of ixed assels (Petroleum trading) 113,664 62
Profit on disposal of ixed assels (Agro-Chemical trading) (500}
Lease Renl 40,519 -
Interest on SMND [(Gross) for Agro Chamical Trading 10,000 10,000
Interest on SND (Grass 1,609,856 1,736,397
Interest an FOR (Gross) 1,320,708 920,079
Disposal of Miscellaneous slore 9321 _3,823
3,102,658 2,670,461
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29.02 Statement of Cost of Sales (Product wise): (Quantity: MT)

Opening Stock Closing Stock Cost of Sales

Hahe Ui Elocue Qty E'nn. 000 | Qty E"n;. 000 | Qty | Tk. 000
Furadan 5G. 61 4473 56 4114 5 359
Mipcin 75WP 10 7.523 . 134 ] 7,389
Ripcord 10EC 58 33,941 13 8,138 70 39,260
Acrobat MZ 107 85,972 50 45,072 59 45,208
Roteluck 9% 12 1,977 11 1,727 2 251
Mukta Plus 330 .73 a7 10,1889 236 21,246
Talstar 2.5EC 11 4,435 3 1,384 7 3,051
Haymancozeb 63 18,499 24 6.917 40 8.685
Haconazole 18 5,662 2 614 27 6,667
Mg Plus 291 4,458 208 3,384 335 5,365
Salubar Baron{Folieral} P 192 - 20 1 172
Regent 50SC 15 18,792 2 1,848 18 13,552
Haysulf DF B0% 3893 32,226 248 20,303 145 9,036
Sulcox S0WP 7 3,230 10 4,731 17 6,336
Glyfocl 41SL 24 6,235 7 1.841 18 4,738
Opal 75EC 4 3,172 3 2,635 - 537
Haymidor 70WG 2 5412 1 2279 ] 3.134
Defence 355C 24 13,581 18 10,059 3,523
Stroke S0EC 2 1,323 1 340 384
Arva 10EC 1 351 1 220 . 131
Intripid 10SC 2 1,596 3 3,092 2] 7,426
Hayclaim 58G 4 5,454 1 1,845 2 3,610
Accurator GBEW 3 1,741 2 1,224 - 517
Surpass205C - 275 3 6,126 2 2,598
Novostar 56EC 16 13,391 12 8,458 5 3.833
Trigger 56EW 6 3,558 [§] 3.380 - 179
Ugent 63GR. - - 212 20,031 B8 8,319
Padma Chelate 2 813 1 225 L 588
Piguat 25 5,796 9 1,837 29 5,934
Soil Zip 296 3,768 32 404 268 3,384
Super Fast 15 8,302 7 4615 8 4 .687
Head Line Team 25 38,785 23 35,830 3 3,955
Saeta 1.8EC 18 12,218 18 11,280 1 837
Couger 13 26,889 11 23,077 2 3,812
Novofix 42WDG 16 8,506 9 4,929 7 3,667
Samar 7T5SWP 17 27,633 15 24,864 2 2,769
Pithion 46.5EC 4 1,463 3 1,315 - 148
Padma Lambda 20 7,786 12 4,756 B 3,030
Primidor 2 4,513 ] 11.522 Z 3.318
Optimus 293 17 835 4] 360 652 35,109
Stargate 2 7,238 2 6,110 1,128
Pidion 5 8,707 4 7.530 1 1,177
30 June 2020 2,224 504465 1,152 310,354 2,089 280,249
30 June 2019 1,677 321,584 2,224 504,467 2394 296,211
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29.03 Operating Segment

The Company has several mporable segments, as described below, which are the company's stralegic business.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the company's reporable segments:
Petroleum products | Includes the company's eamings from marketing of Pelroleum products
Lubricating Oil & Grease: Includes the company's incame from treading lubricating oil & grease.
Bitumen : Includes the company's earnings from marketing of bituman.

LPG: Includes the company’s earnings from marketing of LPG.

Agro-Chemicals produets: |ncludes the company’s income from trading imported Agro-Chemicals producls.

Farformances are measured based on zegment proft before tax, thal are reviewed by the
management committee. Information regarding the result of each reportable segment is included below:

29.03.01 Information about reportable Segments:

company's

Taka '000
Lubricating Agro-
;’:ﬂ‘;‘ Oil& |Bitumen| LPG | Chemicals | Total
Grease products
Turnover 150,131,836 1428534 348449 181146 507368 152597333
Cost of goods soid (148,365,445} (1,044,154) (346,529) (175,779) (280,248) (150,212,155)
Other cost {6,337) (18,833} {19} (11} (63,195) (B8,395)
Operational Gaind(Loss) 51,7687 - - - - 51,787
Operating Profit{Lass) 1811841 365,547 1,801 5,356 163,925 2346 570
Administrative, selling and
distribution expenses (2,083,039) - - (192 686) (2,275,725)
Financial expenses (221,040} - - - (221,040}
(492.238) 3685547 1,901 5,356 (28,761) (148,195)
Other oparating income -
petroleum trade 874128 874,128
Reportable Segment Total
Operating Profit 381,890 365547 1,901 5,356 (28,761) 725,933
Reportable Segment Total
Operating Profit {2018-18) 949,184 441,321 (10,153 2414 (42,382) 1,340,384
Taka in' 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
29.03.02 Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Total Operating Profit
Reportable Segment Total Operating Profit 725933 1,340,384
Amaount nol related to reporiable segments 2812178 2462919
Profit before tax 3,638,111 3,810,303
29.03.03 Amount Not Related to Reportable Segments
Non-Operating Income 3,103 8658 26704861
Caontribution to Worker Profit Parficipant & Welfare Fund (191480) (200,542)
2912178 2469919
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20.04 Analysis of Materfal Consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):

01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

ANNUAL REPORT

01 July 2018 1o 30 June 2019

(a) Raw Materials- Furadan (MT)
(b) Packing Materials

Qty. Tk. 000 Qty. Tk 000
1,017 84,205

20,304 23,322

20,304 107,527

29.05 Value of raw materials, packing materials and stores & spares consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):

20.06

28.07

30.00

01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Tk. 000 % Tk. 000 %
Import 17,527 79 87,135 79
Indiganous 4,659 21 23,162 21

22,186 100 110,297 100
Raw and Packing Materials (Nota-28.03) 20,304 107,527
Store and Spares 1,882 2770

22,186 110,297

Value of purchases/ Manufactured of Agro-Chemicals Products

01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Tk.'000 i Tk. "000 %
Import 77522 20 433,502 a0
Indigenous 8,614 10 48,167 10
86,136 100 481,669 100
Agro-Chemical (Furadan)- Capacity and Production
: Capacity (Single Production Qty. i

Unit Shift) 30-Jun20 0-Jun1s Increased / (Decreased) (%)

MT 3,000 il a71 (100)
Reasons for variance:
Guantity of production decreased during the year due to fall In market demand.

Taka in' 000

Earnings Per Share

(a) Earnings altribulable to the
ordinary shareholders (Tk.)

(b) Number of ardinary shares at the end of the year

Earnings Per Share - basic
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01July 2019 to 01 July 2018 to
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

2,729,637 2,855,519

98,232,750 98,232,750

Tk.27.79 Tk.289.07



ANNUAL REPORT

31.00 Directors' Fees and Expense

32.00

32.01

32.02

32.03

32.04

32.05

32.06

Details of Directors' fees & expenses paid during the year are as follows:

Name of the Directors and Managing Director. Gross Tax Deducted Net Paid
Tk. T Tk.
Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman (Chairman) 110,400 14,400 86,000
Mr, Md. Akram Al Hossain (Ex.Chairman) B2 800 10,600 72,000
Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chowdhury 8200 1,200 8,000
Mr. Mahammad |gbal 101,200 13,200 86,000
Mr. Md, Ekhlasur Rahman 110,400 14,400 96,000
Mr, K. Enayetul Karim 101,200 13,200 88,000
Mr. Mohd, Sher Ali 110,400 14 400 96,000
Mr. Md. Arfuzzaman Miah Tulul 110,400 14,400 86,000
Mr. WM, Abdul Awwal 64,400 B 400 56,000
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman ( MD ) 110,400 14,400 86,000
910,800 118,800 792,000
Taka in' 000
01 July 2019 to 01 July 2019 to
Parficulary 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Cirectors' Fees paid-Gross 911 a75
Meeting expernsas TED 1,004
1,700 1,979
Remuneration of MD, Managers and Officers:
Taka in'000 Taka in ' 000

01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

MD  Managers Officers MD Managers Officers
Remuneration:
Salary, allowances 2050 BY 909 90,855 2010 or 8677 89 BE55
House rent allowance:
House rent 1,102 22 ET4 54,663 1,080 25415 57,540
Other utilities 350 6,708 0,747 445 7454 10,260
1,452 209583 64,410 1425 32,868 87,800
Leave encashment 232 3,204 5,681 208 3,566 5880
Provident fund 251 4,925 7,921 245 5471 8338
3,985 125,626 177,867 3,908 139,583 181,973
Number of Employess 1 50 191 1 55 198
House Rent The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are paid cash allowance.
Accommodation 6 Managers are provided with free furnished accommodalion.
Transport The Managing Directors and Departmental Heads are provided with free use of Company's car
subject to limit.
Other Managers are paid cash assistance, subject to mit,
Officers are paid cash allowances.
Telephone Residential telephone for mainly Company's business- for Manaaing Director and Managers,
subject 1o fimil.
Medical The Marnaging Director, Managers and Officers are provided with free medical facilites
according to company policy.
Insurance The Managing Director. Managers and Officers are provided with coverage for group insurance

according to the company policy.
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34.00

35.00
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Taka in' 000

01 July 2019 to 01 July 2018 to
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Remuneration The Directors other than the Managing Director, who is an ex-officio diector, are not paid any
remuneration except for fees and expenses in connecton with attending to Company’s Board
Meating,
Employees
Number of Employees whose salary was Tk, 3,000 below - -
Number of Employees whose salary was Tk, 3,000 or above 1,009 1,025
1,009 1,025
Expenditure in foreign currency at equivalent BDT
Aviation service fee (o Shell International Petroleun Company Ltd. (SIPCL) 19,002 18,500
19,002 18,500
Related Party Tansactions

During the year, the company carried out a number of transaction with melated parties in the normal course of
business and on an arms length basis. The name of these reiated parlies, nature of transactions and balance as at
30.06.2020 in accordance with the provisions of [AS-24 are presented below:

. . . Balance as on
Name of the Parties Relationship Mature of Transactions 30 June 2020
Bangladesh Petroleum Carp. (BPC) Parent Concemn Multiple Business 57.315,086(Cr)
Bangladesh Patroleum Corp. (BPC) jParent Concern Multiple Business 10,869,522(0r)
Eastem Refinery Limilad Subsidiary of BPC. Praducl Refine 10,405(Dr)
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Lid.  |Subsidiary Company Blending of Products 53 487(0r)
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Ltd  §Subsidiary of BPC Blending of Products B2,058(Dr)
Meghna Petroleum Lid, Subsidiary of BPC Producl Exchangs 683 907(Dr)
Jamuna Ol Comp. Lid, Subsidiary of BPC, Product Exchange 685,35%(0r)
Jamuna Oil Comp, Lid, Subsidiary of BPC, Product Exchange 118,189(Cr)
Liguified Petroleum Gas Lid. Stubsidiary of BPC. Pmduct Supply 8.189(0r)
Liguified Petraleum Gas Lid, Subsidiary of BPC. Product Supply 35,188(Cr)
Details of transactions
Provided
. . . Adjusted Closing
Name of the Parties Opening Balances dur;zrlhe dufing the year Batance

Bangladesh Petroleum Carp.(BFU) 116,808,622 (Cr) J| 135,882,780 185,376,316 || 57,315,086 (Cr)
Bangladesh Petroleum Corp.[BPC) 93313842 (Dr) || 28.192,574 110836804 || 10,869,522(0r)
Eastem Refinery Lid. 9,491 (Dr) 914 - 10,405 (Dr)
Eastem Lubricants Blenders Lid. 24 350(Cr) 122,558 49 720 48 4BBCr)
Eastem Lubricants Blenders Lid. 5,000 (Dr.) = s 5,000 {Dr)
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Lid. 150,787 (Dr.} 213,818 282,547 82,059(0r}
Meghna Petroleum Lid, 700,465 (Dr.} 828,768 B46, 326 683,907 (Dr)
Jamuna Ol Company Lid. 1,133,222 (Dr) 447 192 895,083 BE5,351(Dr)
Jamuna Oil Company Ltd. 113,582(Cr) 256,414 251,807 11B,188(Cr)
Liguified Petroleum Gas Lid. 6,144 (Dr) 568 10 6,1858(Dr)
Liquified Petroleum Gas Lid. 35,838 (Cr) 161,468 162 116 35,189 (Cr)
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Taka in " 000
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
36.00 Contingent Assets
Irterest realizable for delayed payment from BIMAN & BCIC 7,653,437 £,431 1863
Claims realizable from Bangladesh Railway 13,856 13,853
Amounl realizable from BPC on accounl of sale of Jel-A1 (o Lhe Toreign Ailines. 43,589 43 58
7,710,882 6,488,631
37.00 Contingent liabilifies
i} Guaranlees Issusd by the company’'s bankers lo lhird parfies on counter
indemnilies given by Lhe company against the bankers limil at Tk, One Crore 1461 497
secured by hypothecalion over the company's inventones and book debls,
i) Confirmed Irrevocable letters of cradil (nel of margin) openad by the banks-
having bankers limil al Tk. 10 crores, secured by hypolthecation over the 39,625 64,083
inventaries and book debts of the company,
41,286 64,560
38.00 Capital Commitlments
Authorized bul nol contracled 263250 795,087
Authorized and Contracted for bul nat provided-pending execution 1,749,012 1,825176
Ovrder Tor local supplies services pending execulion 34,482 61,098
2,046,754 2,481,361
39.00 MNet assetvalue per Share
The composition of Nel Assels value per share Is given below |
i} Net Assels Value on the reporting dale (Taka) 15,485,370 14,032,759
i) Mumber of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 898,232,750
li) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary shares during the year B 282, 750 05,232,050
Met Asset Value { NAV ) per share Th. 157.64 Tk.142.85
40.00 Operating cash flow per share
The compostion of Operating Cash Inflow/{ Outflow)
value per share is given balow .
i} Operating Cash Inflow/(Outflow) during the year (TK) 7,947 895 (5,136,601}
i) Mumber of Ordinary shares al the end of year 98,232 750 88,232.750
Operating Cash Inflow / {Outfiow) per share Tk. B0.91 Tk. (52.29)
41.00 Reconciliation of nel income with cash flows from operating activities
Met profil before tax 3,638,111 3,810,303
Adjustments:
Depreciations 211,862 207 448
(Gain)loss on sale of PPE (113,165) (62}
3,736.500 4,017 687
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets:
Inventories (232,601) (1,498,732}
Accounts receivable excluding FOR and SND inleres! (3,086,104} (3.211,103)
Dus from affiliated companies 8292803 1,905,026
Advances, deposils and pre-paymenls 211,308 (176, 719)
Increasel{Decrease) in Current Liabiliies:
Accounts payable (10,217 741} (14,236, 250)
Supplies and expenses payable (6,828 883} {538,396
Due lo affiialed companies (50,513 828) 10,551 867
Other labilities 1,791,301 (800,757}
5051472 (8,065,133)
Income Tax paid (B40 486} (1,085,155}

Net cash flow from operating activities
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42.00

A

The guantum of potential labilily st the repoting date for the value of employess unullized eamed lesve has neither
been ascetained nor any provision herefor been made in the financial staterments.

Events after reporting period
The Board of Cirectors in ther meeling held on 24 December 2020 recommended 125% cash dmidend [Tk
1. 270800375 @ T 1250 pershare for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Financial risk management

The Company managemenl has overall resporsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework.  The Company’s risk management policies ars established lo identify and analyze lhe risks
faced by the Company, lo set appropriate risk limits and controls, and lo monilor risks and adherence 1o limits. Risk
maragemenl policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflecl changes in market conditions and the
Company’s aclivilles. This nole presents information aboul the Company's sxpisure 1o each of lhe above risks, the
Company's objectives, policies and processes: for measuring and managing risk. and the Company’s management of
capital. The company has exposure at the following areas of risk.

&) Credit nsk
b) Liquidity risk
c) Markel risk

44.01 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial 1085 o the Company Il & customear or counterparty to a financial instrument lails Lo
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s recevables. Management has a credit palicy
in place and the exposure to credit risk s monitored on an ongoing basis. |n monitonng credll sk, deblors are groupead
according to their rigk profile, 1e. their legal stalus, firancial condition, againg profile ete, Accounls receivable are
related to sale of petroleun and agro-chemical produced, The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the slatement of finandal position, Credit sales as compared to the total sales
are insignificant. Govemment institutions are allowed to purchase on credit.

44.02 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounl of financial assetls reprasents the maxmum credit exposure, The maamum exposunes to credil rsk
al the reporting dale was:

Takain' 000 Taka in ' 000

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Accounts recelvables 18,311,082 18 049,875
Due from affiliated companies 12,390,921 95,318,951
Advance, deposil & prepaymenls 146 958 358 265
Cashand bank balance 38,740,310 30,519,808

69,598,271 144,245,989
—_——

44.03 Ageing of accounts receivables

Less than 6 months 2 788 4AT0 3,679,206
Cwer 6 months bul less than 12 months 1,411,138 G45 o950
Over 1 year bul less than 2 years 503,770 1,675,025
Crver 2 years 13,607 705 11,749,777

18,311,083 18,049,967

44.04 Ageing of due from affiliated entities/ companies

Less than 1 years 0,704 3586 27477 857
Over 1 years but less than 2 years 30,724 734,845
Ower 2 years but leas than & years . 2,708 554
Ower 5 years but less than 10 years 154174 13,658 515
Cver 10 years 2,501 667 50,149,180

12,390,921 95,318,951
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44.06 Liquidity risk —

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach to manage liguidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to
ensume, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both nommal and sitressed conditions, without incutring unacceptable losses or
nsking damage to the Company's reputation. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including
financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line
of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to
make the expected payment within due date.

The following are the contractual or legal maturities of financial liabilities :

Taka in' 000

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Liability for trading supplies and services 10,919,816 21,137,557
Liabilities for supplies and expenses 3,965,846 10,794,730
Customers' and agents' credit balances 1,426,369 1,587,140
Employee's pension fund 488,034 155526
Employee's fund others 50.479 52,962
Security deposits 163,927 162,240

Tax deducted at source 37 -
Employees' personal accounts 50,021 40,575
Liabilities for Capital Expenditure 67,212 43,602
Woaorkers' Proft Pardicipation and Welfare Funds 181,480 200,542
Others 1,833,308 245,888
19,165,529 34,420,762

4407 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market nsk management is to manage and control market nsk
exposures within acceptable parameters.

44.08 Exposure to currency risk

There was no exposure to foreign cumrency risk on the reporting date.

44.09 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due fo changes in interest rates on borrowings. However
the company do not have any outstanding bank borrowings on the reporting date thus they are
not exposed to any interest rate risk. But the company has taken a loan from the Goviof
Bangladesh of BDT 110,078,000 with a fixed interest rate of 5%.
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4500 Effect of COVID-19 on the financial statements:
The assassment of COVID-19 impact has been done based on the following issues:

A. Assessment of going concem assumption
B. Valuation of inventories

A Assessment of going concern assumption:
The Management of POCL has reviewed all relevant indicators to assess the company's ability to continue as a
going concern under COVID-19 situation and has found that at present it assumes no going concem problem.

Cash flow forecasts are sufficient to support going concem basis

Cash flow forecasting is one of the most important procadures that we should use and perform to assess the going

concem problem.
A positive cash flow forecast for the next 12 months has indicated that the entity will have sufficient liquid assets fo
be able to meetits debts.

B. Valuation of inventories:

As per |AS-2 Inventories should be measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. As the seling price of
finished goods and raw materiais were not reduced after balance sheet date, no written down of value is required.

Assessment:

Oue to outbreak of COVID-19, the sales revenue was reduced during the last four months of the financial year
(March 2020 to June 2020). It has adversely affected the profitability during the year 2018-2020 and as a resull, the
profit for the year 2019-20 is lower than the priar year {2018-19). But it is observed that after the balance shest
date, despite of the existence of COVID-18, the revenue is increasing and showing a trend like before COVID-19
situation,
46.00 Significant Deviation in Earning per Share (EPS):

Cue to.outbreak of COVID-19, the company's operation become slow down and revenue has falien down in the last
four months of the year under report and as a consequence Eaming Per Share (EPS) decreased comparing with
the previous year,

47.00 Significant Deviation in Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS):

Met Operating Cash Flows per Share (NOCFPS) has been increased mainly due to increase of total collection
from customers as compared to the corresponding financial year.

48.00 GENERAL
Figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.
Previous year's phrases & amounis have been restated and re-arranged, wherever considered necessary, io
conform to the presentation for the period under review.

R

m— l -
sohel Abdullah Md. Masudur Rahman KM Eneyetul Karim  Md.¥khlasur Rahman
Company Sscrstary CED & Manaping Direalor Directar Director

130



ANNUAL REPORT

il bl B bbbl [T Melp o Wi [

ey

w [ J{ s} | iy [ iansio B o]

t

gl

Sk g, LR T

13



ANNUAL REPFORT

ETET TSR
2019-2G20 4

e
=

S5

T

=

24 }
— s

8 Rine A L LA e B L e kL RARL AL WAL S o L1 R B L

AN .
__ — - ¥

WA, GRA i @ qo wEt Wi S Brorey St |

132



T e e

AN A

I L Belyy
M) Lo |

2 SIS @ FNoe
et ora

(PROXY FORM)
W E A O wEE 0 pElere/fas
sl B e s BRgel
e T T P T PP T P P PP T P P PP T P P PP T L P PP T
........................................................................................................... o\ wE e e ea
L e & AT

#feff i smm [ s Saefers a2 g 303 S 3979 3300 B RETEGmE <t s
(Link : http://padmacil5]agm.digitalagmbd.net) S5 sfisa i e o 9% wRe won o
& FT (3 (T ST EuFEs AT G ST ST A 80w S e et

ST T T8 e, S0 AT T 2 |
cAfefers o
Sok 5@
.8

S| HWE e oo W Arefies S e s e aets T

3 AEEE A TR e EATEE o we (S0 9EE se o e wm erw E6iTeE aes g
(TG IO S S e wele (2 T wacs s ofefifen wemesim s o
So,00 B cafelrl SBims sEmn wera fodifirs oo a3 WO oo caroeifom coferstng” oy w3
i frre 2 |



- i
o
—

i

Rl S i

T Jhgri A g ol

) O _....._ﬂ FRAn (LA
S L

& *firae, BT cereie R S e T e T Wi et



=
PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

{A Subsidiary of Bangladesh Petrcleum Corporation)

Registered Office:

PADMA, BHABAN. Strand Road. Sadarghat, Chattegram-4000. Bangladesh
Phone: + 88 031 614235-7, 6377489 (PABX), Faoe + 88 031 618312 + 88 031 635524
e-mail: md@pocl.gov.bd, share@podl.gov.bd, wab: www.pocl.gov.bd



